- ROOTS OF RESIL

T = :';1-.:
ep
Head Office: 325 G-Ill, M. A Johar Tawn, Lahore, Pakistan | 492 42 35290734-8 - 5.
info@roshanpackages.com.pk | www.roshanpackages.com.pk i % ' ?'
@) Rbshan Packages Limited 3 RoshanPackages.LTD roshanpackagesitd : :";. ;“L
3 .i-r' % . ""!“:r-‘ _:.‘A‘v--
F . i 1 . iy 1‘.

. > e " .



Ve are proud to present Rashan Facksges Limiled's Annusl Repon lor 2025, 4 yeas that
onte again reflectad our sbilily ts adapt, endure and grow Guided by Ihe theme Rools of
Resillence, this year's cover—a majestic ree standing fall with roots reaching deep into the
el i—eaplures the spldl of our fourney,

Just #5 routs provide strength and founshiment hrough stofms, our foundation of
sustainability, innovabion and responsibility conlinugs fo. support Roshan Packages
Bullding gn our FST Chaln of Custady Cartification, we further deapenad obr commitment
o responsible: soursing and packaging, A sanficant step forward this y&a} WES ﬁur
[mestmiznl In repdwable ensegy, producing over one milllon kiiowsll o of grasn
glecirinily across bolh our mrr_ugélmn and Nexible plants. This achievement has enabled us
te reduce mearly hall of ourseliancs on conventional power, a8 liansfommative sinde lowerd
clean, efficlent and affordabls energy

Qur focus miso tumed o one: of Pakistan's most orgent challengss: watsr Through
awateness initiallves on cohberation and food resilence, us well a5 planiation drives
designad (o stabllies soil ﬂi‘l-d mstare blodivarsily, we demonsirated hal resillencs grows
frofn aetions rooted in care lor bolh community and epvmnment,

This Vear also braugh! recogrillon and milestones ha! Inspire us lo Keap movirg forward
Roshan Packages was honored with the Brand of the Year Award for the  second

parseoUlive year, reaffitming our leadarship I carrugated and Nexible packaging solutions
We: hisgled ;T.!LI-T first-aver packaging .wm-shnp. orealing & pda#urm 1o -share -knuwtﬂdgﬁ,
apark Innovalion and ﬁ'nnh-m& lualambha practices (hal will define the indusing's Julure.
-ﬂlnngmda this; our annual employes recognition programs celebrated the people whose
dedicaton and crestivity fomm tha iving roots of bur suctess

Az you i the pages of this repod, you will see how resillence for Roshan Packinges is
migre than endurance. I is growth thatl s grounded in responsibilily, strengthensd by our
paople and guided by & vislon for 8 more sustainable lomormow,

BRAND OF THE YEAR

CORRUGATED AND FLEXIBLE
PACKAGING SOLUTIONS

®
~ BRAND
OF THE YEAR'
AWARDS 2024




MESSAGE
FROM THE
CHIEF
EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Tayyab Aijaz
Chiaf Executlve Officar

Dear Stakeholders,

It 1= my paviiege 1o present to you s Annual Repart
of Roshan Packages Limited for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2025 This report reflects another year of
pETREVERRNME, POOrEss; and purpose, despile the
oo B e chalengies ol botty ool and ghobal
wedie. Our steadfzet commitment 0 sustainebls
growth, operetonal excelience, and delhering value fo
o customers has once adain bean the comerstons
o OLr JOurmsEC

It FY 2025 whis much ol the pocksging ndustry
faced severe headwinds—with several compeditors
reporting signiicant losses or scaling down operaiions
—HRoshan Packsges memamed profitable. This
mesdience 5 8 reflection of our decplined  strategy,
stong cusioma retalionships, and abdty o otiapl
cueckly lo market chalennes. Al & me wien extamal
messimes welohed besvily on the Becior  owe
peformance stands as proof of the sirengh of our
foundations and the tnust of our siakeholders,

Modefiring highhoht of s year wal being  hononsd
once agan wih the Brand of the Year Award in
Corugatd and Fleuble Poackeaging Solutions, sn
achievement fhat undestores our  leecership,
Innovaton, and (he trust our stakeholders confinug ©
plzce in s We sk ook prde n hosting o Brst-of-
ds-kind  packaging workshop, creating a platioem for
knowledee-shanng, movation, and | oollaborstion—
furthering our ol 2s 80 Ihdustry pionas.

Cur sustamabiily jourmey gained new momentum this year. We invested significantly in
ranewable energy, generating over ane million kilowalt hours of green slectricity at our
comugation and llexibls plants, enabling us' lo reduce nearly hall of our relianca on
conventionol power Thes milislive reflects our fong-lerm visson of clean, green, and
cost-efficien| erergy, while einforcing ouwr commibmient o cimate resifiEnce. Alonoside
this, we continued o drive Inllatived ground watsr consérvalion. Nood resilience. and
plantation efforts, tackling some of Pakistan's most urgent environmentzl challenges,

Beyond cour envronmental sgenda, owr annual employes  ecognition  programs
ramaingd & proud Fadibion, calebratmg he dedicaion and reslience of our leams who
remain he trie loundation of our success. Togsiher with our stakeholders, we also
extendsd our effords beyond: corporale boundaries, engaging In commurily and
ctnssrvation actlvilies thal reffect our responsibliity o society.

As we step into the futue, we recognize the challenges that lle ahead, from nflatipnary
pressures o fuchusiing exchange rales. Yel wilh srategic loous on efficisncy,
innoveEtion, and sustamabidty, we reman confident in our ablifty 1o nevigate fhe palh
forward

As Roshan Facksoes completas enather yvear of growth, innovation, and senice, | ke
immense prida inthe fact Ikat ours |s & story writtan by Pakistanis, for Pakistanis. s a
slory shapad by the hard work of aur employees, (he loyaly of our custamers, end the
Irust of pur shareholders, Together, wa will copbnug lo deepen ouf ools ol restience
and bulld a huture where progress and responasibility go hand in hand

Thank you for your continued trust and confidencs In Roshan Packages Limited

Warm regeards,

Tayyabi Aljaz

Chiel Execullve Offiaer
Roshan Packages Limited
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GLANCE

NET REVENUE GROSS PROFIT PBT
RS. IN MILLION RS. IN MILLION RS. IN MILLION
2025:9,661 | 2025:774 2025 : 240
2024 : 10,334 2024 : 886 2024 : 419
PAT EBIT
RS. IN MILLION RS. IN MILLION
2025 : 141 2025 : 430
2024 : 211 2024 : 720
EBITDA EPS TOTAL EQUITY
RS. IN MILLION RS. PER SHARE RS. IN MILLION
2025 : 690 2025:0.99 2025 : 7,705
2024 : 937 2024 : 1.49 2024 : 7,672
CURRENT RATIO QUICK RATIO
RATIO RATIO
2025 : 1.57 2025:1.13
2024 :1.70 2024 :1.28
09 AnnualReport 2025 AnnualReport2025 10
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GEOGRAPHICAL
PRESENCE

Head Office: 325 G-lll, M.A Johar Town, Lahore.

Flexible and Co-extruded Film Manufacturing Plant: Plot # 141, 142,
142-B Sundar Industrial Estate Lahore.

Corrugated Manufacturing Plant: 7-Km Sundar Raiwind Road,
Opp Gate No 1, Sundar Industrial Estate Lahore.

Karachi Offices: Level 7, Dolmen Executive Tower, Clifton Block, Karachi
and 104-Parsa Tower, PE.C.H.S, Block 6, Karachi

Roshan Sun Tao Paper Mills (Pvt) Ltd: 45-Km. Lahore-Islamabad
Motorway, Mouza Mandiala and Qaimpur, Tehsil and district Sheikhupura,
adjacent to Quaid-e-Azam Business Park.

Sales person presence: Lahore, Islamabad, Karachi, Faisalabad,
Jhung, Multan, Sargedha, Sahiwal.

Customer Support: +02 347 6747225 , +92 34 ROSHPACK

13 AnnvalRepnri 2025 AnnuplReport 20215 14
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LEGACY
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1960

1989

2002

2011

2018

Expansion of
corrugalion and
fiaxible ptant
celebrated by a
keynale speech by
His Excellency Mr
Martin Kobler,
Ambassador to
Pakistan ol the

2023

Urdu Digest Roshart Entemnses Roshan Packages Roshan Packages Fadaral Republic of RPL organized
Publications satupa firstof its Limited astablishad Limyited sxpandad Germany. sustainability 2024
specialized in offsat kind Spansh Citrus flsell as a prvate info the packaging conference focused
printing by procuring Procassing Plant in mitad company by indusiry by investing on the circular RPL eams the FSC
siate of the anl Bhalwal Sarghoda instaliing & in & European 201 9 ecanamy with key Chain of Custody
German technalogy Tha plant along with commugation plart with Flexblp plant that customers and Certfication as wel
The company printed new cold storage in Lahore. The plant calers to the FMCG RPL installed 8 players in the g becomang &
and published facilities increased sought to replace sacior Sltting Machine and national economy, signatory to the
Newspapers. weekly the shelf life of local traditional wooden Doctor Rewinder from Furtharmore, intiatas Uf‘hled Nations
& monthly magazines cirus and allowed crates with 2 1 6 BIMEC ltaly along its upcyeling program Giobal Compact.
and books in order 1o the company lo international 0 with successiully and plastic Emﬂ_':?bzng
achieve lts visian of increase its exports. standard corrugaled completing allematives program TAGHION Y
premoting the Urdu boxes by educating Em:hﬂr Packiee q upgradabion of Fire through Roshpack adding Solar Panels
language farmers and NENG i Fighting Equipment Paper products like to aur Cormugation
zom exportars to their a large-scale and safaty standards paper tags and Unit and Flexible Unit
benefits, ST ot both plarits Dager plaies are instaliation underway
Rolegravure maching ' Roshpack expands
1 970 Roshan Enlermprises from Windmolier and beling made from _ P
became a markel 201 0 H L#-S'Ehﬁ‘l‘ unused or waste its offerings
Qur foundars leader in the fruil 2020 papar, Carbon inci u.de recycled
suceesshully export business by All World Network Rosh 0 Emission research counss Dags
introducad fresh contnuously ramad Balan 201 7 pack, the “‘I and mibigabon
Paklstani fruits to the increasing fruit Packages Limited in r:;ﬁr;r:;er:e amo begins
Middia East despile axpors and wan . After a highly n Packages
. ) i1s list of Pakistan's Limited. canients
significant limitations Best Export 100 25 fastos! siiccessiul PO, v y
on expart from Parformance Award growing companies Roshan Packages salf as an ngustry
Pakistan. fram FPCCI. Limited advanced la leadet by serang
the next phase of its more than 1400
development by businesses,
investing in a BHS reslaurants and
Corrugator, retallers in a year

Annudl Report 2024
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OUR OUR
STRATEGY DIFFERENTIATION

T s ¥, ' :
@ © ® " ")
VISION MISSION CORE VALUES SUSTAINABILITY INNOVATION
We aspire o be the leader Our mission is to delight Attention to leaming Sustainability is a part of our DNA. At Roshan, we proactively research
in providing innovative, our customers by Service with courtesy Qur operations comply with and develop packaging solutions
and aesthetically providing innavative , I international environmental protection according to the needs of the various
integrated packaging packaging products and Ownership and openness standards and our processes focus industries we cater 1o,
solutions in order to solutions while upholding Honesty and commitment on recycling.
enable the key businesses the principles of corporate . e .
of our customers. govemance and pursuing Nunm;gmﬂmum —
the creation of superior .
value for our stakeholders Mthmlhr;::;r:ioml Q R
CUSTOMER QUALITY
SERVICE Roshan Packages staried its joumey
We aspire to be the leader in providing innovative, and aesthetically integrated Our sales team aims to provide the by becoming one of the first
customers while Roshpack and vegetables packaging in
execufives focus on bringing the Pakistan. As we expanded inlo
same professionalism and servica lo different sectors, we have always put
SMEs. quality before anything eise.

&
—_— ACCESS
Our e-commerce arm, Roshpack focuses on providing
high quality packaging solutions to customers who

require smaller quantities. Our website, social media and
sales execulives ensure thal we reach all parts of

Pakistan and expand our footprint abroad.
A8 AR ot B © T AnnualRegort2025 - A
P B e~ Gty Lt i Lo s ghh mes (L S A JF o WA R R A T e ™ e T R o - . .
|t o . o YeiE Kre o 2¥ . R R Wi = “haihs rﬂ*hl ckages.com.pk- . -
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FLEXIBLE
PA C KA G I N G We use advanced European technology to convert plastic films into flexible

packaging laminate, pouches, wrappers and sachets.

Our Flexible Packaging product range includes:

» Pharmmaceutical & Herbal Products Laminate + Tea & Beverages Laminate

« Snacks, Biscuits & Confectionery Laminate * Dry Milk Sachet & Pouches
Ketchup & Mayonnaise Laminate Pickles & Spices Laminate
Soap & Detergents Laminate Bubble Gum Wrapper
Cosmetics & Shampoo Laminate Courier / Diaper Bag Sheet

Instant Dnnks & ORS Sachet Oil & Ghee Film

Roshan Packages' German film extrusion plant has the technical expertise fo
develop top-quality Co-extruded Film using approprate Polymer Layer to offer
immaculate packaging solutions for different applications and provides impeccable
chemical resistance, liquid containment, barriers, hermelic/peelable seals and
perforations. Our Blown Films, produced from the finest quality Virgin Polymies
Resins including, PE. HDPE, LLDPE, PP. Metallocene, PP. Polyamide, EVOH, and
EVA, can be used for various industries mainly fo

— |

Our Co-extruded product range includes:

*High Oxygen Barrier Transparent Film with Nylon for Edible Qil, Cheese, Yeast.

*White Opaque Films for Detergent powder with high moisture barmer.

*Transparent Film for the laminate of Rice, Flour, Powder, Spices

*White Opaque Film for diaper back shest

+Transparent and White Opaque Film for the laminates of hol filling hiquid and paste

*High Oxygen and Moisture Barrier Film with EVOH for UHT milk, processed meal

19 Annual Repart 2025 Annual Report 2025 20
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CORRUGATED
PAC K AG I N G Our European corrugated plant caters to all kinds of corrugated packaging

needs.

Our experts help our customers choose the right design, color, size and paper
mix for their business needs. We offer RSC, HSC, Die Cut, Regular Slotted and
Half Slotted and Master cartons composed of 2, 3 or 5 ply sheets in B, C and E
flutes. We also offer in-house design services and can print up to 4 different
colours on our boxes.

Our boxes are not only eco-friendly but rather sustainable; our corrugation plant
uses recycled paper and recycles its own waste. We offer truly sustainable
solutions for your packaging needs.

We Offer:
« 2 Ply single facer sheet roll in B/Flute, C/Flute & E/Flute.
3 Ply sheets/boxes in B/Flute, C/Flute & E/Flute.
5 Ply sheets/boxes in B+C, B+E, C+E Flutes.
4 colour printing sheets & boxes.
2 colour printed sheets, boxes in home appliances industry,
Dividers, pads, corners and edge protectors.

Roshan Packages corrugated packaging is using the latest lechnology to
customize and develop multiple-sized corrugated cartons, box cartons, stock
boxes, custom boxes, die-cuts, pads, corners, and parlition sheels.

Our product range is suitable for, but not limited to, FMCG, pharmaceulicals,
healthcare, electronics, textile, cargo & logistics, candy, fruit & vegetable, oil &
ghee, and dairy packaging. We have also worked on household plastic
alternatives such as organizers, laptop stands, phone stands and even clothing
hangers.

21 Annual Report 2025 Annual Report 2025 22
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VISION OF QUALITY
& INNOVATION

Memorandum of Understanding with Centre for Halal Awareness, Research, and
Training (CHART), Minhaj University Lahore

Roshan Packages Limited has signed an MOU with the Centre for Halal Awareness, Research,
and Training (CHART) at Minha University Lahore. This sirategic partnership aims to provide
students with intemships, collaborative educational programs, specialized training in sustainable
packaging, and industry visits, contributing to their academic and professional growth.

The signing ceremony, held at the university's Registrar's Office, was atténded by Dr. Khuram
Shahzad, Registrar of Minhaj University, Saadat Ejaz Qureshi, Executive Director of Roshan

Packages, along with key individuals such as Munir Hussain, Deputy Director of CHART, and Zia
ul Rehman, Certification Manager, Minhaj Halal Certification (MHC). This collaboration reflects a
shared commitment to advancing sustainable packaging and halal industry standards.

23 Annual Raport 2025
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At Roshan, quality is our main differentiator. We facus on quality in order to provide you with
strong, innovalive and eco-friendly packaging products.

We work with some of the world's most visible and iconic brands. Our job is fo add value to
their products by making them attractive to customers thus allowing them to be sold al a
premium price.

At Roshan Packages Limited (RPL), our dedication to quality is not merely a promise; it's the
heartbeat of our operations. Quality isn't just one aspect of what we do; it is the primary
differentiator that sets us apart. We believe in delivering packaging solutions that are not
only robust bul also innovative and ecofriendly, aligning perfectly with the needs of today's
discerning consumers.

Qur work brings us into close collaboration with some of the world's most visible and iconic
brands. For us, It's more than just delivering boxes; it's about adding intrinsic value lo their
products by making them irresistibly appealing to customers, allowing them to be positioned
al a premium price point. This philosophy of value addition is deeply ingrained in our
corporate culture.

In our corrugation unit, we embark on a journey of quality right from the starl. We source the
finest quality paper from around the world. Utilizing our state-of-the-art corrugator, which
stands as a unique asset in Pakistan, we craft exceptional boxes. But, our commitment to
quality doesn't end with production,

Qur diligent researchers subject these boxes fo a battery of tests to ensure their toughness
and resllience. Only when these boxes have successfully passed a series of rigorous quality
assessments, do we promise and deliver the quality that you expect. Some of the tests we
conduct include;

Bursting Strength Test: Evalualing the capacity of our packaging lo withstand
pressure.

Edge Crush Test: Assessing the strength of the corrugated material at the edges.
Water Resistance of the Gluing: Ensuring that our boxes maintain their integrity
even when faced with moisture.

At our Flexible Planl, we take our responsibility as your Preferred Packaging Pariner
extremely seriously. To meet this commitment, we employ 15 different quality testing
machines sourced from around the world. These state-of-the-art testing mechanisms are
dedicaled to ensuring that our producls meel and exceed your specifications,

At Roshan, we understand that quality isn't a2 one-time effort; it's an ongoing commilment.
This 1s why our Quality Control department rigorously tests and retests our products,
assuring you that what you receive isn't jusl a package; it's a promise of quality. Our
dedication to quality Isn't just a feature of our products; it's our way of life at RPL, and it's
whal sets us apart in the industry

Annual Regort 2025 24
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SUPPORTING
STARTUPS
AND SMALL
BUSINESSES

RoshPack: Pakistan's First Packaging E-Commerce Platform

Al Roshan Packages, we're excited to infroduce RoshPack, Pakistan's very first packaging
e-commerce platform, designed to make life easler for businesses of all sizes. Whether
you're a startup, an SME, a home-based entrepreneur, or even just someone leoking for
quality packaging, RoshPack has got you covered with ready-to-pick, high-quality products
you can trusl.

Our website offers a variety of packaging solutions, including mailer boxes, pizza boxes,
cargo boxes, and fruit boxes, all in different sizes. The best part? We keep these items in
- stock, so you don't have to worry about managing inventory or investing in expensive
' custom packaging. This is especially helpful for small businesses, women running home-
I 'y based ventures, and farmers looking to export their goods—we're here to support your
growth and take the hassle out of packaging.

i This year, we've expanded our selection even further. We've added more sizes for mailer

i boxes, shoe boxes, and couner bags to meet your evolving needs. Whether you're shipping

' products to customers, packing up fruits for export, or simply looking for sturdy packaging
when moving houses, RoshPack makes it simple. With just a few clicks, you can have
quality packaging delivéred right to your doorstep.
RoshPack is more than just a store—it's a solution for anyone who needs convenient,
reliable packaging without the stress. YWe're here to support entrepreneurs, small
businesses, and even individuals with practical, easy-lo-access packaging options, all with
the quality and trust you've come to expect from Roshan Packages.

3

Generic

These are products
we've researched,
designed and
perfected. We keep an
inventory of them at all
fimes and there are no
minimum order
quantities. Order as
much as you want,
any time.

Replacing Plastic

Our Main Products Categories

Semi-Customised
We offer logo printing
and branding on our
generic products for
customers who want
to brand their products
for less.

‘-‘W/,
Fully t:us;umiud

Our fully customised
producls are made
just for you! Our
experts will help you
decide the right
formula, design and
size of your
packaging. We will
then share a sample
with you and upon
your approval, send
your order off to
production.

By using our circular designs, Pakistan Is shifting to sustainable alternatives.

QOur Research and Design Department along with Roshpack have been working an finding
sustainable solutions to everyday products, Some of the products are pictured below and
include: phone holder, file organisers, desk organisers and drink camiers.
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Roshan Packages equips individuals and leams lo consislently execute high impact plans and goals
with confidence and excelience, I is due 1o the commitment of our team thal we attain international
awards and certifications every year

These are not simple awards for us. They are a testament to the passion and hard work of Team
Roshan and a promise that the pursuit to quality anc perfection at Roshan will only grow every
year. Each one of thes2 milestones inspires us io ophmze our efforts for continued  growth in the
days ahead. Some of these schisvemnants are;
« Brand of the year 2024 corrugated and flexible packaging Solutions
e (Chain of Custody Ceriification - Forest Stewardship Council
Signatory Unitad Nations Globa! Compact
Implementation of SAP-Enterprise Resource Planner 2015
ACCA Approved Employes Status 2016
Quaiity Managemenl System IS0 9001 2015
Food Safety Management System FSSC 22000
SEDEX Approved Organization - 4 Pillars Certification
i Business Conduct
i. Environment
W, Health and Safaty
. Labour Law
Approved Employer ICAEW
Halal Managemenl Systam Awarded by SANHA
Environmental Mansgement System IS0 14001: 2015
Occupstional Health and Safety Managemen! System [SO 45001, 2018

Avery Dennison Liner Recycling Program

The success of Roshan Is not limited to Pakistan. We have also been the reciplent of several
awards from all World Network, In collaboration with Harvard Business School, for its
outstanding growth achievemants.

o Ranked 23rd In Pakistan under 25 Fastest Growing Companies of Pakistan 2010

e Ranked 37th in 100 Fastes! Growing Companles of Pakistan 2011
Ranked 25th in Pakesian under 500 Fastest Growing Companées of Arabia Region 2011
Ranked Z3rd in Pakistan undar 500 Fastest Growing Companies of Arabia Region 2012

Rankad Z6ith in 100 Fasast Growing Campanies of Paicsian 2013

Annual Report2das
roshanpackages.com.pk
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Roshan
Packages
Limited
Company
Information

Status: Public Listed Entily
CUIN: 0044226

NTN: 1436951-8

STRN: 03-01-4819-303-73

Board of Directors
Mr. Quasim Aijaz
Chairman

Mr. Tayyab Aijaz
Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Saadat Eijaz
Executive Director

Mr. Khalid Eijaz Qureshi
Non-Executive Director
Mr. Zaki Ajjaz
Non-Executive Director

Ms. Ayesha Musaddaque Hamid
Independent/Non-Executive Director

Mr. Nadeem Amjad Khan
Independent/Non-Executive Director

Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
Mr. Irfan Hussain

Company Secretary
Mr. Hammad Khan Sherwani

Tax Consultant
Zulfigar Ahmad & Co

Website
www.roshanpackages.com.pk

Banks

Askan Bank Limited
Allied Bank Limited

Bank Alfalah Limited

Thie Bank of Punjab

Bank Islami Pakistan
Dubai Islamic Bank Limited
Habib Metropolitan Bank
JS Bank Limited

Meezan Bank Limited
Soner| Bank Limited
National Bank of Pakistan

Registered Office

325 G-lil, M.A Johar Town, Lahore.
Phone: +92-042-35290734-38
Fax: +92-042-35290731

Factory

Corrugation: 7-KM Sundar Raiwind Road,
Opp Gate No 1, Sundar Industrial Estate.
Flexible: Plot No 141,142 and 142-B Sunder
Industrial Estate Lahore.

Share Registrar

CDC Share Registrar Services Limited
CDC House, 99-B, Block B, SM.CH.S.
Main Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi-74400

Statutory Auditor
KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co

Head of Internal Audit
Mr. Nabil Tahir

Stock Symbol
RPL
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DIRECTORS’
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Mr. Quasim Aljaz
Chaiman

Mr.Quasim Aijaz is the Chairman of Roshan Packages Limited and acting
Production Director of Rashan Enterprises. He is also serving as a Direclor on the
board of Roshan Sun Tao Paper Mills (pwt) Lid. In office since 1988, his profific
history with the company dates back over 30 years. He s a graduate of Forman
Christian College in Economics and Political Science, and also serves as 8
member of Sargodha Chamber of commerce,

Tayyab Aijaz
Chief Executive Officar

Mr. Tayyab Aijaz is a business graduate whose professional career began with the
Roshan Group in 2000. He currenily holds the offices of Chief Executive of
Roshan Packages, Executive Editor of the Monthly Urdu Digest, and the Chief
Executive Officer and Director of Roshan Sun Tao Paper Mills, He is also g
founding director of the Punjab Aan-Marketing Company (PAMCO), and a
founding member of the organization of Pakistani Entreprensurs (OPEN), Lahore
Chapter and the Lanhare Chamber of Commerce and Industry (LCCI). He is a liie
lime member of the SAARC Chamber of Commerce and Industry, a board
member of the commitiee on Paper and Board by the enginearing Development
Board, a member of the Young Presidents’ Organization (YPO) and served as an
executive member of the Board of Management of Sundar Industrial Estale,
Lahore,

Saadat Eijaz

Executive Director

Mr. Saadat Eijaz is the Execulive Director of Roshan Packages. His professional
axpenence also includes his role as the Chatrman of the Pakistan Harticullure

Development and Export Board (PHDER), the Direclor of Roshan Enlerprises,
and a member of the Board of Directors of Roshan Sun Tao Paper Mills.,

Khalid Eijaz Qureshi
Non Executive Director

Mr. Khalid Eljaz Qureshi is a business graduale who started his professional
career with Publishing. He has also acquired (ntemalional cerfifications in vanous
fields like Supply Chain Management, Intemational Marketing & Intemational
Food Safety Management. He is alsa Director of Roshan Sun Tao Paper Mills &
Chief Executive Officer of Roshan Enterprises. He s also 3 member of different
arganizations i.e. Karachi Chamber of Commerce. All Pakistan Fruits &
Vegetables Merchant Association, Rotary Intemational and Convener for the Agro
Export Processing £one:

Zaki Aijaz
Noen Executive Director

Mr. Zaki Aljaz is the Regional Chairman and Vice President of the Federation
Pakistan Chamber of Commerce & Industry. He also serves as a Non-Executive
Directar for Roshan Pagkages. His other engagements include serving as an
Executive member of STIA and the Pak China Chamber of Commerce and as a
director of Roshan Enterprises and Roshan Sun Tao Paper Mills. He holds a
Diploma in Supply Chain and Advanced Management from the Pakistan Institute
of Management and a Diploma in Managing Family Businesses from the Institute
of Business Managemant (IBA).

Mr. Nadeem Amjad Khan
Independent Non Execulive Director

Mr. Nadeem Amjad Khan is a Fellow Chartered Accountant {ICAP) with over 25
years of professional experience in banking, finance, and corporate govemnance,
including senior lzadership roles with AlBaraka Banking Group acress multiple
counlries. He has extensive expertise in mergers & acquisitions, enterprise risk
managemant, lslamic finance, and sirategic transformation, and has served on
varous boards and professional commitiees.

Ayesha Musaddaque
Independent Non Executive Director

Mrs. Ayesha Hamid hails from one of the most educated business families of
Lahore. She sarves as the President, Charterad member, General secretary,
Board member elc on numernus forums like OPEN-Lahore, TIE-Islamabad, APBF,
GACA, ABF, ETPB, LCCI-TTD, MAP, Baba Guru Nanak University, Gandhara
international University, Millennium Welfara Society, KWS and ACSC. Moreaver,
she Is the owner of Amenican School of Intemational Academics accradited in the
USA.

i e IDES 54
fusRan ek sgEECUIN.OR



Board Of Directors

2 GOMPANY A
-~ ORGANOGRAM i FYEE

L =y
. T .". - 1 ' . ST
f ! o |4 : 0 i x
- ] I| -1{ ’ ¥ Jl-.'
_l.-E L -
4 . ot Wi K B | |
e ’ y ol g
i . . _}. - r2 ;_ ¥ _
i - .

Atdit
Committee

Chief Executive Officer

N
. o =
: ” 8
- — ’ ;
1.8 4 * g
& ] p
- Y X d r "'-r“
— y
- |
. .-*r'. |
<5 .
- -
T S 4
. 4 .
s ’
W
i

Executivl Cirector

Flexible Plant

Internal Audit

I5

Mnmusl Regort K025
rREhanpackag s L eenT 0

Sales

Project Office

Finance

Digitization Supply Chain

Arnual Repod 1025 3¢
rashangackegou.cTm. pk




1. Determination of appropriaté measures to safeguard the company's assets.

2. Review of annual and intenm financial statémanis of the company, prior fo their approval by the board, focusing an,
¢ Major judgement areas:
+ Significant adjustment resulting for the audit;
« Gping concern assumption;
+ Any changes in the accounting policies and pracbces
+ Compliance with applicable accounting standards;
+ Compliance with these regulation and other siatltory and regulatory requirement; and
v All related party transaction;

3. Review of preliminary announcements of the resulls prior lo exiernal communication and publication,

4. Facllitation the external audit and discussion with exiernal auditors of major observation arising froom interm and final
audit and any matier that auditors may wish to highlight {in the absence of management, where necassary),

5. Review of management letter issued by external auditors and management response thereto;

6. Ensuring coordination between extermal and Intermal auditrs of ine company,

7. Raview the scope and extent of internal audit, audit plan, reporting framework and procedurs and ensuring that the
internal auditars function has adequate resources and in appropriately placed within the company:

B Consideration of major finding of intemal investigation of activiies characienzed by fraud, corruption and abuse of
power and management's response therelo,

E ] o Ascertaining fhat the Infernal control system including financial and operational controls, atcounting system for imely

and appropriate recording of purchase and sales, receipt-and payments, asset and liabilities and the reporting
4 - structure are adequate and effective;
Name Designation

10. Review of the company's slatement on intemal control system pnor to endorsement by the Board and internal audit
—~——— —_—— reports
11, Instifuting special projects, value of the menay studias ar olher invesiigatidns on any matter specified by the board, in
Ms. Ayesha Musaddaque Hamid ChEliprfEDﬂ consultation with the chist executive officer and lo consider remittance of any matter to the sxternal auditor and o
— consider extemal body.
12. Determination of compliance with relevant statutory requirements;

Mr. Nadeem Amjad Khan Member 13. Monitory compiiance with these Regulation and identification of significant violations thereof
] . 14. Review of amangement of staff and management to repert fo audit commitiee in confidence, cancems, If any, about
T actual or potential iImproprieties in fnancial and other matters and recommended Instituting remedial and mitigating
Mr. Khalid Eijaz Qureshi Mamber Measdres:
15. Recommend to the Board the appointment of exiernal auditors, their removal, audit fees, the provision of any services
- _E @ TEEESSESSSSSSESSSh—-——_—_—_—S permissible to be rendered to the campany by the extemal auditors in additions to audit of its financial statements,

measures for redrassal and rectification of non-compliance with the regulations. The Board shall give due

Mr. Quasim Aljaz Member

ponsideration (o the recommendations of the audit committes and where il acts otherwisa it shall record the reasons
- T thereof.

Mr. Zaki Aljaz Maribér
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CORPORATE
CALENDER

04

October 2024
Board of Director’s

Meeting for Annual
Results

30

October 2024
1st Quarter Board of

Director’'s Annual
Meeting

23

February 2025

2nd Quarter Board of

Director’s Meeting

28

October 2024

21st Annual General
Meeting.

27

November 2024

Corporate Briefing

28

April 2025

3rd Quarter Board of
Director’'s Meeting




CHAIRMAN
REVIEW
REPORT

Quasim Aijaz
Chairman
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| am pleased to present Ihis repart to the shareholders of
Roshan Packages Limited on the overall performance of
the Board and its effectivenass in achieving the Company’s
sirategic objectives. This Annual Report provides both
financial and non-financial disclosures, reflecting our
contintied commitment to transparency. govermance, and
iong-term valug creation,

Board Performance

The Board of Directors of Roshan Packages Limited has
opefated within a robust governance framework thal
supports prudent, effective, and sustainable management.
This framework has enabled the Company o remain
resilient amidst externial challenges while positioning dsei
to capture growth opportunities.

During the year, the Board provided oversight ana
guidance to management in riavigating a highly dynamic
operaling environmenl. Throlgh timely decisions, sirategic
planning, and risk management, the Board has supparted
initiatives that safeguard shareholder value, enhance
operational efficiency, and reinforce our long-term vision.
The Board ensures alignment of the Company’s strategic
plan with its mission and vision, while maintaining
oversighl of financial performance. risk areas, and eyolving
marke! conditions. A forward-looking approach has been
adopied to anticipale business developments over the nexl
three 1o five years, ensuring preparedness for
opporlunities and challenges.

As Chairman, | remain commitied to fostenng a oulture of
constructive debate, transparency, and inciusion al the
Board level, ensuring thal diverse perspectives guide our
decision-making

Board Evaluation
In accordance with the Gode of Corporate Govemance, (he Board evaluates (ts effectivenass annually through a
structured self-assessment facilifated by the Governance & Namination Committee. The masi recent evaluation confirmed
1hat the Board and its Commitieas are functioning affsctivaly, with action plans deveinpad for further improvemenl,
Thie evaluabion covers key areas such as:

+ Stratagic planning and palicy formulation

+ (wersight of financial and operational perfarmance

+ Rigk management and intermal controls

« Stakeholder engdgement and corporaie repulation

+ Board struciure, diversity, and dynamics

Compasition and Diversity

The Board of Reshan Packages Limiled comprises a balanced mix of independent. non-gxecutive, and exscutive
directors including female representation. in ine wilh statutory reguirements. This diversily ensures a broad range of
experiise, govemance acumen, and indusiry knowledge. | ake this epportunity foacknowledge me contnbutions of
oulgoing dirsctors and warmly weloame nawly akeclsd mambers Whio Bring fres? perspedtives snd Valuable sxpeanentce
Board Commitiees

The Board Audd Committes and sustainability commitiee, have actvely dizcharged their resporsibilites in line witn their
approved terms of referance. The commitige provides focused support and recommendations to the Board, ansuring
Effective govemance, compliance, and oversight

Governance and Control Environment

The Board continues to uphold the highest standards of corparale govarnance by implementing 2 strong control
environment, clear polices, and a Code of Conduct applicable 1o directors, executives, and employees, The |nternal Audn
finction, aperating independantly and reparing to the Audit Commities, has played a crfical mle in strengthening internal
conraks,

Despite macroaconomic headwinds—such as imflation, volatile inpul costs. and sector-specific ohallenges—ihe Board
believes inat the strateglc direction of Roshan Packages Limited remains well-grounded. The povemance framawirk
ensures thal (ke Company is equipped lo respond 1o challengas while pursling growth oppartinilies acrss FMCG,
pharmaceuticals, and industrial packaging sectors

Dn behall of the Board, | express sincere grailude Lo odr shareholders, amployess, cuslomars, business farlners. and
ragulators for thewr continued trust and support. With a clear strategic direction; a strong govemance foundation, and &
resilient workforce, Roshan Packages Limited is well-positioned o deliver sustainable valte fn the years ahean
Thank you

Mr, Quasim Aijaz
Chaimman

Roghan Packages Limited
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Role of Chairman Role of Chief Executive officer

The Chairman shall be responsible for lzadership of the board and shall ensure that the board plays an
effective role in fulfilling all its obligations. In particular, he shall:

The Chief Executive shall be responsible for the leadership of business and subject to the control and direction
of and the authorities delegated to him by the Board of Directors, be responsible for the management of affairs of

1. Ensure effective functioning afthe Board Reom and committzes of the Board in accordance with the
highest standards of corporaie govemance.

2 Ensure thal slch an agenda for the Company is set which primarily focus on sirategy, parformarice, valug
creation and accountability, and ensure thal issud relevant 1o those areas are regularly considered by the
Eoard,

3. Ensure that the Board discussions promote constructive debate and effective decision-making.

a. Ensure that the Board deterrmines tha nature and extent of tha signficant risks to the Company and
that the

4. Board reviews regularly the affectiveness of nisk management and internal control systems

5. Ensure that adequate time is allowed for discussion of all agenda iterns and to ensure that complex ar
contentious (ssuss are dealt with effectively, making sure in particular that non-executive directors have
sufficient time 1o cansider tham.

&. Ensure that the Board members receive accurate, timely and clear information relating to agenda items
and, in particular, about the company's performance.

7. Ensure that the Board delegate appropriale authority to the management

B. Ensure that all Board commitiees as required under the Code are properly established, composed and
effectively operated.

9, Ensure to bulld an effective Board, its composition and balance, diversity, including gendsr, and
succession planning for the Board and appointment of senior executives,

10, Ensura that the Chairmen of the Board Committees properly brief the Board reqarding proceedings of the
Committees.

11. Ensure proper disclosure in the annual repart as required under the Code of Corporate Governance and
other requirements with regard to the directors are complied wilh;

12, Ensure that the directors continually update their skills and the knowledge and familiarity with the
company to fulfill their role both on Beard and Board Commitieas including in terms of the code of
carporate govemance.

13. Communicate with the Chief Exscutive wherever need bs,

14. Ensure that the performance and effectiveness of the Board, its committees and individual directors is
tormally evaluated on an annual basis.

15. Establish a harmonious and open relationship with all executive direclors and Chief Executive In particular
providing advice and support while respecting the execulive responsibilities.

16. Ensure that conflict of interest ssues are adaguately addressed at Board level.

lbnmel Ry Eaas
FEER AT BAN AgeE e ke

the company. In particular, he shall:

. Develop strategy for the Company for Board approval and ansure that approved corporale strateqgy is duly reflected

1 thie business,

. In eenjunction with the Chief Financial Officer, develop an annual budget and the cash flow plan consistent with

approved corperate stratagies for presentation ta the Beard for approval, This should include daveloping processes
and structures to ensure thal capital investment proposals are reviewed thoroughly, that associated risks are
identified and appropnate steps are takan to manage the risk to business,

. Be responsible (o the Board for parformance of the Business consistent with approved business plans, cofpergie

strategies and policies and keep the Board as a whale Lpdate on progress made against such approved plans,
corporate sirafegies and policies,

. Plan human sourcing o ensure that the company has the capabilities and resources required to achisve its plans

and ensure thal robust managamant sUccession and managamant development plans are i place and presentad 1o
the Board from time to time.

. Develop an organizational structure and establish processes and systemis te ensure the efficient organization of

resources.

. Ensure those fir ancial results, business sirategies and, whare appropriate, largets and milestones are placed

before the Board,

. Develop and promote effective communication with sharaholders and other stakeholdars.

B, Ensure that the flow of information to the Board is accurate, timely and clear

i
10.
1.

Ensure that the reporting lines within the Company are clearly estabiished and are effective.
Ensure that proper procedures are in place to anslre compiiance with all applicable laws, rules and reguiations.
Ensure an effective framework of internal controls ingiuding risk management in relation to all business activities.

12. Ensura that the company has a suitable system and policy for the imaly and accurate disclosure of information in

13,

aooordance with requlatory requiremants.
Ensure that coriflict of interest issues are adaquately addressed at management leval,

Annuak Bepedt T005 44
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SHAREHOLDER'’S
ENGAGEMENT

Dur strategic goals are thoughtiully aligned with the evolving needs and axpectations of our stakeholders.
At Roshan Packages, we firmly believe that consistent and transparent communication with our
sharehiolders plays a vltal role in fostering an open, collaborative, and constructive dislogue, By
mainlaining these sirong connections, we nol anly bulld trust but atso ensure thal our shareholders remain
well-nformed about the company's direction, progress, and future opportunities.

Quaiity 1=, and always will be, our key diferentiator, Al Roshan, we are deeply commitied o producing
packaging solutions that are not only robust and innovatlve but also environmentally responsible. Our eco-
fnendly packaging products help brands-elevats their market presance, enrancing the appeal of their
offerings and allowing them [o command premium pricing, We take immense pride in collaborating with
some of the wordd's most recognizable and Iconic brands, and our role is 1o add value by making their
praducts more altractive and sustainable for thelr customers

We are equally dedicaled to fostering actjve shareholder engagemenl, Roshan Packages encourages our
sharehiolders to participate in our Annual General Mestings and Corporate Briefing sessians, where they
can directly engage with the company's leadership and stay up-to- date with the lalest developments. We
afe commitied 1o full fransparency, offering comprehensive disclosures through our Guarnerly and Annual
Reparis, To furthar support our shareholders, we have established a dedicated Shares Departmant,
operaied by a team of highly experienced professionals who are readily available o assist with any
Inquiries or neads,

This year, we adapted to the evolving digital landscape by holding our corporale briefing session for
analysts via Zoom, During this session, our CEQ shared valuable insights into the promising potential of
the packaging Industry, both glabally and locally. He hinhlighted the company's key performance
indicators, financial achisvemenis, and growth strategias, while also addressing questions from the
audience in real time, ensuring a thorough and engaging discussien

e addition to our dirsct communications, we have also maintained and regularly updaled our websile
(www.roshanpackages.com pk) to serve as a comprehansive resource for both financial and non-financial
nformation. The website includes our Investor Grievance Form, ensuring stakeholders have a direcl
channel for raising any concems, By seanning the QR code below, you can actess our reports and other
imporiant updates. We ensure thal the website is frequently updated so our stakeholders remain informed
of all significant developments, allowing them to stay connected with the company's progress in real time.
At Roshan Packages, we remain dedicated to fransparency, quality, and
innovation, striving 1o et only meel but exceed the expectations of our
glakeholders, customars, and partners,
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GRAPHICAL ANALYSIS
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STATEMENT OF WEALTH
GENERATED AND DISTRIBUTED
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FREE CASHFLOWS SHARE PRICE
SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS

T ——— 4 s a5g i e i 15 Roshan Packages' share price increased from Rs 14,16 to Rs 21.32 in FY 2025;
PTG T S T 104 am i g Al ah A1 however, this growth has not matched the broader market. Several internal and
Wtk Cay Al EFimhrs Bl &l it iL304] S| 135 FLers )| external factors have limited its appreciation:

T £2MN genarated Trarm operating AT 14) 06 =S 1T5] i TATE [

Cyjrital @i jute sk I 131 ) 55 432 {0

1. Earnings Performance:

‘Erum crsh o (Rl aan A12 (AL Fak] 1,743 [323}
<ammeins Although the share price posled an increase, the Company's earnings remained

Erne sdaln st Taiisd nEEALUWI el g W yED ey iluE P ElsiE Witk okg (EEE] micesrEn = EREEINE Tening dilfeeces aea nievasatl opEEtinvs!

SR below Investor expectations due to weaker-than-projected financial results, limiting
overall market interest.

2. Reduced Capacity Utilization:

Lower demand for packaging products, driven by economic challenges, led to a

decline in capacity utilization compared to the pravious year, affecting profitability and
creating a weaker financial outliook.

Froe Cxsh Flows

==t Gl EreTRieT T apErsiTE artelss =il e o o

)

i g 3. Taxation:

Changes in laxation, and varying levies adversely impacted the company's financlal
perfarmance, causing investors to shift focus to higher-performing sectors.

URLAH]

SNy

4. Economic Linkage to Key Sectors:

=44

Packaging demand is tightly linked to indusiries like FMCG, lextiles, construction, and
household goods. The slowdown in these sectors directly affected demand for
packaging solutions, thereby limiting the company's revenue growth.

[E1iai]

5. Inflation and Consumer Spending;

(L] i

Jude sigy 10414 1023 s (T Persistently elevaled inflalion eroded consumer purchasing power, leading to subdued
demand for goods and services. This. In tumn, negatively affecled packaging volumes
and weighed on overall sector performance.

6. Interest Rates:

Tight monetary policy exerted pressure on profitability and reduced investor appetite
for capltal-intensive seclors, including packaging.

7. Volatile Raw Material Prices:

The packaging industry Is sensilive to fluctuations in raw material prices, such as crude
oil and pulp, which are either imported or locally procured. Escalating costs led to
higher production expenses, putting pressure on the company's margins,
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SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT
GOALS
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At Roshan Packages Limited, we believe that businesses have a pivotal role to play
in advancing sustainable development. As we present our initiatives in alignment
with the Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs), we wish to reaffirm our
unwavering commitment to these global objectives. Our dedication to responsible
and suslainable practices is ingrained in our corporate DNA. We understand the
imperative of addressing critical challenges such as climate action, responsible

consumption, and social equity. Through our actions, we are not only advocating for
a better tomorrow but actively working to shape it. On the right, you will find a
summary of our initiatives, each contributing to the broader effort of achieving the
SDGs.
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Roshan Packages Limited proudly took a significant step towards
- reinforcing its dedication to responsible business practices by signing the {5, a1«
| United Nations Global Compact (UNGC) in Karachi. This initiative marks

our alignment with the world's largest corporate sustainability framework, -

reflecting our commitment to integrating ethical, social, and

environmental principles into our operations. By joining over 15,000

companies across 160 countries, we are embracing a shared

responsibility to ensure that our business supports sustainable J0SHAN l
‘ ROS
N\

I development and contributes positively to society.
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The ten principles of the UN Global Compact guide us in key areas including human rights,
labor standards, environmental stewardship, and anti-corruption efforts. These principles
serve as a framework for how we operate and interact with our employees, communities,
and partners. Roshan Packages Limited is fully committed to upholding these values,
ensuring our actions confribute to a fair, inclusive, and sustainable future.

The Ten Principles of the United Nations Global Compact are derived from: the Universal

Declaration of Human Rights, the International Labour Organization's Declaration on
Fundamental Principles and Rights at Work, the Rio Declaration on Environment and
Development, and the United Nations Convention Against Corruption.

Following are the 10 principles that we will work to inculcate in our business

Human Rights

Principle 1: Businesses should support and respect the protection of internationally
proclaimed human rights; and

Principle 2: make sure that they are not complicit in human rights abuses.

Principle 3: Businesses should uphold the freedom of association and the effective
recognition of the right to collective bargaining;

Principle 4: the elimination of all forms of forced and compulsory labour;
Principle 5: the effective abolition of child labour; and
Principle 6: the elimination of discrimination in respect of employment and occupation.

Environment

Principle 7: Businesses should support a precautionary approach to environmental
challenges;

Principle 8: undertake initiatives to promote greater environmental responsibility; and

Principle 9: encourage the development and diffusion of environmentally friendly
technologies.

Anti-Corruption

Principle 10: Businesses should work against corruption in all its forms, including extortion
and bribery.

Annual Report 2025 72
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FSC CHAIN
OF CUSTODY
CERTIFICATION o

In our continued commitment to sustainability and environmental stewardship,
Roshan Packages Limited has successfully completed its transition to solar
energy across both our corrugation and flexible plants. Over 52% of our total
operations are now powered by renewable energy. This transition is projected to
reduce carbon emissions by approximately 0.85 kilograms of CO; for every
kilowatt-hour produced, while lowering monthly eleciricity consumption by over
50,000 units. These efforts directly advance the United Nations Sustainable
Development Goals (SDGs), particularly Goal 7. Affordable and Clean Energy,
and Goal 13: Climate Action. By embracing renewable energy at scale, we
continue to move beyond sustainability, towards true climate resilience for our
business and the communities we serve.

Roshan Packages Limited proudly maintains its FSC Chain of Custody (CoC)
certification for the corrugation plant. This certification ensures that the materials
we use primarily recycled paper from paper mills, sourced and processed

responsibly in line with the Forest Stewardship Council (FSC) standards.

The CoC certification tracks materials through every stage of production, from
responsibly managed sources to the final product. At Roshan Packages, our
entire process remains sustainable, ensuring our recycled paper and corrugated
cartons meet rigorous environmental, ethical, and social standards.

Wastage generated during production is pressed into bales and sent back to
paper mills for recycling, creating a closed-loop system that minimizes waste and
CONSErvVes resources.

For our customers, this certification ensures that our packaging solutions are
both high quality and environmentally responsible. In FY 2024-25, Roshan
Packages successfully renewed its FSC certification through cantinuous
improvement audits, reaffirming our long-term commitment to sustainable
sourcing, eco-friendly manufacturing, and global environmental stewardship.
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HEALTH,
SAFETY
AND

WELL BEING

Workplace Safety

Roshan Packages Limited has implemented a robust prevention and reporting
mechanism for near miss incidents, first aid cases, medical cases, restricted work
cases, lost time injuries, on site fatal injury incidents and recorded Injuries. Regular
trainings are camied out to train our EHS and general staff on workplace safety
measures and best praclices. Our EHS department is in charge of recording, rool
cause analysis and infroducing preventative measures for incidents.

Health And Wellbeing

We believe that taking care of our own health is the first step towards building healthy

communities. On this World Health Day, we organized a free medical check-up session
for our employees, in collaboration with Niazi Hospital, at our Head Office. Moreover,
we parinered with a PHD Psychologist to conduct a session on stress management and
the harmful effects of stress. Additionally, we have signed an MOU with Niazi Hospital
that has allowed our employees to avail 20% discount on most of their services
including lab tesis. Our permanent employees are offered Inpatient Depariment (IPD)
insurance, EOBI contributions, PESSI contributions, life insurance, interest free loans,
advance salary options, gratuity for their service, marriage grants and death grants for
next of kin. We alsa operate shuttle services across Lahore for our employees as well
as shuttles to and from our Head Office and Plants. Moreover, free and subsidised food
s offered at our plants.

73 AnnualReport2025
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Capacity Building
At Roshan Packages Limited, we are deeply committed to the growth and development
of our dedicated team members. Over the past year, we've invested significantly in a

diverse range of fraining modules, equipping our employees with the skills they need to
excel in their roles.

What sets us apart is our tailored approach to training. We undersiand that different
skillsets are required at various stages of one's career. That's why we offer both intemnal
and external training opportunities, depending on specific requirements. Our internal
programs are designed to address our unique organizational needs and challenges and
focus on both hard and soft skills.

Performance Management

Our newly introduced online and paperless Performance Management System along
with trainings for all employees which allows us to measure employee performance in a
transparent and guantifiable way.

Corporate Social Events

Inorder to enhance employee engagement and recognize their services, Roshan
Packages Limited organizes various social events throughout the year, including
Intemational Women's Day, Long Service Awards, Mango Socials and Sporting and
gaming events and recreational trips.

Child Labor

Al Roshan Packages Limited, we are deeply committed to ethical and respansible
business practices. As part of our ongoing efforts to uphold the highest standards, we
strictly adhere to the SEDEX SMETA audit guidelines, ensuring annual renewal and
compliance. Specifically, we have a zero-tolerance policy for child labor in any form.

Freedom Of Association

We place a strong emphasis on the fundamental rights of our employees, including
their freedom of assoclation. Our commitment to upholding this right is in full
compliance with the Sedex requirements. At the Corrugation Plant, we have established
a Workers Council, which provides a platform for our employees 1o voice their
poncerns, ideas, and needs. We respect and support their right to form and join trade
unions or other worker organizations of their choice, We encourage open dialogue and
participation in decision-making processes. Through these practices, we aim lo creale a
workplace thal respects diversity, fosters collaboration, and empowers our workforce,
ensuring their voices are heard, and their rights are protected.

AnnualReport2025
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CODE OF
CONDUCT

Roshan Packages Limited prides itseif on its honesty, integrity and commitment
to ethical practices and behaviors when conducting business. Our key focus is to
carry out operations that are in compliance with all laws and regulations that
govern our business and industry as a whole. It is through this robust foundation
that we have created and preserved our corporate image, which we consider to
be one of our most valuable assets, and place great importance on it being
upheld by each employee of the organization.

Our Code of Conduct has been drafted to maintain our reputation as a fair and honest
enterprise, and it covers a number of areas that detail our corporate policies in all
circumstances, The adherence of this Code js mandatery and tantamount on all
employees, affiliates and associates of Roshan Packages nationwide to preserve the
integrity of the image that has been bullt by the organization, and to continue to actin a
fair and just manner in its operations.

The Company places great importance on checking for compliance with the Code by
providing suitable information, prevention and control system and ensuring
transparency in all transactions and behaviors by taking creative measures as needed.

General Principles And Ethical Standards

Transparency, honesty and fair play are the tenets on which we operate, and the
Company's business must always act in accordance with these pillars in good faith and
full compliance. We alm to treal all our stakeholders, employees, customers and
community members equally, and have no room for discrimination or corruption within
our mandate. Consequently, we place the onus of respecting and following the
principles, policies and contents of the Code, without any distinction or exception
whatsoever, on all our empleyees. Any action that comes in direct conflict with the
Code, regardless of the reasoning and stipulations behind said action, is and will
always be unacceplable to the Company,

We expect all employees to place sincerity, honesty and decency at the forefront of all
their interactions while under the employ of the Company. Conflicts of interest between
privale financial activities and Company business conduct must be avoided. The
Company holds supreme the values of this Code, and any breach or deviation will be
classified as misconduct, which may lead to disciplinary action in accordance with the
Company's charter and any relevant laws, regulations or statutes.

Whistle Blowing Policy

Roshan Packages ensures that a high ethical standard is maintained in all its business
activities, and an established Code of Conduct governs the management of its business across
the organizalion. To that end, the Company has also established a whistle-blowing palicy
designed to safeguard its Code and ensures thal any contravention are swiftly adhered to. The
Whistle blewing Policy provides a channel for the organization's employees and other relevant
stakeholders to raise concerns about workplace malpractice in a confidential manner, and for
the Organization to investigate alleged malpractics, taking steps to deal with such in a manner
consistent with the organization's policles and procedures and relevant regulations, The
Company encourages whistie blowers to raise their Issues directly with the competent
autharity, their immediate supenors, the Human Resource Depariment, senior management, or
the CEQ. All concerns raised are assessed in an objective and independent manner with
reasonable protection being ensured 1o the whistle blower.

Investor Relations

The Company maintains an 'Investor Information’ section on its website for providing
detalled information, along with an Investors' Grievance Form for property addressing
any concems that its investors may have. Additionally, the Company operates a
dedicated email address for investor complaints at corporate@roshanpackages.com.pk

A Corporate Officer is also designated to coordinate with investors and mitigate any
issues that they may be facing, along with providing adequate guidance for their
concems.

Tax Policy

At Roshan Packages Limited, we adhere to all tax compliance standards in Pakistan.
We exclusively engage with vendors, suppliers and customers who demonstrate their
commitment to tax obligations. We diligently verify tax credentials and compliance
status before entering into business relationships. Our tax policy emphasizes ethical
conduct and adherence lo all relevant tax laws and regulations, fostering a transparent
and responsible business environment. Our aim is to collaborate with tax-compliant
partners to ensure the sustainability and legality of our operations while contributing to
Pakistan's economic growth.




Customer Privacy

At RPL safeguarding our customer’s privacy is paramount. We collect and use contact
information solely for the purpoese of providing our products and services efficiently, We
do not share or sell your data to third parties.

Anti-corruption, Financial Probity; Conflict Of Interest

Employees must ensure that there Is no conflict or Incompatibility between their
interests, whether pecuniary (i.e. money) or non-pecuniary, and the impartial fulfiliment
of their duties. It is not possible 10 define all potential areas of conflict of interest, but
several situations are referred o below,

Gifis and hospitality are offered where there Is an expectation of a return favor
(which may or may not be to the detriment of the company).

Additional employment that prevents or hinders the performance of a person in their
role.

Decisions regarding the employment or promotion of relatives or friends.
Promotion or soliciting of clients for their own private business.

If an employee becomes aware of the potential confiict of interest, then they must notify
their manager & HRD of the potential or actual conflict of interest. The organization
expects employees to;

Declare any likely conflict of interest to supervisors & HRD.
Avold any detrimental outcome because of a conflict of interest.

If an employee is in doubt as to whether a conflict exists, they must contact their
manager, Wherever possible employees should try 1o disqualify themselves from
situations of conflict of Interest, Whera an employee has an impartiality, financial or
praximity interest in any matter regarding provisions outlined within this Code, or which
might be perceived as conflicting with the interest of another person who may be
affected then the employee must immediately disclose this lo the HR Department or al
the meeting if prior disclosure is not possible.

Fallure to do so will be considered a breach of the Code of Conduct and will result in
disciplinary action.

Discrimination & Equal Employment Opportunity
Roshan Packages is committed to making scrupulous efforts to deal with discrimination
and it is an equal-opportunity employer. Anti-discrimination laws provide guidelines on
respecting personal differences. Trealing people differently based on personal
characteristics is unlawful. The following are examples of attributes: age, gender
political belief, personal association, race, ethnic background, career status, marital
status, religious belief/activity, physical features, and disability. Discrimination is
unacceptable conduct within Roshan packages and all reported incidents will be
investigated.

Workplace Harassment

Roshan Packages has a legal, moral, and social responsibility to ensure that there Is no
discrimination or harassment in the workplace. Roshan Packages is commitled to
developing an environment thal promotes respect for all employees. The term
“workplace harassment” covers any and all types of harassment that may happen in a
professional setting. It's not limited to sexual harassment either; anything that makes
someone feel uncomfortable or unsafe in their work environment is considered an
instance of workplace harassment. Harassment is any type of behavior that:

Offends, embarrasses, or scares them, and may be either sexual or non-sexual In
nature.

«  Targets them because of their race, sex, nalional origin, citizenship, pregnancy, or
other protecled attributes under the law.

«  Harassment does nol have lo be a series of incidents or an ongoing pattern of
behavior but rather a single instance of harassment can be grounds for
disciplinary action.

Sexual Harassment

Sexual harassment can mean harassment caused by a person’s sex that makes the
harassed feel uncomfortable, unsafe, or humiliated. In the workplace, there are two
common types of sexual harassment: quid pro quo and hostile work environment.

Quid pro quo sexual harassment refers to the action of exchanging sexual favors for
something, which can be a benefit or prevention of a detriment. A hostile work
environment is any Incident or event that leads to general discomfort, humiliation, or
fear for those involved

Examples include:
« Verbal or wrilten abuse, threals, or intimidation,
« Unwelcome physical assaull or unwanted touching, rubbing or hugging

« Sexual Innuendes in conversation

Harassment at the workplace under the applicable law of the country is a criminal
offense and the company In such instances would initiate strict disciplinary action up to
and including criminal proceedings against an employee violating the code & applicable
policies. If you experience or become aware of an act of discrimination or harassment,
it is your duty to report it to the HR department.

*The examples provided are not exhaustive and other forms of misconduct or misuse
may exist.
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GENDER EQUALITY Al

“Packages Limited.

ROSHANr;u@mv.--“ e
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q ~ ' In celebration of international Women's Day, Roshan Packages Limited !

proudly hosted a day-long event dedicated to empowering our incredible

women employees. The celebrations began with a vibrant painting

competition at our offices, where women showcased their creativity and

strength through art, followed by engaging sessions that highlighted

resilience and empowerment.

The event was graced by the presence of our leadership team, whose
encouraging words recognized women as the true Sheroes of Roshan
Packages, celebrating them as both herces and trailblazers in the
workpiace. The day concluded with recognition awards presented to our
women employees, honoring their contributions and achievements
across different roles.

To further support and encourage our women workforce, we introduced
i _ Ny vy 2 expanded initiatives including enhanced pick-and-drop services and
; q.u ] = A .01/ b P e - financial assistance programs such as loans for scooters, ensuring
o ¥ independence, safety, and mobility for all. These steps reflect our

Gender Pay Gap Statement under Circular 10 of 2024 Roshan Packages Limited: o commitment to enabling women to thrive not only within the workplace
Following is the gender pay gap calculated for the year ended June 30, 2025; : but also beyond it.

(Gender Mean Median —— At Roshan Packages Limited, we are dedicated to fostering an inclusive
84 275 65,000 s ¢ | and supportive environment. Our comprehensive discrimination and
Famain 11;”&9 5@@@9 .- il sexual harassment policy ensures a safe workplace, and as an equal
opportunity employer, we continue to strive for diversity and equality
across all levels of our organization. With the efforts of our HR and
Al Roshan Packages Limited, we are committed to promoting gender equality and - Sustainability offices, we remain committed to training programs that
reducing the gender pay gap within the organization. Our efforts include conducting a promote gender equality and empowerment. Here's to the remarkable
regular pay audils, reviewing our hiring and promotion practices, and providing equal S women who continue to inspire us every day—our Sherpes.
opportunities for growth and development to all employees, regardless of gender,
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I N D U ST RY Roshan Packages Limited is commitied to strengthening industry-

academia linkages as a key driver of sustainability and innovation. Our

A‘ A D E M |A collaborations with educational institutions help bridge the gap between

gl = L theoretical knowledge and practical application, contributing to the
L I N KAG ES p United Nations Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs), particularly p—
W N _ SDG 4 (Quality Education) and SDG 12 (Responsible Consumption and o
o - :
A A Freduction).
Ly 15.!. QL

~ F‘— - ' i We signed Memorandums of Understanding (MoUs) with the University
: A X . 3 _ . e = of Lahore (UOL) and the University of Central Punjab (UCP), formalizing
A ﬁ, o N long-term partnerships to advance sustainable packaging education,

4 : : \ s 3 it & o < : - research, and practical learning opportunities. These collaborations

i

» - ; , : ' : - ' further our mission to create stronger connections between academia
- : ) R LA 3§/ ’ < o R = B and industry.

Building on the success of our earlier initiatives, we expanded our
. , : r : 5 - i packaging workshop series to leading universities across Lahore,
’3, i B ' y Aeer S | &% including UOL, FCCU, LSE, UCP, and UMT. These interactive sessions
4 ' : s P ) g ' , provided students and entrepreneurs with practical knowledge on food
; T safety standards, sustainable packaging, and the circular economy,
highlighting the importance of environmentally responsible practices in
business.

Our commitment also extended to active participation in university job
fairs, including those at FCCU, UOL, and Punjab University, creating
opportunities for young professionals to explore careers in sustainability.
In addition, we welcomed students from institutions such as NUML and
UMT for factory tours of our corrugation and flexible units, offering first-
hand insights into sustainable production processes.

We also continued our engagement with studenis at the Annual Tutorial
at Kinnaird College for Women, reinforcing our commitment to SDG 5
(Gender Equality), and hosted faculty and student-focused internship
programs with UMT, where projects combined sustainability with
community-driven initiatives.

\

Through these |nitiatives, Roshan Packages Limited continues to
promote strong industry-academia partnerships, equipping students with
the knowledge and skills they need to address sustainability challenges
and became future leaders in responsible production.
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0 ﬁ:?sr}‘tuaarl pﬁggﬁ;t@%ﬂﬁ%ﬁo m.pk roshanpackages.com.pk



As part of our ongoing commitment to community well-being and the United
Nations Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs), particularly Goal 3. Good
Health and Well-Being, Roshan Packages Limited organized a series of Free
Medical Checkup Camps acrass both our corrugation and flexible packaging
plants.

In collaboration with leading healthcare institutions including Evercare Hospital
and IDC (Integrated Diagnostic Center), we facllitated comprehensive health
screenings for our employees and nearby communities. These camps included
general medical checkups, diagnostic services, and specialized awareness
sessions focusing on cardiac health, workplace weliness, and preventive care.

Through our partnership with Evercare Hospital, we also extended subsidized
nealthcare packages for employees and their families, ensuring continued
access to quality medical support. Similarly, our collaboration with IDC enabled
employees to benefit from discounted diagnostic services.

These initiatives reflect Roshan Packages Limited's deep-rooted commitment to
nurturing healthier communities, promoting preventive healthcare, and
contributing to a more sustainable and inclusive future.
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UPCYCLED AND
RECYCLED
PRODUCTS

At Roshan Packages Limited, our perspective on sustainable and eco-friendly
packaging sclutions is rooted in a groundbreaking Initiative - upcycling. We understand
thal it's not enough to simply recycle; our goal is to upcycle, a process where we create
new products from waste materials. For instance, we've hamessed leftover paper from
various jobs to craft shopping bags for businesses. This Initiative not only provides
sustainable custom-packaging options for small and medium-sized enterprises but also
advances our commitment to environmental responsibility.

In our quest to reduce plastic use in everyday items, we've introduced a range of
corrugated paper products crafted from 100% recycled corrugated sheets. These
innovative products Include paper bags, laptop stands, desk organizers, and household
essentials such as clothing hangers. Our aim is to replace plastic in daily use with
sustainable, recyclable alteratives, taking a significant step towards establishing a
circular economy where materials are recycled and repurposed for as long as possible.

At our corrugation plant, we annually utilize 50,000 tons of recycled paper and actively
facilitate its recycling, underscoring our dedication to reducing waste and promoting
sustainability. Furthermore, we are proud to report that we recycle 100% of the waste
generated in our manufacturing process, a testament to our commitment to this
initiative. Even plastic waste trimmings from all jobs at our flexible plant find a new
purpose as they are responsibly recycled through EPA approved vendors.

Our perspective on upcycling and recycling is nol just an inifiative; it's a reflection of our
core values and a testament to our commitment to a greener, more sustainable future.

Qur Corrugated Laptop Stand, Desk Organiser and Recycled Paper Bags are all
available for purchase at www.roshpack.com.

g7 AnnualReEpbri2025
roshanpackages.com.pk

LEADING PAKISTAN’S
RECYCLING
RENAISSANCE

In a country where recycling and waste collection services have often been an
afterthought, Roshan Packages Limited is taking a momentous step forward with the
establishment of Roshan Sun Tao Paper Mills (Pvi.) Limited. This state-of-the-ari
recycling paper mill is not just a groundbreaking business endeavor; it's a resounding
community service.

In Pakistan, the landscape of recycling and waste management has often been
characterized by inefficiency and inadequacy. Our mission is to revolutionize this space
by addressing these critical gaps, and in doing so, providing a service that goes beyond
the bottom line.

Roshan Sun Taa Paper Mills (Pvi.) Limited stands as a beacon of change, a testament
to our commitment to sustainability, and an embodiment of our corporate values, We
are fully aware that paper mills in Pakistan have frequently been marred by
substandard practices, leading to unnecessary waste of valuable fibers and the
unfortunate pollution of our precious water resources. Our paper mill, however, Is
poised to rewrite this narrative.

Our vision for Roshan Sun Tao Paper Mills (Pvt.) Limited is multifaceted. Firstly, we are
determined to set new industry standards by reducing waste, conserving valuable
fibers, and employing ecofriendly practices. We firmly believe that responsible business
is a comerstone of sustainable development,

Secondly, Roshan Sun Tao Paper Mills (Pvt.) Limited opens doors to new export
opportunities, placing Pakistan on the global map as a provider of quality, recycled
paper products, This not only boosts our economy but also extends our commitment to
the broader global community.

Moreover, our new venture signifies a move towards vertical and circular integration. It's
a commitment to responsible resource management, reducing waste, and actively
participating in the circular economy. This reflects our corporate ethos of not just doing
business but doing it right.

In summary, Roshan Sun Tao Paper Mills (Pvt.) Limited is more than just an industrial
endeavor; it's a testament to our unwavering commitment to fostering positive change
within our community and beyond. It's an investment in a greener, more sustainable

future, one where innovation meets responsibility, and business meets community
service.

AnnbalReport2025
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C OM M ITM E N T TO In 2.025, Roshan Eai::kagfe:s Limitedi cur!tinl..lteldl’(u‘ strengther} its cpmmitmept to
ENVIRONMENTAL s Sssinlip Dvlgpment Goas (S i it spord 8DG 1
S U STAI NAB I L ITY (Climate Action), SDG 14 (Life Below Water), SDG 15 (Life on Land), and SDG 4

(Quality Education), underscoring our long-term vision to protect ecosystems,
promote responsible practices, and empower communities through

environmental education.

Building on previous years' efforts, we collaborated with universities and
community organizations to organize awareness drives, plantation campaigns,
and waste management activities across Lahore and Karachi. These initiatives
encouraged students and local residents to take ownership of their surroundings
and contribute to a cleaner, greener Pakistan.

Roshan Packages also continued to engage the youth through sustainability-
e d focused educational programs and workshops, fostering environmental
— responsibility and innovation among the next generation. Through these
. e collaborations, we aim to inspire actionable change and cultivate a culture of
1 =~ environmental stewardship.

=~ =~ Our commitment remains steadfast—to protect life on land and below water,

e 5 "‘”" . mitigate climate impact, and invest in education that drives sustainable
; - transformation. By empowering individuals and institutions alike, Roshan
s o . e Packages Limited continues to pave the way for a cleaner, healthier, and more

susiainable Pakistan,
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DIRECTORS' REPORT IO THE SHAREHOLDERS

The Directors of Roslun Pagkages Limited (“the Company™) arg pleased to present their report,
together with the audited fimancinl statements of the Company for the vear ended 30 June 2023,

ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW

The year under review was marked by a chollenging macroeconomic environment, both globally
i domesncally. Pokistan’s economy continued to experiencs pressures from high milation. steep
inferest rades, cumrency volatility, sad constramod consumier demund, Supply cham dsrupions,
higher energy costs, and rivmg mput praices ulso created a diffivult operating backdrop far the
puckaging and allied indusiries.

Despile (hese adverse conditions, Roshan Packiges Limbled demonsimited resilicoce andd
adapratility, The Company mansged o sustan operations, optimice costs. and projeat misrloe
shuwe throneh disciplined fnancial manasement gnd strtegie foous on elficiency, Volumes in
certain segments were impacted dus to reduced demand trom key sectors: however, management
responded by recalibrating  producton planming, strengthemng procwrement strafegies, and
focusing on Jugher value-added products.

Waorking capitnl remained under stress given the prevailing ligurdity conditions in the econerniy.
but prudent measimes wore wken 6 safepiard the Company’s fnaneal stebility, Imistives
ircluded lighter eredit controls, more ngorous receivible momiorng, and enlunced cash fow
manugemednt. At the same time, emphasis was placed on stiengthening governines, sk
managemient, and operationn] controls (0 preserve stakeholder confidence.

In purallel, Roshan Packiges continued i long-lerm inyestment agenda, pantcwarly m the
develppment of 8 bockword ntegeation paper mill project, which will enlance supply chain
independence and reduce relance on imported raw material. Investments in digitalization, ERP
mmpreverments, and homan capital development also remamed a prionty, laying the foundition for
fiiture competitivensss.

Overall. while the year’s performmnee reflects the headwinds need by the broader economy, (he
Comipany s stiatepie tesilicnee, eosl disciplme. aod commitment W sustanability positioned itie
Withstand short-ferm prossues dod prepace for leng-term growih.

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

For the year ended June 30. 20235, Roshan Packages |.imired recorced ner wmover of Rs; 9,001
millon compared lo Bs: 10,334 million m FY 2024, reflecting & decline of 6:3% mainly due 1o
lower volumes. Despite this, @ focus on high-value products and disciplined pricing bolped sustom
LIS,

Operiting profil stood at RE 363 million against Be, 448 saillion lost year, mipacied by higher raw
material and energy costs, Finanee costs reduced 1o Rs, 190 willion froo Rs, 300 mitfion owing
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o improved wotk ing-capital mosgerent and lower borrowings, Conseguently, profil befire tax
wits e 196 million (FY 2024; R, 416 mithon ), and proii after tux wis B, 147 milllon (Fy 2024
R 211 million}, tronslstmg mibe garmiings per share of s 99 (FY 2024 Ra. |.49),

While results Show o vear-on-year decling, the Compuny's ability o myintiin profiubility pnder
SEVere macrneconame pressures — imcluding eurrency devaluanom, high interest rates, snd supply
chan disruptions - demonstrates managoment s prident locus on prigmg. product max, and cost
conirol, Cioing forward, the Company will continge to build oo its sirong customer base. expand
it higher-margm segnients. and enhance operational effiviencies (o safepunrd proficability and
shurhol dervaloe,

ws 2024
Rupees in UK
Turnover - Net 9,92 10333516
Opcrating profil IH2.024 448,137
Finanee eost (EARIT 00714
Prafit hefore 1y 193,739 d13. 730
Profit after tax 141,040 211,262
Earnings P'er Share (.99 1.49

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES, DEVELOPMENT & PERFORMANCE

The Company manufactures corrugated and Mexible packagng for leading FMCG and industnal
elients, Trechine in volumes from some large customers wits ofTser by beer prcing and high-value
progluets, The Company mamtimed strong customer relationships with top-tier corponiles snd
multinational  clieats,  delivening  iernationsl-quality  produets: and  maintuining  customer
satstoction

DIVIDEND & RESERVES

Inwview of warkmge-capital regairements and planned brvestmontan the subsidiney, the Board has
nat recontmendid amy dividend for FY 2005 and no treansfer 1o Genersl Reserve has been prioposed.
The Company éxpects 10 resuine dividends onsee foancial commpments i expansion plaus
stubilize

Anniial Repor 2025
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SUBSIHHARY - ROSHAN SUN TAO PAPER MILLS (PRIVATE) LIMITED

Roshan Sun Tuo Paper Mills (Private) Limited ("RSTPML") is 2 wholly owned subsidiney of
Raslian Packnges Limited, meorporated to establish a teehnologieally advanedd reeveled paper
nignufactrng Beiliy o Pakiston, The Company’s principul setivitios remum the it
trading, and supply of corrugated paper and allied products; however, commercinl Sperations are
yel 10 commence as e Subsidiary contmuzs 10 operate ih its pre-operational phase, Durimg the
yeur enided 20 June 2025, e Campany reported & mel [oss of Rs, 304 million (2024, Rs, 1862
million) with an  loss pershare (LPS) of Rs. (571 2024; Bs, (2501 No changes oveured in
the nafure of the business during the year, nor were there nmy defiults in debt repayments, Financiil
support from e parent eompany femained entical, including equity commitments of” Rs, 900
million, an enboocement of the long-term loan facility w Rs 8060 milhon, and sharcholder spproval
for o cepital inerease o atlow partiol converston of loans into equity, Key directors durimg the year
were Mr. Taysab Agar (CED) M Zaki Avoe, Mo Quasing Adjaz, Mo Saadet Adjaz, and M.
Khalid Eijaz Qureshi. Theauditors hove emphasized the going coticem assumption 1o i report.
But the Board is satistied (hiat continuid support from (he hinlding company ensores the Company’s
Jiabilivy. Inrerrial fimncial contrls huve been reviewed and are considercd adeguate given the
current stage of operalions

Future Prospects and Statutory Disclosures: A revised feasibility study has estimpled fotal
projeet cost @t Re 6,63 hillion (excluding mieresth, with negotiations for EPC and financimg
npreements actively underway, Drafl werm sheets from commercial banks have been recelved. gnd
epmimercial operations are expected to commenee withm twin sears of finsmetal closure, Key nisks
faced by the subsidiary nclade delays in finuneial close and EPC Analization, volatility in
exchange and interest rates affeoting imported equipment costs. and segubatory/enyironmentl
approvals: the Board continues (o monitor und anfigate these through prosctive engagement wilh
stakeholders. Under Section 208 of the Compames Act. 2007, relatsd-panty transactions with (he
holding company ineluded a loan Baeility of Ra. 200 million to fund praject costs and Rs. 15 million
for ddministratve/support services, both approved by the Bourd and jostified us being m the best
interest of the subsidiary on arm’slength erms, RSTPMI Femins wholly swned by Roshan
Packnges  Linuted (RPL} with no change in sharcholding patiem. In view of the -
operational status and accumulated losses, the Board has not reeommended any dividend or
Irpsfer 10 reserves, While operations bave nol begun, the subsidisry, through its parent.
contribites 1o environmiental and social résponsibility ininatives, m:lu:linb renewable energy
mvestments, recyaling, sl commumty programs. The Directors confinn complaance with
applicahle TERS and stotwtory  reqguirements and sckoowledse the continued  suppon of
sharcholders, employees. reguliiors, and financial partness in driving the subsudiary wwards s
lomg-term ohjective

PRINCIPAL RISKS & UNCERTAINTIES
Koy rigks faced by the Company include.
«  High mput ¢osts ind currency valptilin

s knergy poce inldrdises;
»  Climate change and Moods affeennyg supply chains:

Annial Repon 245
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«  Beduced demand from bivge buvers:
= (ilobalsupply-chain disruptions and regional pohitical jnstability

Rish-rumnagenent metseres include diversified svarting, wost control, solur-enerey setermtion.
reeyeling mitatives, sirang internil contrals andl regnlar Board oversigh

CHANGES IN NATURE OF BUSINESS / OTHER INTERESTS
Ny ¢hitnge oceurmed durmg FY2025 1 the matury af e Susingss of the Cnimpany or its subsidiary.
IMPACT ON ENVIRONMENT, SUSTAINABILITY & CSR ACTIVITIES

The Cbsspany ceriplies wilth dutions] dnd nternitions) caveronmentnl standaeds, 1o FY2025 the
Company meteased investment in eeo-friendly materinls, recyclable products snd encrpy-eflicient
prrocesses, wetivuly comtrbuting to the croular seohomy. CSR-auioanes foetsed on eovirbmental
protEcon, eommur iy suppon and enploives shill developiment.

MHUMAN RES(MWRCE DEVELOPMENT

Lnplovees demonstmed excentiounl dedicirim o susiining opecabions and secunng the supply
chain for crinenl seetors: Management continues 1o foster o strong. odapmble o resourceiul team
nligned withvoperaional excellenee.

SUSTAINABILITY

At Toshon Packages Limnted (RPL), sustimability s Grsly embedded m our Busiiess shalegy

and operations. As i keading pleyer in te pockogng mdustry, we remin comupnitied o minmizing

or gnviconmental foopeint while doving inmovation in sustamshle and recyclahle prckaging
solnbions. RPL has-constently oy ested moceo-tvendly raw muerials, enerey-ctiicient processes,
aou repewable enerey initintives, neloding the iosuallaon of s salnr power plont 1oredice carbon
erarssionsind enhancy operationdl resilence

In alignmen with Regulation 10A of the Listed Compames 1Code of Comporate Goy cragnoe
Regulations. 201%, the Board has constiuted 3 dedieated Sustamability ©ommittes, enmprising,
directors incloding at least one lemale member. The Commtice w mondated o oversee
sustainabuline-relited nsks and pppormanities, montor complinnee with applicable enyimomental,
socigl ond governonee (ESG) regulafions, and ensure the intepmtion of Diversity, Equiry omd
Ineluston (DE&D practices senss the Company,

Through strategic partnerships. collaborative nibatives, and @ focus on circular sconomy
prmeples. RUOL 1= wotking to meet aod exeecd global ststitiibality stuodacds, Oue commitmenl
refiscts o long-term vision of ereating shaved value fir our cusromers, shireliolders. employess,
il Boeiety s lufue

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

During the vear_ the Company remagined focused on sustainability, eovinmmenal protecton,
shill ideveloprmient intotves, Monogement recopmizes el social. envimmmental, and ethivpl

Anniial Reporl 2025
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comsidesations are integral © long-temm busingss suceess and form an essentdl part of all e T G 4 0 5 S AT Ui P o BTt 8T T e P o
opbritional and strategie decistons, A detailed review of the Company’s CSR activitics anid R
initiatives s presented separately inthe Anaual Repurt. s =

Zgyiieelatedpacty  felipweshin el the Coeriwary  Porvesiagr ol sludohalilg Sostuer ol §rannetin Rwpies Hapmes
ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

ol S s P | =g drwr it L o= o0 LR ] R Y
The Board has reviewed and found the intemal control framework adequate and elfeelive Nl (P s B . | ey e e
Independent internal audit reports are presented regularly to the Audit Committee and the Board. Ter—— mLSEEEI 70N

Gl Brpesis bimes AETH LN
PERF[]M‘IANCE E‘PALL'_‘E‘]‘IUN (][“ B{}m thn C(}MMI.ITEE.E &l lu\l.l.u-l-iq-!-lll.n- wwhw Wy Elalam i LT urﬁh‘:n!ﬁwn- d '1,11.|Iw,;|
sttt i Tk s oo linrmi g D post) PRI R s

In compliance with the Code of Corporate Govermance, the Board carried out a seli~evaluation el il i e
through » comprehensive guestiomire. The overall performance ratmg was sabisfactory: areas for e e U T WA PRt ot o M it MR e
provement have been identified m Lne with plobal best prociices. s o st e i e
DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION POLICY
Tn wecordupee with Seetion 227(2) of the Companies Act, 2017 and Regulanion 34 of the Listed PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
Companigs (Code of Corporate Govemanee) Regulatons, 2019, as per the company’s : - . ' . _ \ _
remumeration policy. the Company discloses the remuneration paid or payable to gach Director Tl:lu patiem of shuruhrl_rldmg as required m?dur the Lumpumus Act, 2017 and the Listed Companies
and the Chiel Exeeutive Gfficer. This mcludes basic salory, mecting fees. allowances and benefits (Code of Corporate Goyernance) Regulations, 2019 is annexed 1o the annual repost,
in kind, bonuses and performance-linked incentives, pension, gratuity. provident fund o
contributions, or other incentives, and any sdditipna) perquisités, Non-Ixecutive und Independent BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Directors are paid only meeting fees duly approved by the Board, and no Director tukes part in ) \ . _
determiming his or her awn remuneration. The aggregate and individual remuneration details of Directors serving during FY 2025:

the Directors and the Chiel” Executive Officer are presented separsicly w this Annual Report o
ensure full transparency for shareholders, I, Mr. Quasim Aljaz
2. M. Tayyah Aijaz (CEO)
The term “executive” as determined by the Board means the Chiel Financial Officer, Deputy 3. Mr. Baadat Atjaz
General Manager, Plant Heads, Head of Sales and Marketing and  all whelestime working 4. M Zaki Aijaz
departmental heads of the Compary 5. Mr. Khalid Eyaz Quresh
6, Mr. Nadeem Amjad Khun
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 7o My, Avesla Musaddaque Humid
Al related-party transaetions during the year were comduoted at aom’s fength prices snd i the
ordinary course of business. The Borrd conlirms that necessary approvals, wherever applicable,
were duly oblained in sccordance with Section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017,

COMPOSITION:

o Independent Directors: 2 (including | temale)
o Non-Executive Directors; 3
«  Exccutive Diroctors! 2

BOARD MEMBERS AND ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS

During the vear under review, Six (06) Board meetings were held which were attended by the
Dirgctors, ds per following detal:

9y Annual Report 2025 Arinual Repart 2025 100
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Name Status Meetings Atieaded
Mr. Quasim Aijuz Non-Executive Dhirector Ly
My Tayyab Aijaz CECVExecutive Director ne
My, Saudat Fijue Esuculive Director fify
My, Zaki Adjaz MNon-Executive Dirsctol e,
Alr. Khatid Eijaz Qureshi Non-Exeeutive Director 6
Mr. Nadeem Amjad Khan Independent Non-Excoutive Direcior | 06
Mrs. Ayvesha Musaddague Humid | Todependent Non-Execitive Director | 05

Leave of ahsence was granted to the bpartd members who could not attend the meeting.

AUDLT COMMITTEE ANR ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS
Diurtng e vewr uinder review, Five (59 Audir Chimiinge egtings were held und gitendance by its

mhembers was i 1ollaws:

N Rratus Meetings Attended
Mirs. Ayesha Musaddague Hamid L huirman 4
Mr. Quasim Aijus Mimiber 0z
M. Khalid Fijaz Qureshi Memnbar 03
Mr. Nudeem Amjud Khor Meibier 05
Mr. Zaki Adjaz Merriber i3

AUIHTORS' REPORT
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Mis, KPMG Taseer Hidl & Co., Chirtered Accountomts, retire gt the ¢onclusion ol this mecting
and have offered themselves for re-appointment, The Audit Comumitiee has recommended the
auditors” fee, wnd the Board hus endorsed their re-appointment. The muditors have issied an
unmadified opimion on the Company’s financtal statements, with no gualibieations or adverse
roinurks:

DEFAULTS IN PAYMENT OF DEBTS
There were po defaulls i paymient of debts or finaneial abligations durmy FY 2025,
GCENDER PAY GAP DISCLOSURE;

Under Crrcular 10 of 2024 following is te gender pay gap calealuted for the year ended Jime 30,
3025 At Roshan Packnees Limited we are conmitted to promuoting gender equabity and reducing
the gender pay gap within the organization. Our effors include conducting repulir pay sudins,
reviewing our himng and promotion practices. and provading equal opportumtics for growth and
devalopment to sl employees, regardless of gender

Gender  Maan Median
Male | 84375 | 55000
Female | 110,160 qp, 000

EaE

MATERIAL CHANGES & COMMITMENTS AFTER YEAR-END

Nomatenial clignges or gommitment offecting the financial position o the Company oceurred
betwien 30 June 2025 and the date of this repon.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENT

Looking ahesd, Roshan Packagds Limited remaing commined to s vision of sustainable srowth,
operational excellence, and value creation for its stakeholders, The Company is focusing on
strengthenimg its core packaging business, while also pursuing backward miggmtion through the
devilopment of a paper mill project, which is expected 1o enhinpee supply ehain security, reduce
cosls: and remiloree our sustainability agenta.

Wie cuintinye to invest in digialization, ERP enhancements, and qumomation o improve efficiency,
transparency, ond contral. At the same time, emphisis 5 being placed on tulent development,

Anmual Repart 2025 102
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organizational wansformation, and butldmg s performance-driven culture o ensure long-teom
competitivensss,

Om the business development front, the Company aims o oxpand ies product portfolio, explorne
pew export opporunities, and strepgthen relationships with multinational and domestie FMOG
customers, Strategie initialives in agneulture value cham and diversification into aflied businesses
will also support growth snd resilionce

While challenges such as inflation, currency volatlity, and hueh cost of financing may mmpact the
industry, management remains confident that disciplined financial management., customer-centric
strafegres, and a focus on ESG poneiples will enable RPL (0 navigate nsks and achieve sustzmable
profitabiliog,

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENRT ON INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Buoard acknowledges its responsibility Tor establishing and nigmtaming an adequate system of
iternil controls (o safeduard assets, ensure reliability of financial reporting and compliance with
apphcable hews-and regubitions

ACKNOWLEDGEMEN

The Board extends sincere appreciation to the management and employees for their dedicatipnand
fard work throughewt the year. Ther commitment has been imstrumental i pavigaling a
challenging environment and driving the Company's success.

We also express our gratitude to valued customoers, suppliers dnd binkmyg partners for the
continued trust and confidence in Roshin Packages Limined. We look forward 10 their ongoing
suppor. 85 we sustoln and accelerate prowth in the years shead

- /
=1} (v.8 \\J
- A4
I o
Ghief Exeoutlve Chalman
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING REPORT PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025
P i o Sl e e
e, Felled Namy al shaseholdnr Mumber of sharey  Per i _
Blrpctors, Thinf Enycutive Mhrsctar and thair spouseial and mir childimn Directors and thelr spousa{s) and minor childran
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0 e
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1 Hil =
L . - Il__auh; Development Financal Institullsne, Non Banking Fnancal Financial nstin i LOE7.800 arr
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1 1L0ATE00 077 a Lekeal 410 A 080670 1513
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! Lot Forelgn Tompaniss
I T - Others i i\ 5 433 ETE L
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RISKS

The objectives of the management are well aligned and harmonized with the
overall strategic objectives of the company. Following strategies were
adopted by the management to achieve its cbjectives:

Risk Mitigants

Technological The company continuously invests in expansion,

Obsolescence modernization, upgrading its manufacturing faclities and
keeping pace with advancements in technalogy in order to
remain competitive in future.

Business Risk The company stays compefitive and up lo date to face this
risk.

Foreign Exchange  The company is shifting towards local buying. However,

Risk some raw matenal Is not available locally due to which it
has to be imported. In order to mitigate this risk, the
company has shifled to on sight LC. Furthermore, the
company is trying it level best to negotiale prices with
customers to pass on these flucluations.

The company makes sure that it always has sufficient cash
fiows to meet its liabiliies on time. The company working
capital cycle is maintained through long term and short-
term borrowings and equity to maintain a proper mix
between different sources of finance to minimize risk.

Credit Risk The company has robust procedures for credit approval
and closely monilors the exposure of cradit limits fo access
the financial viability of all counter parties in order 1o avoid
nsk.

Diversification Risk The company is constantly investing in the diversification
of its businesses and technical expertise.

-z ._-".-F’_
y Sy N
Y g i

OPPORTUNITIES

Modern Technology

RPL is using state of the arl upgraded machinery in its operations giving ita
competitive edge in the market.

One stop for all packaging needs

RPL has the ability fo deliver a wide range of packaging solution from primary
packaging to secondary packaging. With this great stralegic edge, the Company i
in a tactical pasition to secure more local markel share and enjoy benefits of
economies of scale.

Strong Relationships

RPL believes in maintaining fong term business relationships with its customers,
suppliers and business pariners. RPL clientele majorly consisls of blue chip
companies and who have been working with RPL for many years.

Production Capacity

The Company aggressively pursues local and international markets to fully utiize its
potential capacity and earn higher return for its shareholders.

Backward Integration

RPL is investing in Roshan Sun Tao Paper Mills (Pvl) Limited, wholly owned
Subsidiary of RPL, aliowing backward integration. It will help RPL solve its raw
material constraints and provide uninterrupled supplies to its customers.

E-commerce Plat Form

Roshan Packages Limited is the first packaging company of Pakistan that has
infroduced an ecommerce porlal o meets the demand of individual & reached
masses. Through Roshpack.com we will tap into the growing needs of startups as
well a3 households.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT

To the members of Roshan Packages Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 ("the Regulations®)
prepared by the Board of Directors of Roshan Packages Limiled ("the Company”) for
the year ended 30 June 2025 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 36
of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of
Directors of the Company.Our responsibility is to review whether the Statemeant of
Compliance reflects the status of the Company's compliance with the provisions of
the Regulations and repor if it does not and to highlight any noncompliance with the
requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily o inguiries of the
Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by he Company 1o
comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financlal statements we are required to obtain an
understanding of the accounting and intemal control systems sufficient to plan the
audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to consider
whether the Board of Directors' stalement on internal control covers all risks and
controls or o form an opinion on the affectivenass of such intemal controls, the
Company's corporate governance procedures and risks,

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and
upon recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors
for their review and approval of ils related party transactions. We are only required
and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the
related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the
Audit Commitiae

Anneal Repod 2025
feshanpackanss. gaimn.ni

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us o ballave
that the Statement of Compliance does nol appropriately reflect the Company's
compliance, in all matenal respects, with the requirements contained in the
Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year endad 30 June 2025,

Lahore whie, Tancse Wal ale,

Dated: 06 Oclober 2025
UDIN: CR202510114dSPI2ATZ]

KPMG Taseer Hadl & Co
Chartered Accountants

Annisl Repor 2025
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTEElI COMPANIES

1 |] I'u-l_

WIEHAN BACH

i REORATE (= ERNANCE |Hjl'._;'| ATIC NS O

LGES LIMITED | YEAR ENMDING JUMNE 303 MIGF

Roshan Packages Limited (the “Company”) has complied with the requirements of Listed
Companies Code of Corparale Governance Regulations, 2019 (the "Regulations” ) in the following
manner:

1. The total number of directors are 7 as par the following:

2.

a Male: 6
b. Female: 1

The Camposition of Board is as follows:

a. Independent Directors: 02
i, Mr. Nadeem Amjad Khan
fi.  Mrs, Ayesha Musaddague Hamid (Femaie Director)
b. Non-Executive Directors: 03
|, Mr, Khalid Eijaz Qureshi
ii. Mr. Quasim Aljaz
fi. Mr. Zaki Ajjaz

¢, Executive Directors; 02

. Mr. Tayyab Aijaz
il Mr. Saadat Eijaz

The Company's current board of directors, alected on 28 October 2024, possess the
necessary skille, experience, indspendence and knowledge to fulfil its duties and
rasponsibllitles effectively. For Board comprising of seven members, one third of the
directors equate o 2.33. Two independent direstors have been appointed, however, the
fraction of 0.33 in such one third is not rounded up as one since the fraction is balow half
(0.5). Furthermara, the two Independent directors have the requisite skills, knowledga and
are capable of protecting the interest of minority shareholders.

The Directors have confirmed that none of them |s sarving as a director on more than
seven listed companies, including this Company.

. The Company has prepared a “Code of Conduct” and has ensured that appropriale sleps

have been tsken 0 disseminateé it throughout the company along with its supporting
policles and procedures.

5. The Board has developed & vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and

significant policies of the Company, The Board has ensured thal a complele record of
particulars of significant policies along with their date of approval or updating is maintained
by the company.

113 Annoal Report 2025
rosiianpackanes.eom.pk

. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decision on relevant matters

have been taken by the Board / sharaholdsr as empowerad by Ihe ralevant provisions of
the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) and the Regulations.

. Tha meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman. The Board has complied

with the requirements of the Act and the Regulations with respect to frequancy, recording
and circulating minutes of meeting of the Board,

. The Board have 2 formal policy and transparent procadures for remuneration of tha

directors In accordance with the Act and the Regulslions.

. The Board has arranged Director's Training program for the following:

I.  Mr. Nadeem Amijad Khan
I, Mr. Quasim Aljaz
. Mr. Saadat Eijaz
IV, Mr. Zaki Aljaz
V. Mr. Tayyab Aijaz
VI.  Mrs. Ayesha Musaddague Hamid

10. Tha Board has approved appointmeant of Chief Financial Officar, Company Secretary and

Head of imemal Audit, including their remuneration and lerms and conditions of
employment and compliad with relevant requirements of the Regulations.

11. Chief Finanicial Officer and Chial Execulive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements

before approval of the Board.
12. The Board has formed following mandatory commiliees comprising of members given
balaw:
Audit Committee:
MName
Mrs. Avesha mmumm umm
Mr. Quasim Ajjaz Member
Mr. Khalld Eijaz Qureshl Member
hmmﬂhz Member

Arnniusl Repor 2025
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Sustainability Committee:
- Status
mmhn!ﬂummqm Hamid Member
Mr. Zaki Aijaz Membar

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid Commilfiess have been formed, documented and
advised to the Committees for compliance.

14. The frequency of mestings (quarterly | half yearly | yearly) of the Commitiee was as per
following:
Audil Committee (twica in second quarter and onca in third and fourth quarter)

15. The Board has selup an effective Internal audit funclion o persons who are suitably
gualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with policies and
procedures of the Company.

16. The stalulory auditors of the Company have confirmad that they have been given a
satisfactory rating under the Quality Control Review program of the Instituta of Charterad
Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP), and registered with the Audit Oversighl Board of
Pakistan, thal they and all thelr pariners are in compliance with Inlernational Federation
of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by ICAP and that they and
the partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent,
dependent and non-dependent children) of the Chief Executive Officer, Chigf Financial
Officer, Head of Intemal Audit, Company Secretary or the Director of the Company.

17. The stalutory auditors or the persons associated with them have nol been appointed lo
provide olher services except in accordance with the Act, the Regulations or any other
regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC
guldelines In this regard.

18. We confirm that all other requirements of the Regulations 3.6.7,8.27.32,33 and 36 of the
Reguiations have been complied with.

19, Explanation for non-compliance with requiremeants other than regulations
3,6,7,B,27 32,33,36 are balow:

Anmal Report 2025
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Role of the mm s members i ﬂm
anrnhmm aulmi it hﬂmﬁl:;l'l.

By June 30,2022, ail the directors have acquirad
_ e

A fesst one femaie axacuiive has scqulred prascribed

'mmawmw

Resource and Remunsration Committee:
wu-hmmwm
mnﬁmufnmmm

mmmmamm

designated as such
Wrmmmm
‘eppropriste.

Hﬂt Mamagement Committes:

The Board eonatitute the risk management
mm fumbsrand cass of directies as it
may desm appropriae

I‘hlhnlnl stalements for umwmd
mrm 11 Docember 2024, ang 31 March

2025 wers required 10 disclose name of members of
Board's committees and the remunaration palicy for
Disclosure of Significant Policies on websie:
mmmm ﬂiﬁﬂ!ﬁﬂnm it

s
Pl
Quasim Aijaz
Chairman

281

2801

e

)
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To the members of Roshan Packages Limited

Report on the audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the annexed unconsolidatad financial siatements of Roshan Packages Limited
("the Company"), which comprise the unconsolidated statement of financlal position as at 30

June 2025, and the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, the unconsolidated statement of

coinprehensive income, the uhoonsolidated statement of changes in equity, the unconsolidated
stalement of cash flows for the year lhen ended, and notes o the unconsolidated financial
statemeants, including a summary of maleral accounting policy information and other explanalory
informalion, and we slate that we have abtained all the infommation and explanations which, 1o the
best of our knewledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our epinion and to the best of our infermation and according o the explanations given 1o us, the
unconsolidatad statement of finanmal pasition, unconsalldated statement of profit or loss, the
unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income; the unconsolidated statement of changes in
equity and the uncansolidated statement of cash flows together with the notes farming part thersof
conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the
nformation required by tha Companias Act. 2017 (XIX of 2017), In the manner s required and
raspectively arve a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 30 June 2025 and
of the profit, and olher comprehensive income, the changes in squity and ils cash flows for lhe
year then ended

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (I1SAs) as
applicable in Pakistan, Our responsibilities under those standards are further desaribed in the
Atditor's Responstbilittes for the Audit of the unconsolidated finanmal stalements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company In accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Instikie of
Charlered Accountants of Palsstan (the '(Code) and we have fulfiled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with Lhe Code. We believe that the audil svidence we have obtained
ie sufficlent and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinian;

Key Audil Matters

Kay audlt maltars are those matlers that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
i our audil of the unconsolidated financial statements of the current period, These matiers ware
addressed in the context of our audit of the unconsolldated financial stalements az 8 wholes, and
in forming our opinion therean, and we do not provide a separate opinian,

Anneal Report 2025
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Following 15 1he ey audil mallers

B

Fay audit matiers

How the matier wns sddressed in oar aodit

1

I- Reveiua
Relar o nobes 419 and 32 6o (i unsonsaldatén
finmnoist SigiEments,

| The-Company's fevanue far e poear andsd 30
Al 2005 weis R G BB aniflcn:

The: Gompany genrrats Tedenue fmim Sal= of
pEcking  material o domesbc | customars
Rdmiie £ 2 Wedy pesiborirasoe ndicto) and
lherefpre: I mbemal and extemal stahestmidas’
foous. Conssguerily, fers migh! be pressure o
gchieva [orgcasiEd esuks This could ead looan
Inernmid Al righ rlading Ly reviniies reimrdsd
nase yeEarant.

We menl find tecogivithon of radenus 353 kay il
Ml Berslse mevemes Boone of (e Kay
perinreancs rlestor of e Lompanly, s gives
r=e 1o & fsh hal vanue may ba reoonpsdd
watl L tramsfarmrg W il neae e nd

Qur a0l Dmoodures 1o -JsEsss e ecognition of
e smenel elhes, ineludad v Wgllewing

CHts a0 ey R U st ing of s pndcess relalng
to recognitien. of Tevarue and esting the desmr

=nd (mpiemeniation o misvanl laamal - ]
Ieferrti it I Buth process;

Al (N SpnrcpnaEneEs o he Comfny'a
aeorintng Eley Inr revenus reecaniion and
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Managemanl is responsible for the other iInfarmation. Gther Information comprisas the information
included n the annual report for the year anded 30 June 2025, bt does not Include the
unconsplidated financial stataments and gur auditor's report theredn,

Our ppinion on the unconsolidated financial statements dogs not cover he other information and
wie do mol sxpress any fom of agsurance cobolusion heresn,

In connection with our audit of the unconsohdited financlal statemants, our responsibility 1s 1o read
the other information and, in doing s, consider whether the other informatien is materially

incansistent with the unconselidated financial statements or our knowledge pidained In the audit

or lhanwise appears to be malerally misstaied. If, based on the work we have

padamied, we concluds thatl \here is a matanzl misstatemen! st Nis other infarmation, we are
Fetillrad Lo raport tiat fact. We have nothing 1o report inthis regard.
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Management is respansible for the praparation ard fair preseniation of the uneonsalidaled inancal
statamants In accordance with 1he aceounting and reporting standards as dpplicable in Pakistap
and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017(X1X of 2017) and for sueh intemal control as
management determines is necessary o enable the preparation of unconsolidated financal
statements that are free fram material nusstatemeant, whether due to fraud orermor

In preparing the unconsolidaled financlal statameants, managament Is responsible for assessing
the Campariy's abllity lo cantinue as a golng concern, disclosing, as applicable, mallers ralated lo
going concarm and using the going concem basis of accounting unless managamant silker inlands
o linuidate the Company or o cease oparations, or has ne realistic allemative but o do so.

Board of directors areresponsible: for oversesing the Company's financial reporting process.
¥ ] esponsibilities Audil of nconsalidated Financial Sta

Qur pbjechves are o oblain rsasonable assuranes aboul whether the unconsolidaled financial
statements as a whola ara frae from malerial misslatement, whethar due (o fraud ar arror, and 1o
igsue an auditers repon that includes olr opinion  Reasonable sssurance Is a high leval of
assurance, but s not a guarantes thalan audil condutted in accordance with 1ISAs as applicable
in Pakistan will aiways dalect a material misstatement when || exists. Misstatemanis can arisa fram
fraud or error and are considered materal if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
he expected to infiuence the economic decisions of wsers teken on the basis of these
uncansalldatzd finanmal skalements

As part ol an audit n aceordance wilh 1ISAs as applicable in Fakistan, we axercise professional
judgrment and maintain professlonal skaplicism thmughout the addit. We also:

« ldenlity and assess (he risks of matenal misglatement of the unconsalidated  financial
statements, whether due to fraud of eror, design and perform aludit proceduras responsiva io
those risks, and oblain audil evidence that is sufficlant and appropnate ta provide a basis for
our opinion. Tha nsk of not detecting a malenal misstatement resulting from fraud is nigher
than for one resulting from arrar, @s fraud may invelve collusion. forgary. intentional onissions,
misrepresentations, or the avermde of intermal contral

« Cistain ap undgrsepding of Intemal control relevant to the audit i order lo design sucdit
procedures thal ara appropriate i the clreumstantes, but pot for the purposs of sxpressing an
opinion on the effbcliveness of the Company's Inlemal conlral,

« Evaluate lhe approprialeness of accounting policies med and the reasonableness of
accounting astimatas and relaled disclosures mada by management,

« Coneclude on Wha appropriateness of management's use of \he going concem basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obiained, whether a material uncarainty exists
refated fooevants or conditions that may cast signficant daubt on the Company's ability to
conlmue 8s a going concem. If we conclude that a material uncerainly exists. we are required
I driaw atlention In our audilar's report 1o the relaled disclosdras in the unoonsalldated financial
slatemenis or, If such disclosures are Inadeguate, to madify our epinion. Qur conchusinns sre
Based on the audil avidence oblaingd up lo the date of our audilor's repert, Howeavar, fulures
eyvanls or candilicng may cause \he Company o cease fo conlinue as a going concerm

= Evaluate (ke overall presemtation, strusture and content of the unconsolidaled mancial
statements, including the disclosures, and whather the unconsolidated financial statementis
represani the underlying transactions and events in a manner thal achisvas fair presentation

Anneal Report 2025
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KPMG

We commurnicale with the board of directors regarding, among other matiers, the planned scope
and liming of tha audit and significanrt audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
conlrol that we identify during our audil.

Wet also provide the board of directors wilth a statement hat we have complied with relevant ethical
reguiremeants regarding independence, and ta communicate with them all relationships and olher
matters that may reasonably be thoughl to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
ralated safeguards. '

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we delenmine those matters that were
of most =ignificance In the audii of the unconzalidatad financial staiements of the current pariod
and are therefore tha key sudil matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless
law or requiation precludes public disclosure aboutl the matler or when. In extremely rare
circumstances, we detamnine thal 8 matter should not be commiunicated in our repor becauss the
adverse consegquences of deing so would reasonably be sxpecied to outweigh the public interast
benafits of such communicatian,

ort or L and ulato iremants

Based on our audit, we furlher raport that in our epinion

a) proper books of actounl have been kepl by the Company ss required by the Companies Act,
2017 (RIX of 2017);

b) the unconsolidated statement of financial position, the unconsclidated slalement of profit or
loss, the unconsalldated statement of comprehensive mcome, the unconsolidated statement
of chanaas In equity and fhe unconsaolidated statement of cash flows together with the noles
thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and
are in agreament with the books of account and retums,

o) Investments made, expenditure Incurred and guarantees extented during the year were for
the purpase of the Company's business, and

d) Zakal deduclible al source under the Zakal and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIIl of 1880} was
deducted by the Company and deposiled in Central Zakal Fund established under section 7
of that Grdinance.

The engagement partner on the audil resulting In this independent auditor's report is Bilal Ali,

e, Tawee Wauals,

Lahore
Date: 06 October 2025
upin: ARZ2025101143j5sF pZfy

KPMG Taseer Hadl & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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ROSHAN PACKAGES LIMITED

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 30 JUNE 2025
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ROSHAN PACKAGES LIMITED

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025
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ROSHAN PACKAGES LIMITED
UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ROSHAN PACKAGES LIMITED
UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025
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ROSHAN PACKAGES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025
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This: amencimasnisanoly ol sniieal réponing, pantdn baginhing onar afies 1 Jandsy 2025 Edler sgthcauon is
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= Amerdmens s the Classficalan snd Measimmeént o Fnandss lnsltnreems - Amemidments io IFRS & Fiancial
Instrimemty snd IFR S T Finamoiz) [rreindmenis

Dessiosuras:
Fieninmial, Sesnts v ESG-Linhed (satutas

lindar (FRE 8, L wee unclonr whaiber (he conimoiu el fipge of some linapcinl assate Wil ESGA0nmed
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The amendmenis inreduse an eddiional 3P tasi for Tinanclal assets winh canbingent features That @ not
relter] dieelly Lo & ahangs In bagle lendivg) tisks of sesls — say where e el Rome ehangs bepediiigon
whether the borower masts an ES0E trgatspenifisg I the lian conract

The amendmanis gl5a inciida addilicrmal diEcEsums for gl fmsncs assets and fnangisD Ushilites sl Rsve
cerEm tontlrgent leatures inatare

niat refated diredfly to @ afange In basic l=nding risks of osts. ano
- are il ieanned 8t dair vaoe thidogh profit or loss,
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Recognition | Dersoogmition requirements of Financial Assats [ inbdlites by Eleciionic Paviments.

Thi ameidmonts to IFRS $ clanfy whan a foancal assel e a fanal asbiiy |5 reosgnzed and dersctgrizen
and providas sn exceplion for certa laicial kil sl using an slsclmons payment systam. Companiss
pensraly dersceqrize their Irads pavatles on the settsmen| dats (&, when the paymenl s completed)
Feiwivter, e rEmi s prhyidle-an ednagtion for (e deracadgiilnn of Tirianelal latiltlas. The excoption 2ildws
e Compaing i derenogiivs s iade payabie before Ge Selllamenl date Whed I Uses & &latiionis Faymerl
system thal misets all of the folowing citeria

i practieal abilty 10 wilbidray, stop or caneel e paymmel imsthtion,
i praciicel 2By 10 stcess e arsh 10 ne eed far setilement 78 7 ferull of i paymant betristion, and
- 11 tertlpyisinl josk Bsscid ol Wi Ui dlaslionis paymet syt 8 ) wgnifiean '

The sfemimanie apply for mepating pefods begitning on or atter | Janlary 2086 Eadier application s
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Ot it pepdmisits
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LiisgbesUnas o inEsTEeRES 0 eguity inanaments:
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« Annizal |mprodemens o FRS Aeodnfing Standards - Amenrtmants o

IFRS 1 Fast-fime Addaptng of Intematonat Frencial Reparting StaqEands;
|FRS 7 Finaneiat frstruments: Drsciosures and it s sccenpanying Guidencs on mplementing [FRS T,

IFRS 8 Finpngal irsfruments:
- IFRE 10 Consaldgisd Franoai Sislemanta amg
&S T Sasitement of Caun Mok

Thiy armsndments 1o IFRE 9 ailimss

5 conflied beétwesn IFRS 8 snd IFRS 15 Ravenie tom Carerasts wih Sustomisrs gvar (he iitial msssuremsrm of
Irsc riscelyallas:

Updes IFRE 15, 8 irsde iscelvabls ey be rscoonized 2t an gmodnl tial difes fiam he ensaction oroe — a9
wien the lranssckion price: = varsble Copverssly, IFRS B ot hel oompanes pilatly meesure ke
feceiysbies withoul 5 sighifleant faaning componan a the mnssotion prics

The: IASE nasemendec IFRS 8 to neguire companies o initady messure 8 trade recelvaiie wilnoul s soniflcant
liricerein. comipnad dl ihe ameur datarmnad by applymd IFRS 15 apd

how & lakses sesounts o hederdcognilian bl & ieese labibty Erdar paragnph 23 of IFRS A

Wihen jeaso llabiiies sre dergoogiiEad under IFRE 8, the difernce DEfween (e carmpng amoand and the
errialelérsbinn gk i recadhleed In prof o s,

Tha amandment on teds iecafrsbles mily ms same Edivies 0 shaige hen rosodnt g ety

The amendmentz apply lor anpual reporiog perors unﬁlnnmg on) of afr 1 Jasary 20240 Earllar appleation
Pttt '

Tha amehdmenl on darpeognilion ol lepte FEblli=s apniae anly o lase Fabilss ednguisheg on o alier he
begmning al tks dhnupl regorinyg pence in which the amendment |s frst aoplied

The sbowe @i mends/ Impraamsme o affectve e arndsl peeods Deginning an o aftar 07 July 2025 and ame nol
Hkeiaby 10 Ty s iripant of he Cortipdiy's Frraniceal stalwmmrite

Basls of mezsurameant

e firdnojsl stetemants have Dedn prenseed Under e Pistsie) cos) Conveniion samgt Jof fredhald fane, Bujiding
piant end rEchineny sl eleciic mstatiations whish -amnz magsured & fevakisd amount less wbssquanl acodmuisiead

+ depreniation amn subsenuent accumiimted (mpamen) sses. end retferment benefi otliatons which-are.messiied 2|

prEsenl Wrlle:
Funcilgnal snd preseniation cumrency

These fingncial Stlemants gre Sresenied f Pakisian Rupses (TRE") which & the Compnny's hnisticnsl duerangy. 81
fmanca!l inferration (Fesented in Rupess hag been munderd off 10 the nearmst Tupes, unless othemvise stitad
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s msnaemnel t mskie iopeanis, sElireales Bnd assumations INaTelfect e agplisalion of sscgunting polics
and renortad amounts of Asenis Eng fiRbiites, hcome g aepermes Lincsnminty abel fhese sssemiptions snd

wulimales aodld et n ddieames thal reguire & madeisl adiisinent 14 e Eeming enodsl ol Sees oF Ebllies
affecion in Iulire panadas

dyvigmanis and gshmaes mats by e mamsgEmnen) 0 de appication of socouiling snd eooifing sEnnads: 53
appiicabi=‘in Pakistan al gre el o finensal salsien|s e docimented in e falliwiig sccalniing polidiss and
Dl En0 | e plmEnty o ) =il

Sppiifiant wsimate Wbz
- Revahiginn ol [ bullding, plant #nd mechinery mno alsciss nsmsllalions 41
MR T S L

- Dagreuisinh method. s Gsshll Wes of apeTting
Mgt bl plghtsl-ie st .1

w R et W bt e oo o utls e ERe olar tme

L TR A W R 412
- Logadarme 4.3
= Ernioyes retinomant Temariks 4 T8
= Praviern for Tasaling 421
= rpalmen) ol lirsndial =zsels 4230
«  Irpaiemont of lgng=tonm waully nyvesnsnt and Miaind balarices AH&EHA
= Confingenmas # 18

Matsrial Accourtlng pollcles

o maieninl somenting pohces adapted (A e proparaiion of e inenceal statements hove been consstently npplied
Yol P s premamted, Lnlass oibenvine stated Matsrial aeeauriting poicies aredispossd Delow.

Proparty, plant-and equfpmant
Operating Haed assets.

Al ceraung Nxed sesets are stotod Bl cosl s amumulated depmanlion and aeolmitaing mipabmenl lesaes, ey,
axeept for, feshoid iaon; balidiog an reehaln bend, plant and mschnery and, skeoms instsilatoos whioh se smted 5
rovakind armouni less wluuuuunl atimmulaisd ri&puudmtlun and Bkl SEcumbliid ol et lweses. IF any,
Flaeafuations are garfonhad by independen] wiilier Wil solicest Teogenoy 10 s el far defue of 8 mvalund Ss:o!
el meet i ratarsaty froem e caemingg Al

Bubseguent wasts s motdid n the assels samying amount or rernunized 8= 8 separmts assst, a5 appropriate. ooty
Wil L et il Neline Bconomli; banehis sesocliled wih e am alil Mo o (e Cosmpanny 2nd e cesl df lhe
e can be meastnes todiaby, Al other reoai gnd monisnRnce costs @ changad 10 statement of praft or Inss dudng
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Dpracston o0 3l prepedy. plsnt and eguipment s chamed 1o the ineansohidsted stelamant of pofil o lsson the
madicine Datasce molhod: mesgl for balkdnge o fresliold snd, slsot aed machinery &ed reated dectne nstaliatans
which ane lemi depmclsted ushig b stralgnt line methiod, 6o 5t wille off The hisigpres) cost af an a5l gver Il
esliratu. Rl (i 9t depreciatian e intionsd o nas S st fEking icacoount heir regidue) valiss,

Rosldul value and the usofd g of pesels s reyiowod & aach Teumcal year -and and i expeciaions difes from
previabs asimates i changs s nepoluited Tor 25 thangs I Acsaunting Sstmats [n scchidancs wilh |AS B - Assmininig
Poiicies, Chargss i Accouniing Eslimales and Enmes

Hepresianon on sdditors o operming assels I8 chergeo when ne fem becomas wvpimble for use. whomsas || s
Qiscomtimsed whet e asset W resirad from adtve uss

M reyslmion sETis s recomsd mostatement af comgrehessys noome snd credilsd o e paset e ahminn Ui in
enullty, [Horamvir e b eabend (a8 rggurees & revalusbion. deflch of (e same asael poayhsesly recsgoized (0 poofd o
huss. e Inchesss fs rcogrilzed i el af loss A revalestion dafict |e rectanized I ks sitamdn of peaflt be lons
etgenf | the - gxten) it i oizstsan psting Sipkis on e sanme reset Tenodnizes n e assel reynluRtion Shrpius.

A Heibil Arifer fram the skl fevaliadibn suiplis e el edimings b iinds for He difaence et
ceprecistion based on e rewalsd comving smount of e asssl gad depreoabon Gesed on e pssela’ ngind cos)
Cost Bnn scowimulated depracmtion of desets (| Ihe date of realistion ee omssad ug wilh ibe =iz of weyvalugion
prapaelidioe statument), coiculmnd an (' Sasie of met Lok velus Détasn vaviiration and falr vallio of respactive
RS2

The pairy ©r toss 50 dapesat or eelivement of 20 #3501 reprasanizd by the aifismnoe betwesn the sie prcssds Bad the
Earmyig: srmakint b =i A o) (rume firaspsmss i mcoiElidsk stateman ol profilor b

Capital work-n-progress

il o i o p peE End Slords held lor SEpitn edgendiieg re Sakid 2 etEl o any Wi inpali nent o snd
rEprEsant expentive Ihgumad an perating ved asaefs dunng neconetmuchon Bnd instaliation. Tost alsn nohades
applicable tomowing costs, i gry. Translers-ais mads 1o felelanil opsmting fieo assels caiegory a6 3nd |ifsn g=ssts
g arvaibalidey for Lo

Investment propaies

fiwestment proparty, Which- s profety beid to elm mnlsls shdior for Gplal appradiation, melaing pripsy ndss
corrifuston (or such Surpoise 8 ininasursd sty ab ks ol kit Irasscin | costs: Sutdmouenl ool
rargllan, fnvastmant propsmy 6 s o) cost e ascurnlated dapsmatiom ans ang Ampaiim [T my

The B Ve af divssimart prepsrly 1§ detemiined at the 2nd of =ach year far disclasurss pimosss loomoly silb (he
repusment al TAS 40 using ciersm kel piioes tor sompsabis ieat astate, adiuled fob any dilfesncas rn el
leigabiae anl Euhdlilan. The wsalill Sees, resituol vt Bnn. depmmatitlan maod o sayiiwesd on 8 rigisr basts The
effert af:any rhianges in Bsihnate i aconlintsa for &5 8 prospective tasls. Furtner, determiming adjistmants far may
diffueances i) s, iocaton end aondlbon of fm mvesiooe propaey moealves significa udgrment.
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Leasns

T Lo asddsses sf cordran insspllen waeliera eonlinct s, o monldne. = Sake. Thal 5, Fite conliss) coniss
frnin il T ceardenk (e s al e ek (N asse joe 0 perod of lmo o esoimige T consadomstion

The Evtipany apties = aliglé facaiidn and praBELR AL A sl T Al Mankice, dikeept Toll A0 A-Ni T BRI
lagses of inw=ymiue aseEls T any. The Company eoognizas wase el oomake lesss peynmnls and rphlof-usas
axsels renmEsaniiE e il b use B undeying askels

al Righit-olaise asseis

The Company recognzen nght-ohuse gssets sl ihe commencement dils of the lease (b2, the date tha undeslying
arael = avalable for use) Right-ol-oie sseete se measwed & el lete gy scodmdlabed  depremation amd
impaimEn (osses, End adjusied for eny permessarement of lease habililes T cost of Aghi-okuss Basels Mokitss
the armmdrl of lesse takiites temnpveea. InitiE) direst St incurred, Smd beasn payments made 21 ar bafars the
Gormeitinment dake est any Bake Icantvas moovod, Bghialiue asiei am depretiEiad ovar (e shae ol 1w
s I ann dease erm

it owrarsiip of 1hg Innsec-assel wenslies lo e Gomonny @ Ihe ead of Ihe leasa: tarm or Ine cesl reflects jha
exerelseof 8 puichesa option. depiacislion Is cRicilaied asmg the esimatid usshll ife of the ssael, Thenghlallzs
Asmels gra Alen subjecl o Inparment:

b} Lease labiities

Al Iha cominarsemenl didla of Ihe Ease: e Comgany retngnizas lensa labiiles meygimd-al (be pesanl valup ol
Hasa fagnents to be ruide vt the bt tarm, The ledbs it (nohede fiad payrmests lags iy s
misriies eosvalis vamatie masn payments that depend on @1 nder or & rmeand sMoUNts sipeclel o te ped
unier remdual valise guarantzss The lease paymente also: mohioce the gseroie -prioe pl-3 purchasa ogtion
Aty crtai 1o UE exmncised Dy (he Comoeay and gaymenis of penalties for tefmiiating e e (11 lease
g eiiecls e Gompany exsmisng the opfon 0 emingts YaEenis issee pEymsnts \hEEoa ot depend o &n
A a2 e e ez s anpamss i i pelod o whisl thaee goe incurad,

e} Shan-term |eases apd leases of low-valug azsels

The Campany apples e sho-lam laase recnonitan sxemplien ol shaot-taimleanass, | a0y e, InsE Easen

InFNEye-s len=s e of 12 montne e ess fiom the-commencemanl-dale 8ng o nol aeinm & puchnse-aptian) )
alsa-applas Metease of low-yaie assels recogn|ion ssemplion o lseses Ihal gre of ioy yalle Lesse paymen|s an
ancrt-deim vden and leaies ol o UElle ssRels i recognloel o2 expanse an g Bttt bsils nﬂrirm lsjeme
I

di Dotarminbng tha lease tepm of contracts
T Cipzany Ditemies the loace ism ae i ranaancelboss 2mal e Ease, gl sl ony penods aoveomd

ty AN nption te sxtang the dease it & reasonmbly setain o be sxercisad, or ey pesiods tovered by an option 1o
Lirirtvlivahis A heiemd, 1 () o pemsomisbifg cripn ol 0 el o o,
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4.5

4.6

The Gompany's leass coptocts Include sdsmulon and lemmipulise: goions The Compaly appies |dgemeit in
izt whlied | s feesonably certamn whstter or nal fo sxsrise ne opban o reney of lermiiase ihe eass, T
is; I gorsders a6l reievan Tackors thal cemte B Heeoiomic insenlive e 1) o Exsrose siite e el oe
tirmigatnn, Al the cammencemen! dals. the Compary (eassassas the (Ease tenm i hans is' 3 Sanifizan] emenl of
i g I citfursivnoes Ihe 2 within le antos and aflicls e alility 1o aienose o not 1o dxprolie the optlan ta
Firva TRl

Inynstment In subsdiary

Iriesfmenl in SOEEry compasy |5 rmEsuied 8t ooEl eE D e egoeemaitss of 1850T “Separe Do)
SmEmanis’ Hawisyer 8l submsguent repadting dates. he Compeny reviews the oamying smuurd of the invesimsnt smd
i i vatrabbiliny o distorrming Whalhie et s mdicsiod that sual inviestmsit Bos suflened S0 Irmgmsirmonl s 1Faiy
gtaah indigatinn Seists: tha sarmang amaoum of the nvestment = adlistnd b the satent of mmpanant oss et
lossss dre eosgnized g R exparsE in s Ubdonseldsted statement af profit or \oss (Whee an impsimenl (pss

-stibmegrartly reverses, Hea-carmying gl ol e 5 increassd o e seeieed pacoyeedile armoinl

Impairmeatof non-linancinl zssats

Trvsciyiiog arrours of pon. rEnoel pEssse aiier (En v onks GTe reylmaa B3 aaal epaning dsta o determine
whisines (here 1s oyt Indeation of impalrment 1Ay sueh indiemtioh sdlsds, e e dssats recavaiaib amolint e
eatimatad

Tries Fonavosanle amoun of D Bssator S (EnarElig uni 2 (W haher of 18 velue i uEy e0d (5 & velue iBes oot
iz sell. | arsessing valug In Uge, Ihe estimaisd filire sash fowe sre discounted 1o ingr present value Using & disoausn

eaEm Ml el Gurment masol 3sssesmmnl of (e Eme vaiie of iy end e sk seollic o (he s=sel. For e

purpase of mpmrmen tashing, assets that gannot pe testad indlvidumly Bre groupan togelner intg the wmatlest groug of
anssl thal geiaiatas crsh mllows from contintdng Use Fiat =ne lEgEly ndepandeat of the cish (diaks of oihes psauls or
artius o sssds (e lslrerting aml, or GGLY,

Tre Company's: oo paraie SEEels do nol panetEls sanarmie msh (iEws: § it 8 an malcdbon R S comorsls ases|
rremy e divpaired D e recovarabhe amour s delemined for the CEU b whicly te corgorile ssanl llangs A
impairmend loss is eeognized 1 ihe caming @mount of =0 assst o its CEL swisady s estimated monieranle Smount
limpairment inssas st reoognang i Gheandolidatid stetermmnts of it on ole;

Ivigialreien | loss metognisl I grgk perlbits 3 Resessed §toanch mpaming Jate for any indicabions 1hat {he loss as

‘Pecieansd of N longes exiss An imaarreenl (088 15 reversad i (here hes bean B chenpe-in the-eeimatoy used 1o

destaariebll i dho feoviarrbile st A ipalinent foss e revarssd aily e e adtent hat e sesel's cormylng amdtnt
cond npl-eesesd ffe camying smouat kel would heve been determinsd, nel of deprecation or smonfzeton. i no
wrriprEd i el i e Feeanlnse

Lung term depesits

T bty bt bl scer e S o e it mnlgd |eiame i) s Unte rocnurabls Wem dllity colmmm i,
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4.7.1

ATz

4.8

Inveniory

Blores; spares and-oihar consumiablug
Thesi are: yakied of lower of ciist, eslodlslies acoping b movng svetades melrad, and-estmphsr net 16allmole vhlua

E-H:l'ra; At skt mr Weliaid St valie valie Irietat iy ethar ehasgies, | By, doeares thargan The Cnﬂm-‘iﬂ:.' [PiviswE the
EmYing amaef Sioresani spEms on 8 reqilar besk-and pravision is mads B cheolestenge. (Fraglined

B Arsds

These ame sialsd &l Me jowes of cost caloulsied soemding 1o moving al.'rura!na-mammn'. ane alimateg pel peslizEbie
vl

Cuslh compirees Bl tikts of purthase. ooet of cofversion-and offar =idis incurred o brirging e store-in-rede o their
prestinl ealian and csdilon st satlalibn Has beth deonnined 45 ollows:

Feiswy wieabanils Walghitnd svarags cost-

Wirk-lrgrocess and
fastnort gross

Sk i Irarinit e valied ot Sosl cotfmriEng iveite sshie niuE ofher oRaies voees theéme s,

Cast ol dirsct matirinls. fabour and appiopdials mEnuyleciinng gvarhesde

Mt raplizahie valke sinifias e sstinmtad-saling  prloadn e ordingry Courss of hiEihess foge alimaiet cost ol
com|jetion amt sstimated crsls neoessary o maki-te sale

Trouds recefvablos

T rovter recRivabies e el messtdnd B (helr InEssRction price wnaee [FRE 75 aml sutsesannly misurmi a1
Amitived togi fees any allowanns for expsnted el losses

Allewiist for eifector ot loss (EEL) |5 basad oo Me diflbiaricn ot the conitactil diesl fows cue o
Hesordianse silh the nonisict g 8 e cosh fidws-thal the Campeny supeets (o oapes Theshorlah & iheh diccml fes
2t an approzunetion |o the assat's onginal effscive: mistest rte For irade and alher receivabiles, the Compary han
spilisd e samplfied soprodch Aot caidulmed EGL basnd oy atime &npfm{nn aredil losmes The Compasy i
iElon el 6 B hasad on (N8 Company's: Nisiones| g |pes experisne -n:ﬂui.l.aﬂ for fnger-loong feofors
wihieh ipelutes GOP, cbisurrar pilos e, unampbogman) ang aisees) e Mowaoer o sedsin coees, e Companyg'
iy -BHO EorEidar 8 Manclsl Bsoar 1o ba i Clfail Whien IiE! e @dtierE el ndicates e the “Cempony &
tmlisaty o mmasive the pilstanding sontrmotisl ammmts m Tl tetarn takng Mie-sccount &ny oredt anhansameaits Relo
Ly Wb Carnginy

The sssassmentof he cormaiafjon bebwmen Nigtoiznl chaerdid defail nies lumoss) soonamis conditions and ECL is sn

palimmly The-armaunt of ECGL 5 senstive b chanes N sieilslantes and of Drecast econgmin midloene The:
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generate cush fows, The busipess model detormines. whether gash foos will reult from collecling gontracssl cash
Morass, Aelliing e Tomncinl agsets, oF beth. Fleancial ansets sasailiel and measien ol ameinize fokl are held wikin &

busiess morel Wil the chiactive o pok) fnancatassets in oderto collsat-sontractusl sash Navs while financial Bses -

ilassiliod =nd measiied Bt lai yaiss Hreugh OCT ame hedd wilthin o businses ol wiils thie obljectve of el bl be
eollec eontraztues sosh Nows and 2@lling

Flirthass F £0lus of WiEncnl sssats mnal aguire deivan of dseate within 2 e Fame mstabliziad Dy Senuition o
monventen 0 the makst place (regular wey feces) ae recagnized on the e dalg, (e, e dalz (el the Company
e b purchasi ok el i sssal

Subseguant magsurament

Fiat puriots of sutsegquant miasiramant rancial asskts s olassilied nl fpr cafsgomes

- Firancis| desei-gl arnotizes Cost (oehE metnumenis) |

Firangisl s =) B value (Droudt GO sl mizpeiing of euiidaiye gme and |gsses (dalskmniurmts)

Flvanaial-assets designmied 8t ol velue toraugh QG0 Wi o moylimg. of cumuiative: gains and |osses upon
deracogmilion fegquily insteumsnls) - amd

Fiemniotalassstasst Tam vaps mrmogh peail or e

Afnual Repart 2026
roshanpackages coimn pk

ROSHAN PACKAGES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Einancial assais @ amorliedd cast (debi iastrumpris)
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_ 2025 2024
Warkers' Walfare Fund payable Nofe Rupses Rupges
Olpening bialan o 5,203,050 542587
Gharge Tarthe year 38 5,706,118 B 747 983
Paid doring the vear (10,104,726) (F. 280, 110)
Clnsing atanoe 4,804 482 8,203,000

This mainly inofudes salanee pmeynting to Re. 28,83 milion (2024. Rs. 36 81 mullion), utility bills
payablz amounting to Ra 18,27 milllon (20k4 Rs. 2383 milion) end camage- and fragh)
payabke 1o transporters amauniing to Bs: 728 milion (2024 Rs 518 million)

2025 2084
CONTRACT LIABILITIES fote: Rupess Rupees
Conlract labilives 29,1 66.002.664 18,410,048

Thesa mapresanl advencas from customers: (net of sakes: ) agalinst wivoh he Comgzny hes
porformsnca obfigation to provide goods in future, The contract (jabiiites am expactad: i bie
recottived a5 reverie within nme year

2025 2024
ACCRUED FINANCE COST Rilpess Rufieos
Accrued mark-up on financing from conventional banks
< |apig Yermi fimancing 1,8_3%.95‘? 4 575 453
- sharl barm borrawings 9,326,044 4.188.650
— sl s borrwings 23,7339 28117 168
34,802,047 482 a0
CONTINGENCIES AND SOMMITMENTS
Contimoencles
Incorme tox

Incomes lax proceadings ware Inllisiss by Gepuly Commissione irilang Revarius (DRIR | undes
siction 2140 af the Income Tax Ordinanos, 2001 (the Ordinance’) for tax yeer 2015, Lpon
finalization of the said procestings the DCIR inaremsed the Company's tar chargeatis by Re.
BT mallion on gododnt of fixed asysls, rade erooilors, WEPF and othars ale, Ikmugh an
amended sasesameant order under-assation 12201 W122(5) af (he Ovdiracce gated 28 Jure 2004,
Aggnaved by the decision of DCIR, the Company filed an appeal pefora Ihe Comnjissionar
Inlan Ravenve (Appeals) [ the CiRiAppeas)’| who vide order dated 15 November 2020
deaidad Ui case pattialy Iy lavour of the Company, The CIR (Appeals) upheld [He OODIR's
thisallwance of 8 tex credit under settion BOB amounling 1o Bs Z3 milisn as well as s
additien of Fs 0.8 milllon mlated Woolhe; chianges an Moed Gsgas Being aggievid wih e

arlyerss tragiment, the Company hss filed s oappes| on 08 danuary 2021 before ha leamed

Apmats Tribunst nland Revenue (ATIR) which s pending s2udicalion,

Sales lax

31021 Deputy Commilssonar Inland Revenue [EIR) Bsusd an assssamant order o 28 Mamh 2024

far the panad framJuly 2018 to Debar 2023 i which sales ey iy amouning o Bs, 53278
iiilier an aecount of lnpul B clammed by (e Company. was deolarsd radmissibie Aggriewed
with 'the order of DCIR, an appeal agamsl the said order has beon filed batete e AppaliEte
Tribunsl dated 30 May 2024,

Annual Report 2025
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31.1.2.2 Beputy Eommssioner inland Revenue DI ssues sn assessment groer on 11 Mamon 2024

far the perid fram July 2020 10 Seprimber 2023 0 which sales @y labilty amounting to B,
145087 milllon on account of oyl B celmed by the Company wes declarad Irvadrssibie.
Aaarisvat willy e orer of DCIR, he Compary has fled an appeal befors Appellals Trbumal,

11.1,2.3 Depuly Commissionar Inland Hevenue (D) ssued pn sssesamen) order daizd 17 May 2023

31.1.3

Hna

ERFr N

under Seation 11(2) of W Sales Tax Act, 1990 for the parbd Bugust 2021 I June 2022 an
short peyment of sales tew svd claiming inagmissible nput tax resuting in sn oiEl demang of
Fs. 80388 milion. The Company filed an appsal snd the case wes emanded by the
Commissionar Inland Ravenus (Appopls) for reassassment, where reassessment order datea
S0 Jures #E25 Was bissn pasesn by the lesred DCIR ading (o & revigsd demaid of Bs 921 30
milllign, The Company has filed 2n appeal against the re-assesement ondsr and Biiained 5 sy
[ thiz same. Based on lsgal advics mansgsinset belisves hial e matier will be decided (0 1he
Company s favour, 8nd aecordingly, no poyision hes been made 0 the inanoal sistements:
Hawever the maller s disslossd

Custam Tax

In grior vears, (he Company was served With & recoviery notice C. No. V-Cus/RCME/2021/591
dated 12 Saptembar 2022 for the iate payment of duty pn thecanceliabion of DTRE Approval The
Tusloms authorllles infiated recovery preseedings agsinst the company for he defsull sumharge
smounting to Ré. 35048 mililon. Tha Campany flad reprosantation befora the dapartment for
withdrawal of the recovery notice and also filed a wiit petiion W.P. No. 51829/2022 In the
Honourable Lahare High Court agalnat the sald recovery notice. The deparimenl did nol nonalder
the Company's representation and instructed it1a pay the surcharge. The Honourable Higlh Court
dismissed fhe il petilion bazed on e depariment's dedision regading e repressitalion,
Subsaguenitly, tha Company has filad & naw wril patition W.P No, 15525/2023 in the Honourable
Lahare Migh Court agsinat the said recovery notica wharein the Court has granted interim mllef by
stspending the racovery niotioe and requiring the Company to sibimit a posidsted guarantee
ehegue for the equivalent amount fo the satistaction of the Assistant Collector DTRE. Meanwhila,
ihe departmient Issued & revised recovery halles, reducing the default sureharge from Rs. 35.048
millicn to Rs. 28,318 million The Comgany fas since deposited ihe post dated guarantes chague
for Rs, 259316 milllion with the degariment, iIncomplianes with the courts directionie; while the st
pelition remalns pending adludlcation,

The ranagenment s confident that the maltérs Wil be deolded In the Company's favour |n
relation 1 above eases and no financial obligation s sepeoied W ascue. Consagusntly, ne
provizinn haos bést maddin heze unconsolidoted financis! Satements op this atoounl

2025 2024
Cammitmants In reapect of: Note Rupess Ripeas
- In respect of lettors of crodit for-
- Btores & spasseany raw ratsnEl 503,982,512 585205297
Othirs:
- Buarantes issued by Company in faveur af;
Sul Norhari Gas Pioalines Liniked 62,140,000 62 140,000
Fotal Parpa Pakistah Limifed 14,500,000 14 500,000
Past dafsd phegus [galed fo
Etpatiim Apreideient Solletiir 343 249,316,752 26,3V6.752
_ 105,856,752 105 856 Tha
- Haraly finaneing comnitments
Pest Vatur thean v yoar 11,763,096 5,048, 308
bt than (ne year hul nol (aler T Tve v 5,304,108 10,245,036
17 TAT 204 16404 Ad4
747,686,468 720,561 353

Thers are no commitments in respent of saniraots for cepltal exosnditun
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3z REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS - NET

2025 2024
Minta Rupees Rupees
RaanUe fram contracts with sustomisrs: F32 11,423,984 B58 12233, 115,068
Less: Salgs tax {1,763,202;8B4) (1 803,021,532}
Mt Loeak Saliag 8,860,691, 974 10330 083,538
Expiert Sales . 3422 337
660,691,974 10,333 515 8GR

321 Disagyregation of Revenue:

in the loilowing taolé ravenue from contracts with costomers & deangrepated by bming of

reEverrmin recoaniiion 2na aecaraphlosl markats

2025 2024
Nota Rupees Rupees
Timing of rovenue recogaition:
« Praducts transfarrad auar time 264,866,855 2,903 544 788
- Products trarstarmed a a goimt ih time 7.,295,825,019 B.020.867 103

322 9.660,691,4974

1), 235 515 Bes

Geographical market;:
- Pakistan 9,660,091,4974 10, 530,094,636
- Ausiralia - 34225392
9,660.691,974 10,333 515,868

322 This Incldes tnbllled revenve amalinting to Rs 18 74 milllen (224 Rs 1827 milion)

2025 2p24
Mata Rupess Rt
323  Contract balances
Trade rpoelvables J2AF 20233274 2251651954
Contragt assels 3232 18,730,808 18,210,430
Gonlract kanilives 3253 (B8,002,864) (18,3 10,048]
2,133, 064,219 2,250,562 435

3231 Tmdo recaliables-am non-ninmest beanng pnd besome due alter 7 1o 365 days of the nvoica

dake,

323z Uunirao agsuelz are mitizly. meeogneed Tor reverue oamed aganst Cempany's mgnt w
conaidemlion for work somplelsd but rol billed and for gocds dellvemd but not rieivet by
gustorters Al the ‘epodlng dale on made o grder packing produnts racognlied se e
reguirsmenta. of IFRS 16, Upon acknowledoement of delivany of goods \o tustomars. the

amounls frcognized-as conlrac] FEsels ars rsaled 85 rade regslvables.

3233

3234

161

Confragt lablibes reprasents sHoft lemm advances recsived lrom ustomers soainst deliveny of
poods infulure Sontrea latliilies 25 &8l lhe begmmng of the year, aggregaling o Bs 1541
million (2024 Rz, 8598 million), was ecopnized as revanue, dunng the year

Regvanug rary ong of the oustbmers (2024; ona custamer) al (he Canipany represents mons
than T0% (2024 more thian 10%) of the Company's okl revenue

AfnuET Repart 2025
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a3

332

25 20z
MNate Rupess. Hipees
COST OF REVENUE ) )
Raw metenals cotsumed as 7,350.883,237 7441 0sg 085
Carieye (el sxpemas 4,659,147 4,458 1D
Baskiig mEtaigl cersieg 31,778,113 44 128 Ju0
Produetan saolias 162 590,616 201, 245383
ol mniel powar 330,160,668 44575000
Saiared. Wwanes snd olha) hanafie 330 426,551,515 465 B42 5
Fraight and Garsiirkilicn 181 2206379 188,235 804
Rapan and mamtenance To.264 208 Bit. 284 ges
Errfritingg and stafinhery 1,008,857 |, 530, 566
Insurance 6246036 5615785
Renl rale and (@xes 5732748 3,585 609
Travelling ane conveyance 50,005.521 ST 2AT
Commuhlcitian sxpamses 1,512 613 681,115
Vehite rirring 2¥persss 13,733,802 719545
Depresiian of opersimg fided asseis L3 242,849,140 168,908,554
Deprectation of dohi-al-use aases 7.2 03,0749 -
Oinere 15,024,876 18, 1457 U565
Cral ol gonds manuizEcimad 8,911,920,552 9,547,102 050
Spanitig etk ol lmsted gaods and weste stlock 187, 274 540 B, T4, HEE
Eilielng shuik af Thnshed gouds and Wkl stk " (£12,912,554) (VHT 74 Balh)
[25,638.014) 193,285 E58)

B,BB6,282,578 944783z A0
Raw material consumed .
Cipeiiing baraim 1,008,266, 807 1,378,192 ina
Frchasts 7559029376 7584 ,040,088

0560, 108,083  B.04D0 282 602
Less: Dlosing batanns {1.218,122 846) (1,004 %ﬁu?i
Faw nienaE nonsymst) T.350,883 237 731,088, 085
SalEries, wages and ather hendafits inolide Milowing I mspedt ol amiloyes benefits

2035 2024
Mok Rupbas Rupess
Gratnty: AT 13,588,052 18,104,754
Frawdent fund 3,088,541 1,452 605
16,677,503 20 8454 351

MOMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
SalEren, Wigss 2pid other bsislils: A4.2 160,633,426 151,508 H5H
Lagal nnd professonal dhenges 17,717,503 17,0654 B2
Fens e subbonptlon 6,509,234 5,54 Bl
Travi|lieg 2md eofvaysnce 14,768,305 14,739 208
InSitrAnGD 2,048,447 1418405
Frinting and stationery 2,284 477 2203085
larah renials 11 AT ATS 8,530,488
Rapait and mainlangnee 2,708,494 2042 0y
Vetnohe uTniRg and mantaipEnce 20,9357 10,885,845
Lififities 5718.518 5,777,269
Audiars eEmamemmion 241 &.663.500 5, B, NG
Comminigation 8 spensas 8,875,774 T.ABE B0
Deprestalion of nosisfmg fved asseds 58 2,983,347 551,738
Creprecwtion of 1nvestmsn| propemy o 1,200,528 1,200 5AE
Depresiabon of fihol-se adsels 12 B,329 760 ;783 841
Ertarialrran Sxpantas 3,110,050 1,502 563
Cihers 5409163 6,900,224

308 869.420 256 504,080
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ia OTHER EXPENSES

Exghangs ipss - nel
Cipndtians

3 FINANCE COSTS

imteresi [ amark up on
- long tarm financing
- laass [wblitios
= long term mushanka

= short l2rm borrowings
- Workars Profit Parmcipation Fund
Bank chargas and alhers

40 FINAL TAX

Final Lax on dividends

400 This ragresants final b paid under saclion 5 of Ineome Tax Oinanca, 2000 (ITO, 2001)

Note

221

i 1

2025 2024

Rupess Rupsas

B,172.607 -

316,725 -

B, 488,332 -
14,546,138 28,001,435
1,205,863 .58 THS
503,252 699,536
151,222,185 245,098,371
10,763,481 LB A e &
8,765,248 10,653,779
190.006 177 3,714,218
5,741,215 3,142,921

tan on dividends raprasanting levy mderme of requirements of IFRIC 21/1AS 37.

41 MINIMUM TAX DIFFERENTIAL

Minimum lax differsniial

This rgpresents portion of minimum tax paid under sectior 113 af Income Tax Ordinante,

2025
Rupens

38,018,847

2024
Rupees

2007 (1T, 2001 ) reprasantimg lawy in terms of regquirements of IFRIC 21145 37

a2 TAXATION
Ineame LA,

- guirrent yes
- pricy yeai

Delersa lax

2025 024
Rupess Rupens
94,150,938 36465 403
94,150,938 a8 485,403
{39,431,309) 1686008825
54,719,629 204,474 228
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3 DEEF LRE BEE =
: g sozd 3B BEY
_ 2025 2024 : - 35 2 (2 Eld
421 Relationship batween tax expense and Rupees Aupees i
accounting profif: £ @ 2BEBE | = A
! : 2583 3 Bl -
Profit before final tax and minimun @ differsatial 239 520,448 A1 H.ATH B3S § il o= = =l
= £ 3
Tax calciialed &t the rmte of 209, (2024 - 29%) 69,460,930 129,474 862 2 " gls. 2 2 B g
- :—; - P ® ¥ : £=i i
P |55k g |8 2y &
Tax sffect of: 3 &lg g = i) o E =
- supir tax @ 4% (2024 8%) 11,412,235 39 558503 = - % E
- diffarence i tax rate of dividerid (791,892) (1,913 ,083) £ ¢ =583, , . .8 2z E =
- change |n tax rate and othar adjusiments (24,007,372) (36,818 345) 4 % g EBRE & 13 i
- Final tax treated as lavy {5,741.215) (3,142.921) ) E & == Rohs e =& E EJ:
- prioryear income tax reversal | (charge) - 68.778:812 E = a -
- Difference felated permanent inadmissible expenses 4,476,943 16,836,310 w 8 REEE ., § 25 % § E g
Average tix expense chargad o profit or loss 54,710,629 204 474 228 = E é § g Eg ff g z ﬁ o E i
vl 5 g s3eas 83 3B 7 g E
422 Reconciliation of current fax charge charged as per tax laws for the year with current tax 'E E - i E i
r nized in the statermant of profit and Joss acoount is as faollows! ; i
BLOY ftolp f n nmﬁ - I:'a :E s Eﬂ_EErﬁi JE , B8 E 2 4
Sa - I~ ek 2§
Rupess Rupess E.l E E E %: g% § ﬁ -] E_ - E % E
& Lo = 5 5
E - L ? =
Current tax liability for the yeer as per applicable lax laws 98,480,791 207,617,148 (= B8 £ g E
Partion of current 12x liabilily as per tax laws, .==: < s - S g T2 3
gy : 1 3 = 3
rzpresenting incoma tax Under 1AS 12 (54,719.620) (204 474 224) —. : - é E 3 1 g gl ~| £ &2 *
Portion of current tax liability as per tax laws. representing . g £ 3 E : < - -+ S £
levy It terms of requiraments of IFRIC 211 1AS 37 (43.761.162)  (3.142.921) =t E & 3 I fz
: s i3 E # OBFE & 3 3
=5 : 3 of|l 3533 RRY 7§ 13
43 EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED :l g = a . g
5 § &
Basic and diluted eamings per share are sama because the Company hes not ssued any a E % g 2z #
convartitile bonds, convertible prefarence shares, oplions, watranis or employes sharg = & £ B : "é
options. Thus, parmings per share of tha Company are as follows: =] g £ £ E U
| =] E s : = $ 5
£ o = = ﬁ ..2
431 Basic Earnings per share 2025 2024 = % % § ’ £ o g
E 5 2 : E : i
: . =i -] B = o
Profit for i yaar aftar laxation Rupess 141,039,657 211,261 687 = "'-_'E" 3 = 5 g 2 P oE oz
i 3 = g = B i} ] 'g
g L 8 = . :
Weighted avarage number of ordinary sha  Number 141,900,000 141,800,000 g o — W 3 % % B & % g % £ £
il R =] EoaR 3 g B B 3
o : o = g pe RN - ® i g
Earmings pier share Rupees n.sa 1.48 == (7] T EE D - £ E ] 4 mw £
5 B FEIAZm -E; = &% B 5 3 B8
: = s E=FELE E g
432 Diluted Earmnings per share % E g £ % =f E.f, i 82E 5 5 : £ 5 £
< 3 i %3
There ts na diliitive effect o tha basic sanmings per share as the Campany dods nat have
gny convertible instruments in issue as at 30 June 2024 and 30 June 2025
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CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Board's paliey is tn maintain an eficient capital base so as to maintain nvestor,
greditor and market confidence and la sustaln the future development of Is business, The
Board of Directors monitars the return on capital employed, which the Company defines as
aperaling Incame divided by lotal capital employed

Thi Campany's objsctives when managing capilal are:

(1) o eafeguard lhe entity's ability to cantinue-as & gaing cancern, so (hat it can confinos
to provide ratums for sharsholders and henefits for olher stakehalders, and

(i} le provide an atdeguate retum o shareholders.

The Company manages the capital structure n the centestt of economic conditions and (he
sk charactenstics of the underlying asssts, In order to maintain or adjust the eapital
stnictura. the Company may, for exampls, adjust the amount of dividends paid o
shareholders, issus new shares, arrangs naw lines of credit or sell assets 1o reduces debl

Neither there were any changes in the Company s approach o capital management during
ihi year nor iha Company @ subect o exarmally imposed capial requiremants.

The Company's stralegy |s ta ensura comipliance With agreements execlted with financial
Institutions so that the latal debt 10 equity ratio doas not exceed the lender Lovenants

The Company monitors capital using 2 gearing ratia, which s net debt divided by total
capital employed. Met debt is calculated as latal loans and homowings, less cash and bank
balances and shorl term investments, Total cepilal employed sigmifies aguily &5 =hown in
statement of financial position. The total debt o equity ratlio &8s & reporting date 1s Bs
follows:

2025 2024
Nale Rupees Rupess

Long term lnanging <1 63,382,151 104,086,278
Lezse liabilities 22 46,478,478 40,754 635
Lang term mushanka 28 2,704,130 2,408 488
Shont term bofrowings 27 1,156,544,995 645,058 480

1,275.119.754 695,200,830
AddiLess);

Cashand cash sguiveienis-nal 172 260,251,278 (80,220, TE2)
Mest debl 1,535,271.032 614 884 088
Total ety 7.704,872,183  T.672.204 501
Gieating ratio 20% Bl
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Directors’ Report to the Shareholders

Thie Direetors of Roshan Packages Limived (the *Groep™) are pleosed to present their repor
together with thie sudited consolided Tmpcnl stawemens for the vear ended 30 June 2025,

Economic Review

The Tisenl yeor 20242025 wis mirked by contmued muerveconiie pressures, including heeh
bomowing costs, elevated energy wriffs and persistemt inflationary frends. Despite these
dhillenges, improved investor semtiment, stabillzation an the exchange mite, and government
reforms tooimprove the ease of doing business have provided seme refiet 1o the industrzal sector.
The prckaging industry, though sensitive o consumer demsnd and raw material costs, remained
resilicnt due o sustained demand fom FMOG. pharmaceeaticsl. and textile sectors.

Business Performance

1o FY 2025, (he Growp reeorded vt revenue of R 9660 7 millon, refleching w décline 01 6.5% comparcd
b Bs, 10,3335 mallion in FY 2024, mainly due o reduced dermumd from brge-seale mamibactorsrs and
wiakened consumurpurchasme porver. Gross profit stoad it Rs, 7744 anillion, down L16% (rom Ra, 8827
mdllicin last year, loWwer production Voulimes hive léad to under diiliation ol eipacitvriising per-u o5
Adininisritivie and selling expenses meressed 0 R 4552 million (20240 Rs. 416,09 milllen), driven by
wflatiniry paclts o salures amd osrketing costs On e postive side, o reversal ofespectod
crecit Josses of s 353 maliton was recorded compured toa provisionof Ry, 240 mallion m the pooer year,
strenpthening prefitbility, Furthermore: fnance vosts dechined symificantly to Rs. [960,0 nullos from Rs
0T mallion in FY 2024, owimg te effective working capital mansgement amd interest mtes Despite 0
decline in revemies, Roshan Packages Limited demonstrated resilivnce by focusing  on cost optanizstion.
predit risk manggenient, and operatohal eficimeies.

Financial Overview

Particulars 2025 (Rupews “000) 2024 (Rupees “H00)
Met Revepue 9.t Gy 10333516
(st Profil T7A409 585,683
Oiperuting Profit 335318 412,952
Profir before Tus 64,332 233636
Profil after Tix 10142 25.030
EPS (Rs.) {78 018
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Analysis:

o Although revenue and wperatimg mirging deglined, profimbiliey sfer s mproved
stgnd ficantly 1o Rs. 1100 million (EPS Ra. 0.78) compared o Bs, 250 million (EPS R,
{0, 1) Lot yenr,

s This wrmiround was deiven by lower fimance costs: tax qujustments: and reversal of
expevted credit Josses.

« The mprovement in EPS reflects effective financral restructuring and risk memagement,
despite chiallengemye murket conditions

Principal Activities. Development, and Performance

The Group eontimees 0 focus on high-vialue pockaging products, customer retention, and
operationsl efficiency. SMrategie minatves included:

«  Ipvesnment in selar power projecis o redoce relianoe on extermal onerey and improve
sustiinalility,

«  Strengthening relationships with multinatonal and top-tier local clidas o sustain opder
volumes.

o Strict eredit control, restilting lmreversal of provisiens tor doubtful receivables.

M rtterid chunges oceirred durfne the Fusnea) year conoerming the natdee of busingss of the
Ciroup or its subsidianes

Roshan Sun 'Tao Paper Mills (Private) Limited (Subsidiary)

The whilly owned subsidhary, Roshin Sun Toao Paper Mills (Pve ) Lid, sontimaes preparory work
fur settng up o redyeled paper munuftaring fehity. Durthg the year, key resulatory dpprovills
wery abtuned. and the Company semains enpsped n negotiations for finanesal close and EPC
vontract fimnhzanon, The Board reaffirms its commimment to support the subsidiary, as the project
sexpected to matenally contribute 1w the Growp s consolidated growth.

Larmings per Share (EPS)
o FY 2075 Rs. 0,78 per share

o FY 2024: Bs. 008 per share
The significant improvement reflects effeenve fnancrl pantgement

Armual Fepor 2025
IosheNpECEAnEs.Lom, bk

164



DIRECTORS’ REPORT

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There have been no material chungessinde June 30, 2025 to the date of this report dnd the Group
his net entered into any commitmient during this peried which would Bave an impact on the
finaneial position of the Group.

Future Outlook

Looking ahead, the Group is caulieusly optimistic, The anticipated reduction in inlerest rdics,
stabilization of infation. and recovery in ¢onsumer demand are expécted to support volume
growth. With investments in renewable energy, process sutomation, and sustainable packaging
solunpns, Roshan Packopges Liouted is well-positioned 1o capitulize o opporiuniiies an PO,
pharma,-and export-oriented sectors. The management's strategic foeus on cost oplimization and
immovotion will remain central to delivermg long-term sharehalder value.

Acknowledgment

The Board expressos its appreciation to our employees, customaors, figancial institutions,
shareholders, and regulators for their continued support and trust. Together, we will continue ta
strengthen Roshan Packages Lomited’s rote s a leadme, sustainable, and resilient packazmg
eompany 1 Pakistan,
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KPMG

To the members of Roshan Packages Limited
Report on the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audiled \he annexad consolidated financial statements of Roshan Packages Limited
and |fs Subsidiary (“the Group"), which comprise the consolidated statemenl of financial posilion
as al 30 June 2025, and the consolidated siatement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive Income, the consolidated statement of changes In equity, the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and noles to the consolidated financial
statements, (ncluding matenal accounting policy infarmation and other explanatory information,
and we state that we have cbtained all the Information and explanations which, to the best of our
knowledge and belief, were nacessary for the purposes of Ihe audit,

In our opinion, consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of the Group as al 30 June 2025 and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash fiows for the year then ended in accordanca with the accounting and
reporiing siandards as applicable in Pakistan,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Inlernational Standards on Auditing (1SAs) as
applicable In Pakistan. Our responsibliities under those standards are further described In the
Auditor's Respansibilities for the Audit of the cansolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are Independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Frofessional Accountants as adoplad by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fullilled our other sthical
responsibilities in accardance with the Code, We believe thal the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate o provide a basis for our opinion

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matters are those matlars that, In our professional judgmeant, were of most significanca
in our abdit of the consclidated financial statements of the curren! period. These matlers were
addressad in the context of our audit of the consolldated financlal slatements as a whole, and in
farming our opinion thareon, and we do not provide a separate opinion,

187 Anmml Repor DOEE
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Following is the key audil matter

J——

Sr. | Key audit matter How the matier was addressed in our audit

Neo.

1. | Ravanue Mauﬂm Io assess the recagnition of '
Refer & motes 418 and SO o e revenlz, amongst others, included the follawing.
unconsolidated financial siatements: « Dbtaining an underslanding of the

process relaling to recognition of |
i s ot on nced 0 | (e o s sy s
sl implementation of relevant  intemal
The Group generales revenue from sale of controls identifled in such process:

packing material o domesic customers. .

Revenua is & kay parformance (ndicator and e m’gmmm r::'nm
iharefors Unl Inlerral anid extemal |' nition and llance of the
siakahotders s, Conseanty, thar | {o0nton d Complance of i ply
mighl ba pressure o achieve forecasted app '
results. This could lesd 1o an increased sudil | « Venfymg a sample of revanue
risk relating to revenues recorded near year- transactions recorded near year end with
and, sales omers, sales invoices, dalivery

_ . challans and other relevant underying
We \dentifled recogailion of revenue bs a documents;

key audit matter bacause revenue is one af
tha key performance indicator of the Group « Verfying, on & sample basis, that

and gives rise to a risk Ihat revenue may be specific revenue transactions recorded
regogrized withoul transferring the control just before and just sfter the financial
near yiar end year end dale havie bean recognized |h

the sppropriate financial period by
comparing with sales omders, sales
invoices, delivery challans and
relevan! underlying documeris, and

» Assessed he appropriateness of joumal
ontries posted to the mvenue account
during the yesr by drawing a sub-
population meating ceraln specific sk
based crileria and comparing the datalls
of such joumal enires wilh the
underlying documentation and
aczounting records; and

* Assassing the adequacy of presenialion
and disclosures relg o the revenus
as required under the accounting and
reparting as applicabla In
Pakistan

informa Other than the Financial Statements and A There

Management is responsible for the other information. Othar informaltion comprises the information
included In the annual reporl for the year ended 30 June 2025, bul does nol include lhe
consolidaled financial statemenlts and our audilor's report thereon.

Annwal Report 2025 188
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Owur opinion on the consolidated financial statamants doas nol cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion therson,

In connection with our audit of the consolidated Tinancial statements, our responsibllity Is to read
the other Information and, In doing so, considar whather the other information |s malerially
inconsistent with the consolidaled financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work wa have performed, we
conclude that there js a matenal misstalement of this other Informalion, we are required to reporl
that fact. We have nothing to report In this regard,

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financtal
statements In accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable In Pakistan
and the requirements of Companies Acl, 2017(XIX of 2017) and Tor such Internal control as
managemen! determings |s necessary 1o enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statemnants thal are free from material misstatement, whather due 1o fraud or error,

In preparing the consolidated financial stalements, management |s responsible for assessing the
Group's ability lo continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related o going
concemn and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management alther Intends to
liguidate the Group or 1o ceass operations, or has no reallstic alternative but to do 8o,

The Board of directors is rasponsible for oversesing the Group's financial reporting process.
Aw MEeSDons

Our objectives are to oblain reasonable assurance aboul whether the consolidaled financial
statements as a whole are [ree from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and 1o
issue an auditor's repont that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high leve! of
assurance, but s not a guaraniee that an audit conducied in accordance with |BAs as applicable
in Pakistan will always detect 3 material misstalement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material If, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expecied 1o influence the economic decisions of users laken on the basis of thesa
consolidated financial statemenls.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
judgmant and maintain professional skaplicism threughaut the audit. We alsa;

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whather due lo fraud or error, dasign and perform audit procedures responsive (o those risks,
and oblaln audit evidenca that is sufficlant and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting @ material misstatemant resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resuling from aermor, as fraud may Involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misreprasentations, or the override of internal contral.

« Obtaln an understanding of Internal control relevant 1o the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, bul not for the purpose of axpressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

= Evaluale the appropriateress of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management

V8G  Anniad Sepon 2025
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« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obiained, whether a material uncerlainty exists
related lo avents or conditions thal may casl significant doubl on the Group's ability lo continue
as a going concern, If we conclude thal a malerial uncertainty exists, we are required lo draw
atten in our auditor's report 1o the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statemeants or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conglusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events of conditions may cause the Group 1o cease to cohtinue as a going concerm.

« Evaluste the overall ntation, structure and contenl of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whather the consolidated financial statements

represant the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achleves fair presentation.

= Oplain sufficien| appropnate audil evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
ar business acliv within the Group lo express an opinion on the consolidated financlal
statements. We are responsible for lhe direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solaly responsible for our audit opinion.

We communigale with the board ol direclors mgarding. among other malters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficlencles in
internal control that we |denlify during our audil.

Wa also provida the board of directors with a statemeant that we have compliad with relevant ethical
requirements regarding indepandence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters thal may reasonably be thought to bear on our Independence, and where applicable,
rolaled safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine thosa matiers thal were
of most significance in the audh of the consalidated financlal statements of the current period and
are theraefore the key audit malters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law
or regulation udes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we delarmina thal a mattar should nol be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequencas of doing so would reasonably be expectad to outwelgh the public interest
bensfits of such communication.

The engagement partnar on the audil resulting in this independent auditor's report is Bilal All,

il Teese el als,
Lahore  KPMG Taseer Hadi 8

Co.
pate: 06 October 2025 Chartared Accountants
uoin: AR20251011441zRY rsVN
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

ROSHAN PACKAGES LIMITED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025
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ROSHAN PACKAGES LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025
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ROSHAN PACKAGES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

147

14

1.2

THE GROLP AND ITS DPERATIONS

The Gmup kamprises of Roshap Packages Lirmited (“the Helding Gormpary”) snd (s sutesitiary
Beshian Sun Tan Pagst Mils (Prvale) Limtited (e Subsidiany™). togsiber calisd "he Groun”

Holding Company:

Rerstian -Packages Limited (the Holding Company|] was icorgorated (n Pakistan s2 a pivate
company Imitzd by shares-an 13 August 2002 under the Companies Crdinancs, 1984 (repealad
with fhe snactmean af the Companies Act, 20497) The Company wes convared infoa public
limited comipany on 23 September 2018 and Was lialed on Pakistan Stock Exchangs Limiled on 28
Faomiary 2007, (b is principaly stoaged In the manulaciue snd sals of carugslion shd Nesible
packapitg mslanalks,

Subsidiary Company

Rastian Sun. Tas Papsr Mils (Private) Umitsd (e Subsidiary, il 100%  benefical
shamshiliding of the Howliig Company] wes indorporsted on OB shuary 2018 under le
Gompanies Drtnance 084 (repeaied witl) the oractment of the Companss &1, 2017) 35 &
arnvate limiiad company, The Subsidiary Oomgany hes been ostablished @ sel Up Susingas of
ma:E!aemﬁng, dealingand supply &F camugatad papers, The Sutsidinn's ihanclal vearands alss
e B0 Jume

Consolidated financiol statemants

Thess financel stalements are the consolidaten financial staements of the Roshan Packages
Limited (ihe Holdirg Company) and its sibsidiary (he Group)

The oEogreptioal (coations Ard addiessss of e Gralp's miness unita. imsluting produstiee
inmlilas s as Lnder '

Halding Company

- Hean affize and remstorad offioe: 325 G-l M A Johar Town, Lahoe,
Warketing offica: 164, Parsa Towes, PECHS Blook-s, Shanrn-a-Fmsal Karach

- Gorrugation maskaging plent | KM, Sundisr Baiwind Hasd, Latoes

- Flaibie paokaging plank Pigl Ne 141, 142 and 144-B, Sundar Industriol Estate Wik,
Lahare )

Subsidinry Company

The ragleiemmd affice af the Subsidiary Company = siluaad at 325500 Jobar Town, Lafiors
Pun@.

The |snd purchassd fof seitmg up (he manulactirng fagility s stusted a8t M2 Lahore-
Ialamalad mnforway, distiel Shalkhipues near vilage Mandlals gnd Daimpur adisnent fo
Clusld-a-Azam mausiial Aopare| Fark,
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BAGIS OF PREPARATION
Ststoment of complianca

These tarsolidated findnosl slaloments have baen prepured Iy atcopdance wilh he acenining
@ reporing swandards 2 applicabls In Pokisian. The sccountng end régoning stenidands
apphicebls im PElEtan comprise af;

Ilepiatisnal Financial Reporting Staodacds (FRS) |smLey by tren (isteematiomn)  Aneaudilig
Standards Baard | IASE] as nobfied under fhe Compames Aot 2007 (ths Aty

Elammic Financial Avoounting  Steodsmds (IFAS) Bsoed by e Inslilute of Chafersd
Aceourzanis aof Pakisian as notilied urdar the Companes A, 2017 2ou

- Priyision of anid dirsatlyes smied undat e ol npanias Aot 2047

fr mase the reoguirsmsnts of the Oumparmss A, 2007 0l tram e (FRS Siemddares or |EAS, the
regllrarments of he Campareis At 2017 have bean folawed,

Standards, interpretations and smendments 1o approved Sceounting standards that are ot
i effeative

Thaie gre new anid amendsd atindamds snd Interprstations that sie mandatory fer sccouning
paricita tedinning om ar atter 1 July 2024 and &6 congidsrad nobio ke rsleian or donol kave sy
sagnitheant sttect on the Gompary's Ahanci stalemants and ame Deetore ol atatad In hese
fimanoial statmne)is

The fallbwing Intematenal Firancal Reporing Smadards (IFRS Bandards ) a= nolifiad uhdar the
Comipamies Ao, 2017 gnd Ihe amendmenis and Inlemratationy (hecsto Wil be affsciive (o
scaounting senods beginning on an atier (1 July 20625

Zale or Confribofion of Assely beiwesen @ Invesior snd s Associate o Joint Venirs
(Emendments o IFRE 10 gad 185 28] smand donouniing trestmem on loss ol oontrol of
Bipsuiess or essels  The smendmenis slen bodoos e agcolnliog for less lequeent
traneaictlon et valvay rmliher oot iar full) st of certai retanien nibeegls i assets that
are nol businessas  Tha effective date fdr these chandes has beer deferrad indefintaly unh)
tha completion of & brevsder raview. Early adoptian sonlinues o be pemmitted

Lanhk of Exrhangeabdity lamendnels o A5 21 ) clanty

Wher @ purfngy = exchanasatils into another cunmney, and
= Mo @ Company estiimales 3 spol raln whisn 2 curtendy lacks ekchangealility,

Further, sompanies will need o prowde new disalosures lo fielp us=rs assess e Impact of
Wsing an eslmaled exchange rmle on Ve insnial satements. These dsalssinsg miphl
Imelisde

- Db vt and firsnosl impscts of B coreany nol belng-eschinmsstle;
- e spml ekmhangs e ubed

s esatiFnation prociss: G

rrehs to the, Company because e currmnoy & not eschEngeshin,

THe- aniendimersts apply fr annuel epoding parods bequining of o aiter | Janusry J025
Earilerapplbcaton e i,
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Amendimenls 10 the Classifipation and Measuremall of Fmanoial  Insleumanies -
Amentments o IFRS 9 Financial Instruments-and IFRS 7 Firancial instruments,

Ctlaclasiitas:
Fmancial Assets with ESG-Linked Teatures:

Lindsr IERS 9, I'wss unclear whsthsre (e conlrsotual cash Naws of some Anancial sssats
with' ESG-linked faatures represented SPPL This could Mave mesulted q financkl assets
with ESG-linked leaturas: being measured al fair valoe teough profit or Dss

Although the new amendmenis are mare permskive, they apply to all Gentingent faatures.
ol Just ESG-|iked Fa_a_luran_ While fhe amendmenls may - allaw ceilaln finsnclsl assels
with sontingent features o meal Fie SPP anterion, dompanies may need to perorm
additional wark lo prove this, Judgement will b8 required in determining whether the naw
lest s mel

The amendments infroduce anl aoditional PP est for fnencial assets with comtingent
fealurss thal are not relaled dirselly to 3 changs In basic lending risks or costs — e,
whare the cash fiows thangs depending on whather the bomower meets an ESG larget
gpecified in ine lvan contrmst

The amendmants. also incliide additiondl dsclosures tor all financial asssts and finsncal
lakilitles that have certaim contingant features that ars;

ol relpted dirsctly 1o & changs i basi lending rsks or costs; and
are nol measurst at fair value through profll or lass,

The amendmeants apply (or reporing perlods beginning on or alter 1 January 2026
Companies can chocss o sarfy-adop! these amendments (ncluding the assackted
distlosura. requirements), separataly from the amendments for the recognition and
derasognitin of finsniiel agsets and fnsncial |isbililiss.

- Recogniion  Derecegnition requirements of Financial Assets | liaolies by
Electronic Payrments:

Tne amendments o IFRE 2 clanfy whah a linensial assel of 8 financiai Hability 15
reaognized snd dejecognized and provide an exceptioh for caflaln Tingncial abiilies
settigd usimg &l electronic payment system, Companias generally derscognize Helr tade
payabies on (he sallleman date (e, when the gaymenl |5 cofplatad) Howavar, the
amendments provide an sweeption for the derscognition of fimancial lzbilives. The
axception allows (he Company to demscogrize it rade payabie before the satlament dite,
wiven I uses an electronic payment system that mesis all of the following criteria;

. na practival abllity o withdraw, stop or cance| the payment instriction;

. ne practical ahilty 1o access s cash lo be usad for setlement 25 a resull of the
paymant matriciion, and
tha sattlement rak assocmsted with the lectronic payment eystem (s Inslgnificant

The amendments-apply Tar renoring penads teainning on o after 1 danuary 2024, Eartlier
application s permitted
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= Ciher relzled amehdments
- Caontractuslly inked metrunisrts (CLIE) and non-racourse featlres:

The amendments clanfy e key charactensties of CLis and hew thay differ rom financis
segats with non-recourse. features, The amendments also mglude facirs that & Company
nestls to consider when assessing the cash fiows underlymg 2 financial asset with non-
recourse eatures (Ihe look theough' (est),

Digelzsurgs on [nvasiments i equUity instruments:

The amendments reguire addilional disclusores for mvestments i equity msiruments thet ars
mezsured &Y falr value with gains or [osses presentsd i olher comprehensie noome
(FVOCI).

The amendments 2pply Tor reporting peflods beginming on or dtter | danuary 2026, Earfier
dpplication s perfhitted,

= Annual Improvements o IFRS Accounting Standards — Amendmeants o)

- IFRS | Firsttime Adoption of Intemational Financlal Reporiing Standards;

= IFRE ¢ Financtal Instruments: Disclosumss and i's accompanying Guiddnce on irmpiemeniing
IFRST;

- |FRE 9 Finatital nstriments;
- IFRS 10 Consolidated Finanwal Statemants; and
- |AS 7 Statemen! of Cash flows

Thi= amendmenis 1o IFRS 9 addriss;

a conflict batwean IFRE S and IFRS 15 Revenug ffom Conlacts will Cuslomes over s
iilial measuremant of irate receivables:

Updsr IFRS 15, & tade receivable may be recognited st an amount thal differs fran the
transaction price — &g, when the franssction prce s vanable. Conversaly, IFRS @ raguires that
carryranies inllaly measure trade receivables withoul a sigmiican! inanting companen| al the
Iransaction price.

The IASE has amendsd [FRS 9 o requirs companes o nilially measurs 8 liade recevalie
withollt 2 signiicant financing cemponent at the amount determined by applying IFRS 15 and

how & lessen aceounts for the demoognition of & iease abilly under paragraph 23 of IFRS &

When lease limbllites ars deregoanized Under IFRS 9, the differance betwesn the carmying smount
and he considerallon paid ls recagnized in prafil of loss

Thie amantdmenl on eds recslvables may redulre some companies o chamge helr accounllng
pofiny

The amendments apply for anhual reparling pestods beginning on orafigr 1 January 2026, Earller
application (& permitied

The amendment on darecognition of leass llabilties applias only o lease |abliies exfinguished on
wr after e beginning ol the srnual repeiting petiod In which te amendmdnt (s firsl 2pplisd

The ahove amendmentsimprovements are effective from Ariniial periods beginning an of afier el
Jiily 2025 and ars nol IKely 1 nave mpael an the Croup's financial sialemanis
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23

Hasis of measuremeant

The consoidated nancisl elsEments nave feen oreparsd under the Meionol oozt comvarnbon’
emcegt for freehold bsnd, building, plent snd maghinery end slestric mstallations which are
measyted Bl revalued amoli (Bss subssauenl stoumlaled daprenstion anld sdbEssuenl
anpU R paiiment lossas and iallsomn] benall atliganoms wilich gra inssursl 21 issant

1 g -

Functianal and presentation currenay

Those finahcis| statements are presented s Pakistanl Rupses ("R=") whith i3 e Greup's

famifinrel cursnny, All financial Infarmation presansd 0 Rupess nas been rounded off 1o ihe

pEarast Bupes, uniegs olhenwise slaied

Key judgments and estimates

The pregarabon of irana@-slatsments in aanformily wilh goceummg end repomng mandsrds. &5
applicabds In Pabistan, regures mzpsgsmant b nmske odorsns estimalas 2o assumplions hal
affert Ihe gpplicalion of scoaunting policias and mpenad amounls sfassets and inbillllas, poome
any axpenzes. Uncarainty about these assunptions 2nd estimates codld resull in cutcomes:thal
require & materal adfustment 1o the camyma amount of assets or lizbilities affected i folure
prTndE

dudgminils and salimates made by Ihe mansgarment In he appiicaion of accounting snd raparting
standarde. a& anplicable jn Palisian thal s elevant o financal siatements sre dooumanted in
the falowmnaccounting-pofices and netas. and migmE prma i ol

Stepitcring sanmine fuife

= Revalaton of laed. bulding: elant and manfinery and aiecins instalallons 41
Uit esbmates and Uogsmenis
- HEFJ'FB.I'JIE'HBFI raethiel, ratEs G uselul lvss ol operalite

Mxed arid dahloi-Lse Sean 4.1
< Favenue recognition. Whetier fevsnue frm produects

raconized over dme

of @t paint i tme d. 79
= |oans lemis a4
= Employes petiranim penofits 470
= Frovson for Toaxagon a2
= ppairment of lnsnols: asssts 4237
- Tontppencles 18

Going congern - Subsldlary Compary:

Bunng the e, e Sibstiary Company ot (ors of Ra 0030 milllan (2024) Fs, 18622
mililen), and @z 30 dure 2025, Ihe Submolory Company's accamulEiad geses amadniz o Rs
A02.65 milllon (2024 Rs- 572 26 millian). Despite balng esiablished m FY 2016, the Subsidiary
Gampany &5 yet lo surmeres. comstrustion of (le manufadtuing dlant, Further. the Subsidlary
Campany's oparatons i fits regamt are Pindered dus o delayed approvals om the reguistony
aullboriies gpo hpancial oinstne
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Thesie (mmditnns @nd svsnts indicate e swatenne of malansl andaramty thal may silee
sigrifieant deubtah e Subsdiaty Company's atility to sortimie 35 gning sadern ahd, harsfar:
fre Subsidiery Company may be unable o realiee Bz assets and discharse e aoilbes 0 e
i colse of Busines

The Bubsidiary Cenpany hes prepersd 8 evised DUSTIEES pEn, whensn, mansgement wants o
giimmenea sonsinigton sl plant site. wib proouremeni of plent Bng machinery, a= soon @&
poksitle Uhder e latast feasibiity, total canial aapdndilun agureiment |s s5imated o b Rs
ALE Lllllan {exciuding Inlevest dxpensg), Mejinty gotian of ths planned output s espoctisd 1o b
ullized by Roshan Packages Limitad (ine Parent Compeny), substiuting the nesd forextamal
procdmmant. The Bubsidisry Company sxpects fo comimance production wikin twe (2] years of
eamimefssm=il af corstniction process. Undet the business plen. (he capitsl experditure Wil b=
Timangad by 8 combmanan of sqully =nhd long-term ioen Eiiss

Presiciaty, the Pammst Company in s Anngagl Seneral Meesng neld on 28 October 2020 had
approvad addiianal sguily mvesimeni sp o Bs 800 milion n the Subsdiary Company ano has
rreesad e Nmik ef tye Jong-tdon lagn b the Subsidiery Company up to Rs. 00 mblldn The
Baard of Direclors of the Parent Oonipany, (i #s mealing dalad 28 Apfll 2023, funher incressed
sz Tt oF opQ-term joan o Ke 700 milllion: Boring W year, e lindl of fong ferm leen was furlbisr
meresssd fo Fe 800 millan In he mesting held on |7 Apnl 2024

The Subslisty Company has sscumd mongage spproval Unase S2chon A9-4 of e Land
Acgulelion Act, 1894 and the Diswial Counel Shaikhupura haz geanted linal mapibukising plan
approval, with & suscesaful defenze of eonversion lee exemphon under Aule 27 of the Land Use
Rudes 2020, resulting in subslantiEl savinos. Conmermntly, negotistions with EPLT confradior for
proclrenient, PsiFistion and commissioning of hepoeel &re it progress. with e sgreemenl
capEte by b nlanEe e sehkevement of fnancsl clesg

In the Boord of Drectar meetng of Subsialary Compzny teld on 11 Oecemsor 2084, the
stuehoitiens approved the norease [0 the Banl ug share caplial of e company, enabling the
Parant Company (o tomvart e lmas [scality Intg fosthar sguily

The Subsidiary Company ie S50 negolieting farther financing faiiies willy sommsi| banks 1
meet iks capital esp=pditune Equirements. Subssguent o yesr end, e Subsdiary Company has
ragaived a drafl term shaat rom s Bank nowsver m pnnoipad aporoyval £ @waiad from tha bank,

The Parent Company has orovides 8 formml ledsr of support o the Subsidiary Company
anmmiting va provide sonlinued finamcal sippot e enshle the Subsidiary Company ta somplete
It rriitlFacturicis Faniiity ane dischange s oliligatiens, as and wiwn ey f8ll due The Bogrd of
Directars of (s Sutsidiany Campany ramains committad 1o (mplamant tha ravised business plan
Based on these faciors, e managemen of the Subsidiary Compamy 5 confident ihat the
Subsidiary Company wodld b skile b sonlivie spsmtinns for [eresesable kiure. Adrardingly, Ihe
lnancisl statemients of e Group and e Subsitiany Coipany Pave been prepsred an . going
consen Hasls

Kiaterial Accounling peliclos

The westerns sccounting policles Bdopted in e ooegacafion of mese consolidsled fremcial
staemants: have been consistenty applled to 2l the yeas prasented, unless otherwise soted
hbate Al pacounting policies are disclosed beime
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4.1

Proparty, plant and sguipment
Oparating fixed azsets

Al nperstlng e sssels B state s cost ess acclmidal depranaton Snd amouaiand
(e pfemed) Insses. i ity txcapt for, Frachnld |2nd, tuling o frediold and, plant and meoinary
any alsctrie |rstallatons whieh 2ne sfated st tevalled amou Iegs sibseduent Aot
dupraciation dnd subssguent Bcaimulatsd mpaimnent Iosses, |V any. Revaluatonz arg performsd
gy independant valuss with sufficient mouency to ensure thist f@r velue of @ ievalued agsst doss
rictk il prslerially front s carrying armaied

Eubsequant eosts ars ineluded [ e aseal's Eaiihg Amount of reconnisd Be a sagarele asial,
#5 ApmanEta. only wien it s prbabia hat futire eeonomic benaefis assoomind with s iwmoal
flaw 10 the Group and the cast of the lem can be measurod mliably, Al other ropar snd

mailtEndnre sosts are charged by :Iﬂhﬂnﬁrﬂ ot profit ar loss during the genod in whith ey are

Ingureg

[Feprecaton on all property, plant and sgquipment 15 chamsed o he oonsobddted statement of
profit er lass an the educing Balands melhod, exspl lor Bulldings e lreehald =2, glant snd
machinery and refaled el nelalalions which are belpg deprediated usihp the stmight lins
methiod, sd 8z o owrits off e Wetoricel cost of an oassst over o estimated  weafl ife et
depraglsyon rales meptiened in rote & alar @king nte aceount thelr meeidual valies,

Resmuzl value and e wselul g of asists are javiewsd &1 each finascial year and ang I
opEciannne diffar from previods wElimates, e chande in Boceunted Jor 35 changi in sccounting
aghimate inaccardance with WS B - Azcounimg Polices. Ghanges n hocodinting Estimates snd
Errais.

epreemto on addions to operatiig assets (5 charged wher (he llem becomes ayvairtie fur iss
il terias i Me elanr e W the auaet w ratited i deliye s

A rebaihiation sunpius (s recorded In slataminitl of shmprananeye Weam 3nd cradied 1o the aceel
ravaluation sumplis | sguity, Howaver, to ihe =aenl inal | raverses 8 rebaliation deficil of fhe
seine asEel previously rseognizad in profit o lasa, the increass s recogrized 15 profit oF loes. A
rewaiuation defiol 13 recoanized nthe statement of profitor bes. ewmepl 1o the exdtent that it offssts
an edisling strplus an the same assal reaognized in the astel tavaliatinn suplus

An-amual mEnsfer from hegssat evslualion surplus 10 mlained samings 8 made for e

nitferance batwsan Hepracalion bosen on the evaless aamying amoont of the assel z2na
Apirerlatinn based on (e assels’ original st Cokl and apnumulated dupracation of assas U
(he dalz of revalusten are grossed up with e rEle of revalaalion (proportionald iestalemant),
cabmiated oo e bazis of fel book vaiue bafons fevaldation ard fair vaiue of respactve assals

The galn af [oag on dspesel of ratimement ol an gssal representa By the dfammee belween he
ale procreds and e camying amount bs retogiteed aE ai [ncoma of Expanse [n sopialidalid
statament of profil on loss:

Capial werk-in-progress

Capital wark In poogress sod sieres. held for capiial expenditire are sigled ab cosl (s B0y
idanitfisd Tmpairmeant loss:ent repmseni expatiditire meured on operatig fked assats during he
senstrution and nstaliation. Cost slsn includes spplivstile Gormwing cpsts, ® afy, Tramsters ae
made o rslsvanl operating iked Bsssts calsgary &5 and Wheh 5s8eis ans svaiable fir use
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4.2

43

44

Basis of consalidation

Subsidiary Company

Subgiriary Company 1= e snily over which he Gredsp Fag contol Ths Groug conbioks o sniiy.

whaer the group k= amose:d oy or has fghts o, vanaple rehians from it mmeoiermeani wit the ooty
and |1ag the abilly to affert thase mtums lhmegh s power o dired) he activiies af fhe sntty.
Subsiiary is fully oonsclidated from e date o which cantrol s ransfered 1 Ihe Group. Tha
Chroup ceases consoldaion from e dats when oniral 1= Jast

InfEmoompsany franzactions, balEnces and . uhealicod  odine on h'anaaclmni Detwee o
rompaniee sre sliminated Unraaized losses drs alio eliminated unisss the rersaction. provides

ExliEncs of an impakmmenl of he renstsred assel Arenunlimg policies of subsidiaey ave baen

rhangad whsre netessary fn emslre canEEony wilh Ne polleles gdanted by 1he Group

Man-gontroling inleemss (NG I s results snd sguity o sussidary ass shown sspeiaioly o
consoliaated statampot of -profit of |ose, consplidaten styement of compremenswe Incoame,

‘Penzolidatay sttemnl of ahanges i equity and consolidated statement of fivansisl posiion,

respeCtively
investment properties

Irvestmanl property, which i propery bei (o eam menfais anlar @ capial apprecistion,
Innieairy prapery Under tenstruchon far such purposas, B maaslied inhally 8t s cost inotuding
Irarsscion cosls Subsaguen b niel moogrisen nysstmesnl propesy s messured 8f oosl jess
AR leiat] cenreshation B sy ifomeant s

The f=ir value of mwesment propary 2 dotermined al e end of sach year for disclosusy
purpesee to comply with e requiremont of 148 &0 wana ourrent markiel pnces for comparable
resl matate adjustod for any differences moslufe, [ocation and condidan. The usaful lvas; (esidual
valuss snd deprediglion method are reviewad Tn & regular bass. The aftec! of any changes |n
Eslimals & socounied by on @ prospeciive beasie Furlber  deterrinng ariosliments for sy
differences 1 nalire, Indsish and aondiben of e Mwesineit popsarty fvolies  sigiiizn
[

Leases

The Group assesses al montract mekEpticn whether 3 comract k8, or somtains, 8 iBEse Thst b5, f the
contrect conveys The fght W conhed e use of an igenhillsd assel for & ganod of linsin exchangs
o tibrsideration

The Group applles 5 srgee reoogniion s mess rErmen apnmsc (or gl leeses, swepl for ghor-
term luakas and leasas of low-valie assets, lany The Gralp reognldes ass labllities lo maks
ass payiments and rahi-af-use sssuts jspresenling I dahl 1o use e yndarying asses

a) Right-of-usas assets

Thie Bpaup eeidmes fght-al-ise assals ol he ran‘m‘-&nmmpnr dale of ihe frase (1., e
dats e undarying n¥sat = svsiiable for uge). Righl-ofise assats am meaziied at post et
any accumulated daprecsation and iImpamment inases. end adusted for any remeasuramant of
lpase labiliss The nogt ol nabi-olubse gssels includas e smount of fease ebililes
renadniEEn, pitEl dirssl coss ipouried, snd ease pEpmente mads &l oor bisfors the
crfinangament dale ess any s ndenlives recelved  Right-et-ide Bi3ois are depracialad
aeir the shartar of thin usafdl Hte and base ami
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45

I awmemship of ihe Based gasat imnsias i the Groug & e snd of e lsese benm o ihe anst
reliacts e exermige of B purchase oplion, deprasabion B cslouisted using he estimEed
useil He: of the 2ssal The nghit-of-uss assais are alag sulneet To mpsrmmen

by Lease liabilitiss

Al e commenesinaal daie o e eqs, e Group ecognres sase laEbiilies measursn sl
The prasenl valus of lagsa paymunis [ be mede avaer e lease laem The laase payrmels
Imclude Fed payments less @y laase inoorives racoivabls, Farable leana payimants thal
depand on BQ index or-a rale; &nd amounts espocted fo DR paid under nesidusl velos
guargniges, The lease payments slao Include Ihe exermise priee of a purehase option
rersanably cerali o be axeraired By e Crogp and paymients gt penalies Mo leeninafing e
fmase. I (he fease lam refletts e Group sdemising e Bpllon o leinlnats, Vadable lsase
paymests hat oo nol aepaad on an Index.of 3 rele are feoooRied 25 sipensss Imiha perodg
I which (heze araincuired:

g} Short-tarm lnases and leases of low-yalue assets

Thie Carmpany applles the shortem lagss recagniiin examption 1o s shoel-lerm lbdzes F
i (i.&., thase eases that Heve & lBase of 12 manths or lass fam (ke commencement
dite snrl do mot pontain 3 purmhase opuon) I slso oapphies he Base of loN-vaEilE @sseis
recogrition sxemplion o leases thal are ol low value Lesss payments on shori-tem leasss
and leases ol oy valde dssely sre recogiized 88 Bapiense on 8 srlahi-lne basls over the
besige fanm,

i) Determining the laase form of contracia

The Grovg datermines: ite: ase lerm e e nonscancallablo erm of ine ase. logathar with
any patiads covered Ly an st ta ekl fae laage I | s teasanably m_!rn;ln o L minasreisall,
of &y peneds Govensd by sh option to lemmiale the Bass, (1 IS reasomably cenain pof o be
Erercigen

The Group's wase conlrecls beluds axtensien and lgpninallon oplions, The Graug spplies
Sl iy ovisiating Wit itis raasonably gartEin whisther or fol o eeerciss he option
10 renmE or tarminatd the losse Thal s, it considess @il mievanl factors that oreste an
economin ncenllve for it lo smerciss either the renewsl or termimatien Afer the
enmmanoement dats, 1he Golp eassessas the lbass term I ihs |5 & slgniticant event o
dhdngé [ drcymaiziees hat & within s contral ann affedls s anilily ts sxers: o mol e
axarciEs the oplion o renow oF lEmmirsts.

impalrmant of non-financial assets

The ezrryln Amounts of mon-linancla azsels ffer |h‘a'_l'l Intieritaries are reviewid itafﬁl:h reparting
date to detacmine whether there 15 any ndlaton of impsmmant. I shy audh ndiceation swists, hen
the aqsel 5 TeeovaEable amount & estimaled

The razuverable amount of sh auset or Cash-guerating Ui s e gher of 8 valbe in vze and e
fair walue. jess costs tooaell, In sesessing eslue novae, the estimated fulure cast fows: ore
disootinfea to thelr prasent valle using @ dlscount rete that rellests currsnt market assessment of
ihe Wime valle af mney anil the nsks specillc (o e ssesl Far fhe purpese of Impaimmen| tesiing
muanls (hal ganndt Be =2atd ndividusly are gioppeil wgethar M S smalies! omiup of sssate
ihvat genarates cash inflows am eonflnuing use that re |lamely indeprndanl of the cazh nflows of
othar sty aryreups of 3sgete (M "oaeheasnaratieg Ukl o EGLY

Arnug! Repart 2028
roshanpackages com pk

ROSHAN PACKAGES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4.6

4T

479

472

4.8

Tha Group's comorle asseie do nol genemio separatecan mllows. 1 here s an ndiorion hat
a yofporste azsat imay be iopained. thaen (e meoderable smoun) S detbimipay f@e e CEU e
winfoh the sorporots sssel bekinge. An arigairmen] 1588 |s maogneed Fike camying-amolnt ol an

aaset or s COL exceeds iz astimeted recoveratie amount Impanment lesses 2 eoogniced in

ronzclidated slatemas of profil or loss

Impairment lass recognized in prior perods 5 aseessed &t each reporing daie o eny indigations

bt e (osa has deoresssd or no fonger sosts; An imparmen) iogs is revesed if here hasbesen 3

change n the eslimales used ta determine the reeoverable amount. An impalment loss s
revifsad anly b tha axdent Al the ad458's ariving ammnl doss nal axoeed e cErTyleg amviing
that wiilld Fave baan dntatiminod el al dagreaiation or amartization, IFf Ao irmoEmant (ess harl
fraEn racognized

Leng tarm degosiis:

The Weg-lem déposits fnellde deposits ﬂgai_hm:_ Neaeste sitraiamente dod thise rgesesily fijm
Litlfity eanrpanias

Invantary
Siores, spares and other consumzahles

Thesso e vialuen 20 ower of cost, which = calpfatea n[:rnrmng ior OWING v rage mathod, and
ik realizalbln yalug, St |6 transit ate valbed st invoice value intdiding otler dhnrges, I any,
mourrad thereon The Group reviews the samang smaunt of stores spd spanes on & reqular bese
g0 praviaion s made lor sbsolescencs (| rEguirad,

Srock-n-trade

Thege sre sistad 31 the Wwer of cost, which B caloulated accarding 1o moving average method,
gnil astmisted nel reahzatla velus

Cos-oomprsesall costs of Durchase, cosl of gonvensian ard OINer Cos: jourad in Drngng e
atnok-r-trage to their present Ination and sandlbon. and valuaton hes teen detenmined &s
[aliaws

R, mglansl= gt Stz o)

Waork-n-grogess amd Cosf ol difsn) matials, il and sppmoptale mamaeirg
Ntz Joods UaErtisds

Stk intrarsitds valied & & cosl|, comipnsing Ilusiss valas phis oiter charges invaicsd Inse on.

het rmalizabie veiue sighifies e asfimawd selling pnce 0 he odinery courss of business bes
eatmalog costs of complation and kstimated costs necessary to maks the s=le

Trade recaivaties

Trade mesivablas sie mlially maapired @ el egnakEtion ;:rlnu heEr [F RS 16 anid subsesgletly
mwasured 3l amorized cazl lass 3ny allewanes lor sxpectal cradil lises
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iy

4o

Alinwanne lot expealed oredl| o8 (BCL ) s based an the dili2msbon Gelwean the oonfraeiial oash
et Il accnidance with the contiact 2nd all ihe odah fuws |74 The Sroup expacs (G bepive,
Thia 2hartfall |= Ihen discountad stsn-appreximation lo 1he assers onginal affective nferest rals.
For frade s ather racervablas; the Group kas apphed the aimplified. approach sad zaloulatad
Bl Hassd o ifstme aspected gredl nsses, The Grolp uses prewision matme that i based on
the Graup's historics eredil Ings sxpersncs, adjusiad fof devam-noling factbr whish nalides
E0E, potsuman prige mdex, urmmpoyment 2o nkersst fale Howiever 0 ol cases (ha
Groun may alga considar 2 linencEl aseel W ke 0 defadd) when mormal o extrmal nformation
Iniiratee (hat e Sroup is unikely s jecslve e oumtanding convssfual amounis n G, et
IaKiig Inte account any chadil anhancements hsld by e Groap.

The assessmen| of ihe copdiztion betwern dsiaris nbisaryed ehalalin rtas, foreEast sondainid
cofdiiepe and BESL s an selimale Thi amguit of B01L o gansitlve b, cipnges in fiumetaneis

-antl of fnfecast Bcdnomie Eanditions. The Grabp's hetarical credit loss axperionse and forsegsl of

eomamic conditions may alse not be reprasantative of customer's aciual datault in he uturee,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and aasn sgayEans o he st of nancs| gesilion uomprse cash @l bEnks and on
feacrel nl Ehort-term fghly liglid oepesis with & malunty T thiee months o less, that ara raaily
Srearfible 1o 3 ki ameunt of cash and subjsc) to ap insignifoand sk of shatges imyake

Far the purpose of statamen) of casn flows, cash ahd cash sgiivilents compriss of casl atid bank
tefe [ioes And sk Dy Jyvastmats, el ool cutstandige ool [inanes Balancas as |y ane
considered B8 an intograt part of the Gimup's sash managemant.

Employes retiramant benefits
Thia Erodip opseatos thia fallowing ietiiemanl sivd alhisr schimis for 12 smployess
a) Defined bonafit plan

This Geeup coerates an uriunded gratully sshame Tor dectors and warkers (excluding
manEgemaEn eplyeps) Mo emmioes @ efioibie for benefitplan || ssnoce poro = less han
ane vesr. The Sroup's oblgation in respect ol defined benefil plan |5 calculilsd by éstimating
ihe mrmount of future bensfils et emoloyess laye ssmed in the cursnt @nd prioe yesrs

Thi entity recaqnizes e delinsd vepell daiity v the conzolidated stabsmait &1 liranosl
peslion, The cost of providing borefts under (He-gefived banefil plan = dalaminad by an
indppendant qualiied aciuary v ihe projscted tnit gredl methed. Actuanal yaibanon 8
conddoiad Bvary yaar, The [afesl vallmlon was canied ool sz &l 30 June 2035 Lslig e
progeniad Ll cradit msthod '

Fa-maasurements. comprsing af actuaial gaing and leszes from chanaes n actuania and
expErEna: assumplions lor gratulty are recogrize) mmedistaly’ in Ihe consofdated saiempn
of fimanoial posifion With & correaponding debil or oradit o imeppropnated profits trough othsr
mompEhEngue. incomme N ihe pariod (nowhich ey ccour Re-measuremant of gafmed el
Hahilty' s recotnl2ad In cotnolidated slatemen) of eomprehedibia ncoms aid shall et s
puilssfioo o poaft o) 0SS 0 spRedUlenl porois
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Pl sarvice: gosls are reocogniesd In the profit or |oss on asrdizr af; the dee of iha. plan
amundmant ar suralimant, dod e dale whe)s anlity recoanides relaled rastiueiunng cosl Neg
Interest iF celculatea by applying the discount st 1o fwe defned benaf) labibty, This sntity
racognEes e curment sesvice Cosl past sarvichE 0osh goins @nd nssaes on curniliments: nons
reltine selfements and net interest expense or mopme chengas N the defined benefit
abligatioms i ihe forsnldale) stafemen ol proll o oss

The antlly recopnizas e dafined banefit lInbiites in e consclugiod statament af fnencial
posifion. The wesl of providino bensfits wrdor ine deflined benefit plan s delermmed by 2n
indepandenl quallfied ootuary using the proected Unit cedil method N actusriat
remeastrEmants,  current #nd  pesl setyice posts’ ahd imeres] oozl sre renegrided in
eomaniiaten stalsmeant of profil aress, The yaliation 15 based on e assympliohs mantionerd
[y pusles 280 tes (s mprisolidatan linaocial statemunts

The costof empioyee benefits |5 determined Lsing actuana vallatbns A6 sctomnmal vslustion
[iypfves making vanous Bssumplons (Hat may ditfer iom soiusl cevelopments n/the lulrs
Thiess lrslites e dederrmmaiian of e dsmount idts, liliie salaty noreasss, mofakly mies
snd withdrawal raias,

Oise to-the complexdtes involved inothe vaneation sne e long:tarm nawre. § dofined penafit
chligatinn |s rﬂgh}y sensitive to the chames (R these sssumpbinns, Al BEsumptions s
reviewed gl 2anh reporing dale. The Brodp wmes e valuation peffonmed by & independant
ailizry ma the precenl valueof Ke delingd bepalil ohigaion, Acluansl valalion s comdicisd
ayvery yesr and (2 based on assumplions. mamioned m notes o iness consohidated finpooal
siatemianis

Thes Griaup taces |he folawing ress on oceout of cakalsten of provisen lor amplovess benefis
Salary Increase | Inliatlan rigk:

The: Gratulty, Sthems (=@ oefined banefliachame with: beneflis: based on last drawn sakary
Therefore, 1he Tabitiies of the sohema am sansitive o i salary foreaseEs:

= Discaunt rate risk:
Thig Hieth of ohamose 0 discomm) rale may FRave an mpaed o e sohome's @by,
- Maortality nisk:
Aclual mimality sxpesionce may b diferent han that assiimed i tye stliolion,
= Withdrawal rishk;
il withidrawals expatiencs may be difersar (han thal sssumad imite clcuiEbon
) Defined contributions plan
[hering IAe y=zr e Grodp Bas dsgonlinuss arsiuly plre for s msnageinent smployess and
has intmaiuced téfines confritutory provident fund inalsad. Equal confnbléons are mada oy

the Group and employees ai 8.33% af hasic salary, The Grosp's confribution |= charged =
siatememiof profforioss

Share capital

Trdfinany sndres are cldssfind s equily gnd recognized &l their Tace valie Incrmerial mosts
dipssdly stlnbuEie to the Isqee ol ngw shdarss s abown I ity 55 8 gadusian 0l of s, o
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412

443

a4

418

416

417

Barmowings

Brrowings 3re infiially reconnised st fSir valie. ngt of tansaction coats fnsuren. Borawinns ale
subsequently measwred a8l amortised cost Any differsnce betwesn lhe proaseds [nel of
tansattion mests) and the retemplion amoblinl |z meogrised i profil or loss aver the penod of he
Bartrrenalig s Lalog e el jaleres) ol

Feee paid op ha astabilishmbnal of e Tacililles are recoqnisad 28 Pansacion cents af e LS b
thia exranttvat it & probmpie tal some or il of the faclity wil be drawn down In [his cazs. (e fee
ls-dafarmd Untll the draw-down tcurs: To the extent there i5 no Avdanae tHat | = probatis that
some o all of Ihe farfity will be drawn down, the I8 i capltaliéed a5 3 prepayment far iquidity
serviess snd dmortised oves (e perind-of e Boility 1o which || reidtes

Barowings are emovied Hom (ke ststemeant ol finanoisl postion wizen ne obligaton speriled in
thHo rentret |2 dhacimrged, esmslien ar depuad, The dilferame bebusan the cermng amoint of &

financial iabiity that hax bean axtinguishied of tansfarred lo anbihar pasty and the considerallon.

et ancluging any non-cash asaels rapsfered or iamiines sssumed (8 recognisad inopofil or
Izz a8 other noome or finence cois:

Barowings sce tlassifiad as current liabifties Unirss the Group has an uncandiibnal right ta defsr
aatilernent of the labiity for ot lsssl 12 months afier the reporting period.

Trade and otfier payables.

Trace and oifer payaties s obligations o pay for goots or services Inal nave been acgulzen mn
thies opcingry colree of pusiness from sdpplses. These gme recoghised by al f2ie yalle and
sibsaquently medsined ot amarlissd cosl usidg the sfiactive intspest mathod

Contraet labilities:

A coniratt ipkifily 5 Ihe oblipation o mnster goods of services tp & customer foe wiish the
Cormpamy tas secaied consideration (or st -amsintal donsidemiion |5 dusl o e customer |
& cuslbmar payes conaersion belore the Company lansies gonds of services o the sustomsr, 4
cotlran lmbilily 15 meoyniesd, Serirzel Ganlillss se eoogiead a5 pevence whien (e Group
pHrtarmE undan U )e eantmel.

Contrict assats

A contract ansst = e Aght lo considemstion in’ sxchiange for aoods-or sendcas frEnsfared o ihe
sustermar, The Sroup racognizas 3 confract sssat Ior e same comsidaration (hat i canditinngg If
the Graip perfonmg Gy !rénsrm'ng Aeods oF senices loa oustoimer bafore the cusionier paijs
ronsidershion ar bsfore paymenl 15 due, Fowever, the: Group tEnstem good) e inspestan by
cuslamers and taceles payrmant as per wems of sonlmel

Divitend

The Group recognzes 5 kobiity b pay 2 dividend when I & sporoved and the dembution (s no
lvrer mt the discretion af he G, A orrmeegonming amouit 1s roopnizad dimetly Inaguity

Provisians

Frovisions gre ratogniziad | the cormmoidgled staleifient of Grancial posiban when the Groug has
a lagal er constrictive obliyation a2 a esult of & pact svent snd It & peobable that an outflgw of
reanamic oenefis will be required o setle (he oblfoation and @ reletbte estimata tan ne made ot
the ameunt of ohiigaton The amowm ecognized 3z @ provslon Teflects Ihe besl asfimate of e
el el o asile e pressttobligsiian gl e sad ol e raporling frerio
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Contingent liabilitles
Copimgent hammiily & disclosed when
Ihers {& 3 pogsibie cbfigetion that anses frem past evenis: and whose existence Wil pe

cenfirmed anly By the gocorence, or pon ecodrrence of omne of mar: uhtersn il events
e witilly wittin Ahe sintrol of this Graap, or

- thare l= presen) obllgation that arises Fror pas) essnts bt it s not probable that am outflow of
rrEGlTES embadying sconomic benafis Wil be reaulied i sutlle the abligoion @r e amaur
ot (he aBligatnn cennol e messurad wilh sufidieat sHisbiiiy,

Revenue from contracts with customets

The Company B In he Business of manufamture and sake of corrugation 2hd Bexiis paskagmg
maietlal Revanug em pentracts with guslomars & recegrded when condrol ol the poods o
garvices |s trancleced o (e customer @l an amount (e delects (he cansidersalion 1o which e
Comparmy, sxpedis o be antided in exshangs Jor iess goods o sarvices. The Company Has
gerersly conciudad that @ = the orncipal in its revenoe errangements. Mentioned below sre
diffarent reverue sreams ot e Tompany snd Helr terms of meaognition of revenie afie
salshing Al e fve staps ol revenue reaoanlinn In deetrdancs with IFRS 16

Made-to-prdar packaging products:

THe Group Ras daterminad that for madecdo.ordar packaging products, the dustamad controisall ol
the: work n progress as the producis are beng manuetactured: This 13 becsusa ander hose
confrants, producls s hats o 8 dustomer’s specification and # & contraal is lerminaied by the
customer, hen he Grolg s enlitles o relifbursemant oF he cosfs inoumsd o dile: [neluding 2
fegsanatle- marmn, Revsnue and assooated ooils are eongnizsd over Tine — Le. balsne the
poods are dalivarsd lo ihe rusdamars promizes  Prooress & getermined basgd on ihe cost-to-qosl
el T case of cradit calas. Ivoliaes ale ssupd according ly conlraotlal fere and ane weually
payabis wittin T to 365 days. Unsinvoaed ot 3l presented 52 coplract assets

Standard pockaging products:

Tha Group retdegnizes revenie whse i transierss contral of Ihe goeds. The costomens obiain
gontrol of standard packaging products when the ooeds are aither dispetched or deliverad |z them
ahel have heen atceptad &l thell premiass Invidess are gansmted 51 that ot s Hme W9 case ol
oredil safes. jAvoices are wsually paveblE within 7 G080 davs. Mo disoodnts are providad for
standand packaging products:

Foredgn currency transiation

Vransaelons in lormign curratces s nillaly meprded by e Sompany st s Purslicaal gy
spol rates at Oe date (ha barsaction ikl gualiies fe nsognition. Monstary essets and fabiities
genominated in farepn surrencies are tanslatad at the funclional chmency spot rmtes of exchangs
at tha roporting date  Difforences ensmg, on setlament or tmnslaton of menetary ltoms =
rmtiogrrizsd i (bR ahoonsaldates sttemien) of poobil or less

Motp-mipritary | (bmms [hat gre mezsursd i wems oof ekencel cost i 8 fonoRan cuimancy B
transtated using the Sxchenge rales at fhe datez of the Iilel rensecbans. There @re no morn-
manatary dems megsiined &t (&l valle noa Tomegn camemcy In delermining (ke spol axchange
rate b Gee on tal el of e relalsl dasl exgdnse o noonis (or part of 11 on the
deracgrnition of 2 non-manoiary assat o ponemonaiary latbilly misiing e agvance conaideraion
trie et o (e trasrtsactlon b e clabt on wifleh e Gormgsny iitally reciognizes tha ran-mamskary
mmsst of renemanstan. abdity argsing fem the advenes consideratiod. F Ihers are (mulllple
paymants or reeigts In-advanes, the nensscion dete for ssch goyment or mospt of Gdvanos
conseration |8 astzmined separalsly,
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&.21

422

Taxation and Levies

[Meoime 1ay axganss comiiees af cuifen] snd dafered 12 Indoimea B expares {8 redognizerd 0
tha statemant of profil or loss except to the exiesl that i relates o lems recognized directly In
Aty f strplis on revaluaton of kel assels of i other comiprehensive moome,

Current tax and lavies

The surrant income 184 chares is caloutated on fie hasiz of (he Y laws enacted al the end of the
jeporing pefod and 5 based an

~  lmiiabks miome Gl 1He currenl e ol exalion sfier meing Ints mocaunl sppleehiz B ediis
Ehlosses, rebatas and sxampliong @vaissis, ([ any, o

= e tesavon 2 the specifieg applicanie rake Tor me umoyer or
= Aligmatvs Corporale Tax whielaver |5 [ghar sl

- &y paid on finsl 8% nsgimeE and super (AR Howsvar, for inooie coveran undsar imel ek
rEqIME, Exatnon @ bEsed on sapolicabie my it ander sudh mgrmes

A pay guidance ssie ny The inshiole of Crodersd dcpountEms of Pekisian ((CAP) vide cimuier
W02 dated 16 May 2024, amaunl of mimmum te sxceeding tex caleulated on taxatle neoms
fa treated 56 levies' and preasented sspaetidy I he statarnenl of profl or lass s mlnimd 2%
diffiretial. Furtior, fmal tives psld and supor fom tHeieen are aigs saiod es eviee aad
‘prezenied separawly i e smaman of profit or ioss

Managemant perodically evallads poailions TENoN I @y oins Wil respoct 1o siations o
Which applicable tax reguialisn & subjed W interpratation, || establishes provisions wiere
appropante on the bass of amounts sxpacad o e pan 0 ine taxahonss

Detemad lax

Pefesred fmx 15 asoounted for using the balence shest method n respeat @ all temperary
fillersnmes deising fimm dilferences hetwaen (e camying amaunt af sssets ant labilives In e
Niaheial slaismenls s e corfeapoiting ley bases Ussd in e aompulalion af s adns proil
Howeynr, dadnrmed 1oy s nalaooounien far 7 i avizes fem nilial recogrillon of an mssoet or (Ebliy
In & traneaction other han-g cusmass combination that af the tlme of tarsaction nelihar affacts
armnuntng nor meabie profl o (oss: Defarred s |@hiifies s gendrally rocognized far &l Embis

\smparany diffsrences s defered B assets ars recognzed W the exlent that it B probiabls fusl

leeziple potils will be aysiable sgainst which the deduclie: ismporany diflerences, unussd Gy
lirsses i tas oradils can be |tlllgecd

Crmterresn) b s caloulst=a a1 the rates hatars sxpacted oapply o e pennd when (e illerenses
raersk bised o G rales Gand o lawe) hat have bean anacted o substaniively cidetid 81 he
raporling mate The carying amaunt oF sl defaned S8 gssais = adewsd at gas) rapeariig Hala
and reducad 1o the sxmant that e no longer probeble that sufficient taesbie proflis Wil b avaliable
to alow all or part ol the deferred tex asseta to ba uiiized. Defered tay i charged or arediled 0
thee staterent ol profh or Inss. skeept n the case of dems dredifed or charged fo offier
camprelensive negme or Bgully nowhich easa L is nduded In allier comprehennie poome of
aguity.

‘Sales lnx

Eaperses and-assals-arm vacoginsed el of e gt of sais tax, axoapt

= When the sales lax mourreq on 8 porclas: ol assets ar samvinss:is ool racoverntia from e
mration autherty, 0 whieh case e sales La bs rHeResd s par ol he nost ol Aeguisiion of
the aizral or a8 pant of the axpenss (lBim, as applicabs.

- Whisn recsivabizs and pavelies dre stated Witk e gt ol safes e ioladed
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4,23

4.231

Tne net amount of salss i resovarabie Fom, or payebiE 1o, e faeaion authomy 45 mohicen 25
nafl of rec=ivahles or payaties I fhe corsolidaten statsment of finsdciEl poslion

Fingnelal instrumenta

A franchsl instumant (& any contmel gl gives dsa o g financial assel ol one anfity and =
finansial liablaty ar squity insrumant of apsthers iy,

Flnancial asssts
Initial rmgn-tﬂm'i and masgurement

Financksd agsets arg classived 5t withal recogniiian, a8 sumsegquanily. measored atamorized cost)
tair value thraunh sther comprahanalve incoma (OC1), and fair value thraugh profitar lees

The csssfication of financial szses at fnjdal recogoiton depends on the finenclal =assts
contraciual cash finw chamcienstics and the Group's Sisiness mods! Tor mandging them Wit e
axpEpion of Irade recsivablas thal oo not contam & significsn Franmng compansst o forwhich
the Giroup Fas appiled Ge pracicat sxpadiznt, the Group mitislly messures 3 linaneal azsal &t e
[5lr value plue, In the gase of 8 lianes| asse nol al (Ee velie rowgh prolll o oss fansaclion
cosle, Trade recojvables hal de pal coftaln 3 significant limanomg companstt of far which e
Groug nas: applied e practcal exgadiant ane Measuwred at e EEnsackon oace

I ovdes for & financial 2asel 0 be classifiod and measired ot amordzed cost or far yalue rough
TG meeds 1o dive dse o oesh fiows thal are solely paymenils of princal anil mterest (SRR
an Ihe printipal srimml oltstanding This sssessmenl & misred i as he SPP1 el sni ©s
parfarmar st instruren Bvel Fingacial aseets with gash oke et arsnal SPPI sre dlasdified and
reasyredal far value hrouah oralll or loss, imessesdive of the busness madel

Tiie Grou's Susiness wioda oy maneoma financial sssets eeferm o how i imemeoes s ol
asseis Inorde) fa ganerals aseh lows. The tusiness monel gelermines whather mmsn Hows will
resull from solecting contreciua) sl Dows, seliog e fmaEnos 9ssels or both Feancial asseis
lassifed 2nd e gl amonad costare held witin 2 business moded gl e abjiaesys o
noldf Francisl assete in onder lo collsct soniaciual cash flaws while fingncinl 2ssets clnssified and
gmzaned 2t e velue through OCI e heid within g business modal with fhe obfeotive of Both
naldmg ' entleot eontradtis cash fows and ssling.

Purchasas of sales ol hnancdl asssis thal equie delivery of assels wilhin @ tme frame
entabliahsd By regulation o comeantion m i marked place (reguliar way reddes) aee rcoglzed on
this trascte clate | I date Ml thie Group ceinmiie b purchegs o 58 he s5sel,

Subsegquent impasuremyn|
Far plermsaa ol aubsequant messlsmart, insnnial assels st dassffisd Inlo fur slegor s

Flmancial aasieiz at anorized cbol (dedt Insiramants)

- Flranciat assels al tal vale Hrough Q5T with mowling of comutaive gams and kessee (doo]
rrslecirmierite) |

Firtaninl assety designited &l falr wsiue fhrough OC1 wih no reaveling of eumulstive oains
gt Isaas |ipon derenugeien (sauily isnmenta) | and

~  Firannisl agsets & S value Bough ool o loss
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4233

Financial sesete gt amortized gost (dobt nstruments)

Firancldl ssaels 4t amelflzed cosl ate subsequenlly neastieed dsiig Ihe effective Inlerast ale
(EIR} midthnd and are subjact fo anpairmant Sains dnd ivases are fecsghbtiad I profit or loss
when the asset 5 deranogmizes, modified v impared.

The Group's iEncisl sseaets a8l amorzsd vest nuluds 18ng erm e, loeg [Bnn depmeis ikds
MECEINES, MONIract assets, degosits, snon @ nyvestment (Treasury Bilis) esd casn and mEnh
talanzas

Interest acensd o financlsl sssets meastred gl amonlzed cosl e presenled separcaiely 0 tha
elatemant of fnancil poelion. Such aocoued intersst |2 neluded i the dmortized cost of he
rrgpaclive inainments for e pumoses ol IFRE Y

Financial assets ai fair value through OCL(debl instrumants)

Far 'dabt nstrumeiitz-al fair value mogh OC) iterest inaaine, fopdign adchanoe rayailaton and
Impairment Insses or reversals ave recognzed n the zlatemen o profil or ioss ana computed n
the sartte mannar ag for fpanalal assets measlred 8t smonized cost. THe remalnimg fain value
chemges are muagnizet in B0 Updn demseognien. e cumilative fal valie chsnges recognized
T s repyeled o profil o loss

The (Geoup dossn't have any inancial sssels measured st fair value thraugh GO
Financial assets designated at falr valus hrough BC) {sguity instruments)

Upon, il recagniion, (e Group csn elect lo dassify ireviiashiy #s equity investments Sa aquity
instruments designared at fair velue through 00| when they mest the gefinition of sguity under 163
32 Fihanclal (pstroments  Presetiation znd are ool held tor iedlihg. The classificston s
ety e On s inalirment-y dtromen] bass

Gans and (osses gn (hess finsncsl sssets gre navey regyilod i profil or oes: Grodenigs s
raanynized as olber noome (n e sladamagl of pofit o mse when ihe dplt of payment jjas e
astablished, axcapt when i GSroup benedis fom such procasts 253 ractvary of part of the cosl
of the flinancinl ssser m which casa; such oains are tecorded in OC) Eguity. instruments
desmnate gt far valiae thobih 00| are not sulgect b Impeament assesshant,

Tier Growg) eS| Alected e clessify any NaanoaEl asasln Iinder his calagoty
Financial assets at fair vatues through profil or loss

FirEngial a=eels &l fair vane wroaah profit of (0es 58 carmed N thesnmEmant of fisanoal poston
8t falr value with net changes In falr Value meogrized in the swement of profit o loss The
Girolp's Tnanmal asssl messurss & 8l velde Iradgh plolll or fess inaludss mvestment I foulusl
s

Finaneial llahilites
Inmitial recognltion and messurement

Finaneil ftliies sro classfied. 81 nilal rectognition, &5 finanaal Fbilbas a0 fak valua routl
profit of Iozs. oans and bopmowinga, of payables, a5 aporopnsie
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Al Tinamasl Labililes sre rpeogresd mloally st Feir valoe and, in e csse of paps and berowins
Ai| payatdes ot of dirofly stiributable (mosaslin costs

The Groug's Flansis alilibes delide mme snd other payables (echelng due o statdiony
puthiortns), leno En fnans shoft tBrmy bomowines, rark.up socrisd n loans snd unglnged
divitend,

Bubseguent megsuremeint
Fiortha puposes of subsaquent measumament. AnEnoil Wabilies are cinssfed in o categares:
- Financat hatilities at tar valos throegh profit o loss . aod
Financial Uabiftles at amoized cost (nans and barmwings),
Financial liabllities at fair value through profil or losa

Finanoa! lishifies al fsir value through profit-or loss malude financis! Liabilities neid far trading and
financial fiabities designated upon miial recomgniton &s st fer valug throunn orofit or loss,
Finarcial labililies e classified @s beld for trading If they &= Incursg for the purpese of
MepLrniaming In the nsal teim, Galns of lsses an labllilies held for Fraacdjrdy dre recognesd | e
crrnElidaied statement ol prafit of oss:

Elnancsl lablines desigraled upan ikl recognitfon at falr value through profit of loss sre
iesigratad &t e e dake ol medgaiion, snd anly 1w sl I [FRE 8 are slialed The
GrendfF has nod designated any fndneal lablity 6 al lai vele thiauah prafit or less:

Financial liabilities al amartized cost (leans and borrowings|

Thig'ls the ceagory mos! reldvanit to the Group AL initie redaditen neeesloaealing loansdnd
bomowings e subsequenty measured &t amorznd cost-using \he Effechve Intamst Rate (ER)
miethned Cire snd Insses sre recogrized in profit o) loas whsn the lsbifiss are derzeognized ai
weill 3= g e EIR smomzaton prooess '

fimttlzed cogl s ctloulated by \aking Inlo sanolnl apy dissount ar pramium.on gsguistien ant
lesess ar oipsts 1l s an egrsl part of te IR The EIF amoratipn s neloded qe fiianie dosts
[ thig' siansaligatod statvment of prafil or loss.

Interest aoorusd on fireneisl TRElls messaned gt amondsd oo bs presenied sapamisly ) e
siatement of financil posilon, Suél Feenued ierast B noluded in the amonized cast of e
resparlive instrismants {iv' ihe purpnsss of IFRESH

4.23.3 Dorecognilion

4.24.3.1 Finapcial assets

A fmancial asset {or, whers applicsble, = parl of & fimanclal saset or part of & group ol simila
finarmivl mamsts) is primanly feremgnired Wish

I Fighis bo rasene cash Bows T Ihe assst have explecd) o
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the firolp has rstedstrad 1 Hghis I reseive cash lows fram the assel or (ss assumed an
apllgation o gay he reesved cssh (lows o ull withoot malatal deisy © = thid perl undsr 2
‘pass-tlreugn ArtangemeEnl; and sliher (pi e Soup B resired sebsznbaly @) e risks
aid rewards of the asset, or (b) the Sroup ss neither ranstermed nor mvtained gubstanially ail
the vigks and rpwards of heassel, bul has tramalemras sontrol af (he aszei

Wihen e Sroup Has ransierned (I= gohis G receie cayh lows fom an sssel or Gas antared (o
2 pass-dhrough arangement, i evalusles [ and o what exfont, § has retained the nsks and
fuwards of ownership. When (Fhae pelther transfeired dor reigined substantially all of the risks and
rawards of 1he Easel, nor franstersd contrel of ke assel. the Group cortinues to mecognize the
frerisfered assel 1o te extent of ke conbinuing mvolvemeant, [0 et =5 e Griup also
resnghlzes an assocaled lehilily. The transfared aseel and the assoclated labilily @re massiied
i) @ sk 1Al rellacs e dghts st obiigations et e Graup has retEine

Capliuing iwalvermen! tnal taxies ihe Torm ol & guarantes pvir ihe Imngierst a=s2 i maasured
a1 e towver of (e angles caryig smount of (e asset 2o e aednum Smeunt of consideaton
1t the Sroup coud b mogured 0 aeay,

4.23.3.2 Financial abllites

A finaneat llabiity 1= demeogmzed whan e ahihgaton unoer the llatilty is dlscharged or cangeliad
of waplaz Whial an sesting firancal lability 5 replaced by anolhie from the same beida on
substantialy differsnt leree, orthe tems of an existing Tability are Sutstantally modified, such an
exchenas or modilication & resisd 85 |5e dersonanition of the onginal (ehility and e =eognition
ol & new lsblty The diftersncs In the respeolive camyirg amountz & resognizea n the
amrsnldaled saldien] of prolt o Joss.

4234 Offsetting of financial instruments

Fmencial assetz and (nancs| lstites are offssr snd (he nel eamount presemied mothe
oonsalidatsd smlamed of finanesl posiion when, and enly when, the entlty cumenily has = lsaslly
eflorresblE fidghl iooeet off the amondils and 1 intends slihsl e setlie hetn g @ nel bass o
isaiize e gssal and satia the by simdlEnesiely.

+.24 ljarah contracts

he Group hes sristed Inlo amh cantrscs ihdes Whish | obitgins dght of use of an assst lar an
Afreed period Tor an agresd consrdecation. ([Eab monliecs sre-undadakan (n oorigllance wilh ihe
Sharls sesediEe for such cottracks prescribed by e Stete Bank of Paklgtan,

Thie: Greip ancounts Tar ks amh adrirass In aeeerdants with he eouremenis af IFAE 2 aran'.
Aoodingly, the Group as 8 Mustalic (lessas) n the jamb conreel reopgoses e Upeb {loage
HAENNS 35 A0 mnaanee 0 e profi o s o)) stelgh o basls deel e @) o

425  Eamings per share (EPE)

Basiy EPS le caleulated by dividing the pralit or biss attributable 1o ofdisry shamnilders of the
Beayp by wWeknhted averags numbsr of srdingny chares sutzianding durng the yaer

Dllited ERE iz ealouisted by adlusting basic EPS with weightsa avsregs pumbsr ol ordingry
shares thal would Se Esued o gorversion of all dilwive potesdiial ordimany shares e Grdingny
sharas and posian effect of changss in prelb o loss sitiisdabls I ordinary shamnoldars of e

Group el would resull fram eonverston of all dilubyve polential ordlnary shaes inbe ardingey
sharey.
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4.28

Events aftar the reporfing pariod

W thee Groop feceives nfomation after the reporirg peanod, But prioete the deta of authonzaton for
igsitie, aboul onditlons that existed &t \he end of the reporting penad, the Group Wil asssss it the
Infortmration afsots the smounts hal | recognlzes v Ihe cehaolidated Rrsnclal sistemants The
Gt wlll mddjust e amodnts retegnlzad In s aonsolidated Tianaad sttemisia @& efed g0y
afusing events afar the reporting penod and useate he declosures thay ralale o ihess
pafditlons iy the llghl of the new Infarmston. For non-adiusting svente e (b repondag poded
ihe Srobp Wil ot shange the ampunts recognized Inite consolidatsd financial Atatements bul wil
tisclase the ranire of the nor-sdjusting evenl enid an =stmisteof s finanes effecl or &8 staiemant
hat sk an sstimats cannot be made. || applicatls

Curranl versos mon-cumant classification

The Group prasoniz sssae and (@oihes 0 e consolidated sasmen) of financal posibon Hesed
i AUTEREon-alrrent clazsifsation. Anagsalie curent whien b

Expienind by b realized) ar filendid 1 be sald o cansumiad 1 e sormal apadsiy g
Hislid prirefinly for the pumcse of trading,
Edpacind (o ba rmaliesd within iwelve mantiys 2ilee the fopeding penod. af

Castof oash sguivaisnt unless resthited from baing axohbnged of uaed @ s=tlis 2 ligbiiny lor
&b laas] meelve manthe alter the reporing penod

Al nther asssis ars classilied 85 nonscerrent
A Ayt sl Whir

I s apetet L) breuattieg (e normal Gpersing mee
It7s held primarly fon the purpess of tading:

s e e B silied wiltin Iwalvie months after the neparing perid, of

= Tiste is no uncondiliong] dalit le defar e seitsment of e bl fo 8t sast weshde danthe
aftar Iha reparing panog

Thar terrme of the lsbity that coula. at the npon of fhe countensemy; resull n s gatiement by the
st eif egurly fHatruments, do ot affect & askfioation,

The Group classiies all gihee ilnbiilles-as nor-rurrenl. Defemad e lanlites sre'vlassifisd =8 -
currs! Inbililiss

Oiperating Segmunls

A Grparaning segnient i@ compiingnl ol the Genup' b= engagss 0 budhess-aaliviisst fram widch
it may gam revenues and nmour expenses nellding revones and expessas that relste o
tonzaclioms with gry ol the Group's cthar camponanls. The Graup e dewrmined that the Chial
Exscitive Dfficer al the Group, |s fhe chisf opesafing decizion mekar I accordance with the
reguiramEnts of IFRE B Opsrsting Segments’. The Groug s involved e the bisiness of
manufantuee snd sale ol cormsainn snd Heliie packaging maizmeh 1o e costomers: which 5 1s
anly nperating saymenl,
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. £ T § P 64,3  The latest revaluation on teehold land, buildngs on lestiold iand and planl snd mackinsry was
ﬁ i EE_ gE # BB ;.g_ ':." g = ©GF f L caried ot on 30 June 2024 by 80 indgoendsnt professional veluer, Unioon |memational Sumveyors
o 258 FEf = tez £ whergas the st valtion for elactin instalalon, was caried out on 30 Juhe 2032 by an
! Inempsndel protessiamal walear Unloom lnfgtnatons] Suneyirs, Had asssts nol been revdlusd, the
i & E ;E ﬁ%g E’ 5 ! ;: |§l ; E ;ié 52 } 2 tarTying amaunts of ine following classes of gsseis would have been as follows:
% 3 i EENEa ! ué SR Z e 2025 el
. E 437 gpgetang (@ peEved Rupees Rugees
I 253 a 14l : FERE RN Fraenaid ani 380.129.562 380,129,587
:§ ] __5§ 5 3«.#: E% g-—,, £ E 7 £ E.I_.lHﬂll]‘ﬂ!r'lH'l Treasbieabd farid mrsﬂ'f a4 548 343
% Rl | 3 5 R==8 Pz sl maphineny 1,847,007 470 1,554, 558, 605
Efmeinc nEiitations. 51,783,368 52 860,488
il fi | 32 2801,167,622 2,440,324 019
= =1 23 = .
| Ei _ ' i3 23 il HA4  Thelpmed sal= valuess nl assels s detsrmiined by e indepandent valusr were 35 il
A3, & 3 - Bazed o
E i = i i g E‘ £ i ; E ﬁ'miﬁﬂl": Rupses
= 1)t G E] i cariied out in
L - - il ¢ |
=t 1 |i Frushbld dand 2024 347,979,250
= il "%:553? i3 EE%%E.‘! Phartl ansd mashinsny 2024 2,225855.971
=T E_;'g B = -r Ei; - S Elagiric inetaitatlone 200 73375284
E QEE E‘Iﬁ!{!l‘
% E - 3 gggg E|‘ 3 j_g 3 E,; : S1.5 Depragiaton charges tor (he year his been slioosted as fllows:
-t $1 didvea ] FIENiE 2025 20z
E M | 1 ] = i Rupsss Rupeig
£ - = B e — - =
% E Ed3 rgig 1 ERAE ;ﬁ“_ £ Cont pf rEverie 31 242,541,149 I8 f08, 550
= sk g - : - E L1 B2 | 22 f P4 & Admiistatlye expinses -l 6,207 367 851102
= : g S 2 3 SR : E Siglling and distribiition expenses 33 338,652 449,720
— £ 4 249 387 168 S7 1OR HTE
! A9, 387068 197208876
[N . £ [ | .= SE ; o
o % E[:t | %%i 2 ; : % : BA6  Parliculars of mmovabls frsd assets 2 sk ilows
z | AT
- 5s i E§ Description location Area
=T - i3 5% iFd = 3
= I PR Ofaa |l ] =2 b Holding Gompsny
=3 2 H ) .
= | ,é Eﬁ Ll _; S H i Errgatlicn plel 4|l T KM Sundar Ralwind Ruad, opposie Sundar .22 anrees
bt i i,ﬁ i E- P E ! % Inclustrial Edtats, Maks Bhai Kot, Distict Lahiore.,
- - 3 : 9 Flauiliie piant site Piot No. 141, 142 & 142-8, Sundar Industrial Estaie, FITasms
E (=) EE RFEFZEE . Eﬁéﬁ'ii z 3 Symctar Raiwind Road, Lahore
o SEEEREH || 81| EIETEEE
% S §e : | i : E i Subsidinry Company
o) + EE3 gag-' 8 Edsez3iE A 3 _ .
i g I3 gg% 5@ A 3 Eissedzg § i Eraamold i Mz Lahpredislamabed  Molorway,  distdet 5696 acres
% ;" "E‘; H £ E =33 E FEEE E } Shatkhupura near yilkege Mandislz and QEmpuor
g E a i . i 1 adicant 1o Quali-afeam hidueal Appanal Par
'3 £ i i ’
=L = H = &
% (] s EE ! _i i% ! ‘i : i E k3 i The: Bulldings an fredhoid land and other immovable ssse OF the Group:ang sonaliucted | oot &t
E : 231353 tafti | Aboys mantioned fmetold ang
=x = | B = lr i i b | b 2 & i i
£ 2¥ EMi e & . - : . .
5 - | E EE i £ E ) 5 ki ! g "!.? q ] % E E §14.7 The aggrégate nel book value of opuralig flked assels disposed olf duing Ihe year fave il
o = e g i §="9 & A= = exceeded R S million, Herefore padiculEs ol such Fssats have aol beer disciodad
- b i od
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o o o g = i B Movement during the year i5 a6 folows: b Building Tetal

g gogos |3 TTE.E . 8 — upecs —

o | b = [5p] EI’ il L= CI:III:

5 E 8- 3 = 5‘ 8 § E s = Az at B July 200 | P25 A0.017 470 IS BT T

= o e = e - Kl &g = Aaditians durmp he yeas : :

et r = L& o Az b 1 Lane 2024 § TGS [ HLIRT AT TLENTTATE

2 E JAaiditors durmg (he v - . -

s a1 30 June J025 172 B54, 000 ABOTTETE G2 ATHETG
o o= = a
'ﬁ g [ 5 -‘E* 2EE |2 - T A0 220 0020
nE e = (=] At Oy 3 ek
£ E’ﬂ % F F 5 & g 1 g E & et for flie vabs - | 200 826 1. 200 545
- E & C & & e g & ez gt ) st 0 ; 1 F00 748 A ron, g
& § E g : = ~ Bl [ e b - | 206 828 t 20 548
- b i Al 30 Juna 2025 - 2800276 2501.376
-4
é = = = Nei boohwalus as at 30 June 2024 172,854,000 IT. 010,400 245 070,400
@ oW e = ¥ E @ Pt btk vaiiie g w30 Jire 2004 172,854,000 38,316,928 21,170,028
g % E E_ ot E 2 = Dujicscintion rate - e
—_ =
LLl 3 E%‘ €2 on 17 Fobroery W28, He culstanding (e2n, and blbled swhyp dua fram Roshee Satoprses an assecaip!
w usderihing has Deen nailnd By Iningter al tis swmavilile propedy 1 e Wi, fuirmuast i apalaval of rembses in
E thel Sxre Dwmilacy Gessrst Magiing Beld an 16 Jsnuary 2023 The Gmup hesedectiea o measure nvestmsnt propssty
- = & B " Wirnl FeRrl coEl muotiel 25 e Gl tows - hot e to neCUpy. (L -t reaidivg 1t fos 2wl apumciation. e
I'— 5 I rmital |
[ — o s N I = = 5 %m = posstis i

= ) ol w T @ § g - B3 Tive fow wolow, =9 of repring dime, Nes bean ssdmatnd by Unson [iemaions Sy e, an. oo i iosgmeddm
E = E b 7] = =% E Fep S 3 g Waltisr tegestans Wi Pakisber Banking Associshon gnd Wil recent dxmensnee in 158 oeriion sno slzoony ol

~ i i = m e iryesEiment oropety beeg vadued, The far values and forced sals yaue are ez ballowe:

ﬁ ke Fa m 2 e P ropErty . : X o .
ad 4 = Rupaon Rugess:
mm— Ful wailus:
| Lanl 226,789,975 20w TTAATS
= il 41,569, 400 41477 B

Farped Sl yabus:
—_— Land 182,711,478 175,750 504
m—— Buliling 35,313,650 W NS kS
BA.1 The fair vslle hiemarony mss sean disciosed 0 Mote 48 o these consoidakan fmancial stalements
Ll B DD rmsiani oy e L |8 ol sdae sl i (ke i by Sopleing 3500 (FH ont ke 06 niEzicil usiiie
} [ty griahinticnn) (51 brestimetrnl f3rogssrly I diamis 2 R alve: Rerenmes
2 2028 04
— 7 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS Hupong: Higeas
[ | Righ Ul s assets 45,837 A0 T
= . Weiment durlng the yonr:
o e E Az it 0 iy 46,279,265 BE.ATE 027
E o E kil dufreg the beae 47 543,042 39 TOpBE2
g ? E Depdmcaabion e Ne gaa (1. 130315) PR R
% L E' g .3 ] g Trrrrilepailen | dhumiasgy o ypst (24,703,501} {44, 0B bEm)
= ?Ef‘ E % « & g E 0 g =z =30 duma: 45,837 551 35,778 765
- = T = 8
= £ 5 o E.
EE % %EEE EEE% E = Dieprecialion rmie 200 - 3% O = RN
o 2 = = =
Bz E = w = . B}
g E = = = m E v—: -E E E ] T The nght=arl-bie assati compres of office Bre Wirshioseas ogiEed o bssse by e Gy e s operatnns: Tl
E " m % % = b %“ e % Vi epremnic iy T b 5 yyeiams TGI8 1y 5 sy,
- @2 £ EERE ek s & 2028 2024
§ E a8 ik E @ o 5 3 & = E T2  Olegrerstion chmme for i year has e seslad 25 Inilaws Sloin Rupiss Rusmas
ﬂ LHatof rightile i"ﬁ S, 070 40
E = 3 - Agrpairbabrafive il = 6820, fon N
Sl gk TSI ) W v} 4 548,070 T 2B 742
12400 545 21, 00E B
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L., . ZHas% 2024 § ) ) , 025 g4
4 STORES SPARES AND OTHER CONSUMABLES Hioia Rupsms Rl iz ADVANGES, DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS Hets Riipbes Musctes
AND OTHER RECTIVABLES
Stones 26,225,070 2R A
Somrez 119,037 655 10El ks 254 ey wisakiE
Pazicinly At el 20,226 250 14 205078 ~in AEAEEE 1 193421_’1'1 o, B3 au:
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gttty seyaliee B irip et SEER . b el pear Aeaordlgdy Bretully ol Iy wsnedinil Al had been i by Pl Pt il i)yt .| Vi AR 56T e B AT
aligsilied v pirrent labify in jeesa gonaokdptsd financhl sesmsents Wnmee” Wi Fand phigtie LR 4 AEd. 4y D00, e

Hales e itz - e iR
e ) 20ES 2024 Frmidenit Iared imypiie AT TR0 BAT AL 484

44 |CURAENT PORTION OF NON-CURRENT LIABL ITIES Pate Riughses Plipeas I ooepALTEs ] 0 LTI
Ligrjig-tesrmrr firesnaing L] 44,696,168 e e i B Workers Pt Paciclmatinn Fand syl
Leaze laniities o 12218333 0 AEE R LE ﬂ'?"""'?ﬂ:"l] a1y 7,212,001 8RS8

Ehartgie T Wi il El LER R e L RN Eg
i.ang fermm mushaddia o 1335000 Ix.s&r;un PRl bt i i _ g 183 A4
Gty paiabis 3t 54 442808 U6, 11 362 I o S e e E TR Vo, 76 48 L7745l

_MORG9II0N _ BTARE40 Raursos el 0. i —onasese Trziager

AN FreEepranbil Miesast hsge ee sl e iE0us 1D bepad $0 sinaes il persenalu Ine st el Vet edle Stets el Ko
Tak|s F e pin @ et
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26,2

263

27

274

28
29

2811

8.4
28,131

29,22

2ua  Apnual Repan 2025

mEs 2024
Waorkers' Walfare Fund payable e Rupaos Rupeas
Balance as al M July 8;203,090 B:435817
Cheree tor the yeaar a4 5706118 8,747 B8
i dunne the yaar (10,104,726} {(7.980,710)
Balarine as al 30 Jupa #0804 £82 ] gﬂa,um

This-malinly includas salaras amouning to Be 26885 milkon (2024 B BﬁEi‘l million, utilily bilis
payable amouniing to Bs, 1527 milion G4 R, 2888 million)-and sarmage ann freight payable
to fatanoflers amannting W Bs F25 milllen (2d24 85 5 18 millon)

1025 2524
CONTRACT LIABILITIES Hole Rupess Rijpaes
Cantradt lisbiiies 274 B8,002.864 1830 0ER

Vhess: represent sdvanass from pusiomers. (nst ol satas. lsx) aganst. whizh the: Group has
pedmignoe shiigation oo oy ide o=y fislune The el el labiiifes are edpegled o [
FrRim e §5 revanus wilhin Bfs year

2035 2004
ACCRUED FINANCE COST Rupess Rupees
=| 4] NEn =] {15] i
< |y term finanaing 1.B3z.0m7 4.FTR 499
~ a0t tamm horrewings 8,325,044 5,198 85
: i m

- shor teny boruwings 23.733.2101 FHA1T 158

34.802.042 42:102.341

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Cantingencies

Holding Company

Ineoma 1y

Ineome i procesdings wers bkt by Doeputy Commissomr inana Raverniiy 1'[JIEIH'] jandar
aietinn 2448 of the Income Tex Ordinanes, 001 (the Orlivanae’) for ten yesr IOE. Liptn
Nimalasation of the dai proceadings he OCIR noreseed (he Dompany's lox chargeables by Ra 87
million on acoounl 5F lixed assets, rede crediloes, WRPF 2nel alters sto thiough en amended
Bsreshinenl ardet Utitler sedllen 1220111 224(6) of e Ordlancs datbd 28 June 2018 Aagrieyad
by fhe deciainn 6f DEIR, he Company filsd 50 appeal befons e Tommissonar Inland Rewnue
{Appedls) | Ihe "CiR{Appeals)’] who vide order daled 13 Novembwer 2020 dagider the: caze
pamnlly in favour of the Company The GIR (Appeats) uphetd ihe DOIR's disalowance. of 2 tax
gradil antiar sestian BIR amoonting 1o Fs 2.8 millen, a8 well as &0 addilon of Be. &8 ailllion
rafated (0 other chorges on foed 2sssts. Boeing sooleved wih e adverss irsatmail e
Comzany has fied an appeal on 08 January 2001 befors-dhe isamed Appafiste Tribunal iniand
Ravelu {ATIR), which s pending adjudicatian

Salas tax

Daputy Conmisslaner inkind Revenuy (OCIRY isdued ar Szsussmant arder a0 23 Marsh 2024
far (e pariod Teaen July 2019 b Odtabies 20020 n whiss vales tax latity smouniing leRs. 5274
million on accounl of inpul fay claimod by the Company was deciamd npdmissiom  Agghavid
with the erder of DCIR, an appeal against ths sald order bas been fled bator the Appeliste
Tribnaral dated Q3 May 224,

Depoty Conmmssionat [nland Revenue (DCIR) issued an assassmant amar on 11 Mereh 2024
fior the period from iy 2020 40 Saptember 2023 In which sales tex labling smountng o Rs,
145057 millan on accounl of Input 18y clalmes by e Campally was declamd. mmdmisEsibl
Aairisve Wit e orfer of DOIR, e Compery hias |sd 30 appeil before Appeliate T bl

roshanpackages com pk

ROSHAN PACKAGES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

291,23 Deputy Commissionsr |mlaid Reveris (DEIR) issued an assessment omiar dated 17 May 2023

&2

2831

2.2

urider S=olion 11(2) of ke Satae Fax A, 19080 Tor iz penod Sugust 2021 12 June 2022 an <hor!
payment of sales fan sno oleiming inedmisslble mput &y resdltihg n 20 Mite) demand of Rs
B HE ey The Compddy Rled @n appedl and e cee was mmaded by ihe Commissions)

Inlend Revenle (Appeals) for reassesamant. Whera reassement onder datad 20 Juns 2035 kos

bean passed by (e lesmed DCIR eading o5 evised demepd of Bs. 327 31 million. The
Dpmpssny hae e 2y appel ggouing e re-assessmde ade and obialied 2 siay In the sams.
Based dn lsgal advics, mansgemsnt bellsies mal (e matsr will be decidsd 0 Oe Company's
favour, and secorfingly, ne provisan hes peen mada (v tha financia) sistemanis: Howaves the
trmbE | diacinkad

Custam tas

i pror years, e Sompany was sared wih & recovery netics © Moo W CusMCHAGE02 11587
dateil 12 September 2003 for the labe payme=ol of duly o b caneelEion of GTRE Ayl
The Custenms auinoeiliss iated recovery procesdings: Boains) e dompany for the dafzun
surghtsrge smemiting o R A5 048 mivon The Company fled repeseniaion beise he
fAuparrnent far withtirawal of fhe ecoyary notice and alza filed 3 wilt patition WF, No
G1520IM2Y In e Honourebls Lehare High Cogust sgaimet IMe sald eiovery rotice. The
dapaririEnl did not carsider the Sompany's reprassiiation and irskrucied i @ pay ths soeahams,
The: Honodrsble High Court dismissed the wit pefmon bazse on the deparments declsion
regariing the repragantatitn, Subseqlanily, the Company has Med a rew Wil patiian WP Mg
155252023 in the Honourshbla Lakom Hegh Cowit agamil the zoid fecovery. natice wiersn he
Erurt hies granien interm refef by suspapting (he reoovery nollse ann regquinng the Compsny 1o
submil 8 pooidated. quarantes chague foe e onohalent ameimt b ihe satisfaoton of (hae
Asmstiant Colictor DTRE, Maanwtila, 1he tepirtman issued & revisad meovery motivs, rdlising
e datsull sumcnargs. from Rs 35048 milion o Rz 28378 millien The Company has singe
depdslled fhe post daled guatamies ehequs (or Ry H0E millicn with the departmsanl In
egiriplinnes with e sour's Blreilions, while D bWl palilion eoeins et g ajusiesion,

Th marnggemant & aonfident that e mattars sl be decided m e Campany's frvblrin miution
by 2B easesand no fmancle obligsion s expectad o goenie, Consacuently, na prvvision bas
hean maan in thoss conzabidatad finanalat smtomenis on thie accouet.

Subsidiary Company
Thars gyt tonlingences of SubsidiaEry Gompamy 6581 a0 June F025 {2024 Nilj
2035 2028
Commitmants In respect of: Rupess Rlpaas
Halding Company
- In respent of Iettars of cradit for:-
— Sineis A sprsas and mw raledsl =03 988 512 BaE, aE anl
Nbars
- Guarantes lssued by Company In favaur of:
S Mortnem Gas Pinelines |, invted B2 140,000 82149.000
Total Faron Pakestan imited 14,500,000 14:500.000
[Past dated cheque [Esasd o
Casstom Appralssmont Gallector 28,316,752 24 214 752
105,956,752 115,856,752
= ljarak Fnancing commitments
T Taar i) ol e 11,762,006 4 pan g
Latisr than ana pesd bul nob ater thsn e years 54954 108 14848 536
17747, 204 19 398 G4

717 680 468 720,561,393
Thisbe-api v e ilimsets | dspact af eontrels o siglsl eipmiehtlipe
Subsidiary Company
Thoera zié N Conimitmsms I iuepact of sebeigsry campany (s at 30 Juns 2026 (2024 NI

Annual Report 2025
IpshEGpECRages. fam. ok

230



ROSHAN PACKAGES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEy]

30 REVENUE FROM CONTRAGTS WITH CUSTOMERS - NET
2025 2024
Notg Rupees Rupees
Révafue from conttacts with customss 0.2 11,422,984 50 12233 115,068
Less Sules tng {1,763,292,884) {1,503 024 532
Nel Lagsl Sales 9,660,691, 574 10,530 A% 536
Expion Sales = 3,422 952
o RED,691,974 10,294 615, BER

30.1 Disaggregation of Revenue:
in {he following (aols, revenua from contraces wilh cusomers s diezgoregated by fiming of
fovenig recognition and geographical markis:

2025 2024
Hale Rupess Ruprss
Timing of révenue recognition:
- Prediiets bansfersd bver lims 2,364 566,055 2 A3 54K TEE
- Produsls rensfaresd at a poil iy Ure 7.295,825,018 802589687 103
IE 3.560,691,874 10393 515 868
Geographical markel:
- Pakistas 9.660,691,974 10,330,053 536
- Auslrala - J402.952
9,660,691,974 10,333, 515,868
302 Thizinchides unbilted revernue ameaming o s 1873 milion (20240 Rs. 1827 million)
2028 2024
MNots Rupees Rupees

30.3 GContrsct balances
Trate recsiyshlas At 202,336,274 235 ,bh1 964
ot assol 3z 18,730,808 18210430
Clariract it a4 (BB, 002 864} (e, 048

2,133, 064,219 2,250 hER.ANG

30,31 Travla recelvables am Hanemiores! besrng and become ue afier 7 4o 365 days of the invuios
date.

30.32 Contrasl aesuls are |pifally recognzed fop eevapue esnmed agalesl Gooup's ghl e
mrngideiating e work eamiphated bul mol billed aog for gaods dallvered Bl nal reopivsd by
custaners 91 e reporting deiz on mde 0 ofder packing products mooan|ied a5 e
reguiremants of IFRS 18 Ugon ackhowledaement ol delivery of geeds W puglomers, the
AmminEs freeogiload fa caniranl asssls atd ealed g lede renevatiles

30:3.3 Contrasl blitss reprasents shiorl temm advanices reéceived fram dlsiomiers d@gsinst delivary of
aoods I lulure Conbidal fEbiitles as 21 the enmning =6 ke yesn, sgregsting i Rs. 1831
il (E024: Be 5668 milllon ). was recognized S5 mvenue, during ths yeal

30,34 Rewenus from ane of the customers (20240 one customern) of the Growp represents mone: than

0% (2024 mone than 10M ) o the Group's towsl e

Annual Repart 20258
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&1

3.1

.z

COST OF REVENUE

R pritaals comsamsd
Careads Wiward sxpenses
Frmkigy matenal goebunisd
Praduitis sUppkies

Fiael mndl power

Salaribs, wadis and athar byt
Fretight sriel irphsportation

Fapmiv on migmisEnmoe

Prnting anedl slsnameny

InsuianneE

Flanl, e snid ldees

Travelling smd comeyance
Celmimaniatiog e sy

Vihitle ranning sxssnses
Erpmemaiibion of opemting fied assels
Cleperialien of riphi-of-ose qEasE
Dlhrs.

Cizsl of goods manufashiren

Dipesttiing stotd of linmhaa grads s Wakie siodk
Eiraing snack of finshad Qoocs 500 waste siocs

Faw material consumed
Eanin santa
Furshases

L==m Closing balanis
R e gaehing Pretarial sonsEueE

hignz

A

212

025 i ]
Rupoes AupEas
7,350 983,237 TH1 086095
4,659,147 4,422 702
3,779,113 40,128 369
182,590,616 01 245 363
339,159,566 445,775,038
426,661,515 ShE.642 858
181,920,373 Test 235,804
Ta 268,208 BO282 955
1,008 B5T 1 530,466
G,248 026 5519785
5,732,799 0 AEGESY
50,005,521 55 ETLETT
1,812,612 1801 113
13,733 892 B 718,545
242 141,148 8BS, 55
B3, 0TS =
15,024,676 5149 uEs
011,820,592 551, 102,080
87,274, 540 a8, 862
(212,912,554) LIAT74.540)
(25,638,014 [ 2Rl 68}

8,880 282,578 9347 Bl Ade

1,008 768 007

7558 839270

E.EFE‘ 106083

1,376 102 559
__7.564 0038
TR BAD, A 502

;1 !15121 MEI 11,005, .{H-Eﬁﬂ?[

Satares: wasEs and olor benphita meluns follmeimg in espset ol emploses: banefks:

Gratuiy
Frowocsnt furnd

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Salanas, wages and aiher bonetis
Lasigat! sl prrulutesionyl et
Faes Gt guliscHpnn
Traymling s canvshyEnso
fnslirants

Prnling and sihosary

harf reatils

FRapaic il Hiiiarmence

Vihicle nping and msintsEEhEe
ines

Alditors reminasion
Eliemmilirsatom dx e
Dgpriciilon af operating g dsses
Repermiation of Investment properiy
Clagivislatlen of Hald-ril-dee Aesils
Enferainmsn exparsas

8 LETL

LT

23141

nzs A
Rupess Rlipiis
13,588,052 4,904 74
I 088541 1 T H
18,677,583 20159054363
206,305,074 174404102
29,018, pus agiamr
f,580,230 5.A53 943
15,935,680 b5, 510637
2,080,277 1 45| 2og
2,284,477 2,732 s
11,476,375 2330 429
2,750, Add 2,777 568
21,328,026 04,0, 084
6,795,018 FORdAM
1875500 B, 400,000
9,675,274 T-BRE 200
6. 207.36T - B 1
1,200,538 1SR
6,929,766 B 7ad, B4
3,110,050 3,500 533
W,153,276 87118
336,575.227 51 GAT I
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233

322

37

Fa0

Audlar's mmuteralian

akatuleiry. mickt
el year radlew
Clihor curifneatang
(e oh pocked

Sremabrives, wonddess g o8 b Lissv b st Badawiig
e rerpact chemplivee hrnglis

Giratmy
Frosieeenl fnd

SELLING AND ENETRIBUTION EXFENSES

Balanes waopss ol oiliey besalis:
Traxsling-2pd conysyance

Mehadiuke P vy e b e 1
Prstnge and |elnphonis:

Frit 1, Fibi sl b
Mtveriganient Ahil lusiheas prmanon
Enfunmiimmen trpomses

LAl

Crepregsation of gpersing fsd 2ssen
Duspirisdc bl wl o] aisf Lisve fasetnln
Chiless

Halarss: walss 310 ol EnsEs e e
[11 Pesspen ol b ey bl

Cirgefly
Freicsan g

CTHER DPERATING EXPENSES

Wokars Frofil Parmpangn Fim
WWdpimrs' Wakfere Fud

OTHER INCOME

Ineams fram finatclnl asssts - Coinventiona
Frodit an-Eank Seposit=
Pt i abiiat] bt e mmmih

GrEnl Mosme

Ieams fram Fnancal nesels - Shamal complionl
Frofit om Dank epoils
i roceidiag B misdrrmid immodie s

e frany non-fitaneial assets:

I aEnilbaes. P Dot g rigsbiley werilhen ) Ltk
ErcnEnges g - nat

Ferefil witt gzemsal ol Lpidsaiog Tl wsseli:
Cihers

Arnuat Pepait 2025
oshanpackades com pi

025 2024
i Tupaes. R
5 OO ER TR (]
1,438,500 iy hog
4n0.0a4 150,004
BAT 000 Hi,
7.675 500 11400000
6,507 407 BZT AT
3455085 Pl
10,023 302 171 Ea8 G20
2025 THI4
Rupeas Ry
EER &7 BT 943 G S
20,458,124 21 421 485
7817000 A58 nha
Bi19.587 BB
2,938,030
10/854. 500 P oS
aMraTT 1|80
17,392
515 338,652 Al Y
] 4 Hag of 14215 747
1,353,926 1AL T
18,047,537 13520 263
829,956 A HTI RS
THE,ETE T de A
2018832 R[AE]
781 13,473,461 44031,007
L ERUCREEY 0000
18,179,278 1, 7L Bed
S610EE 18 A58 545
317,526,840 d\Lapd frT
36,147,768 F1.THT 2
36157 7l HldRT S8
568 341 EC
14,797 299 13 B 875
20,395 633 18. 25,4 298
.0R0 420 TE A 220
. [[IEAT RS
1564081 iy B2
&.000,734 .06 F36
14,845 245 ) AEA FAA
74T, 640 FRr=
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ar

ELR

A

OTHER EXPENSES

E st loge - (et
Clamatiens

FINANCE COSTS

fptmresst | pptarh i e
- ey digrnny finasicarey
= b llaniiee-
i B TR TR ST
= shaptd (g bofrisaee

= Voo Prolil Pamielpsliin Fupe

Bay e ahadeds aid Ol

FINAL TAK

Ferf fan np divicemmts

EL

2025 2024
Rupees. Runses
BATZ 807
16,725
8,460,352 .
lh-’ﬂr_ﬁﬁﬂ'ﬁ 8,000 445
3305883 & 59 A
303,252 Gab 50
'.51_,12!_,'}'&5 2a5 08507
10,763,481 L
8,773,858 10,560,608
190,043,787 200,728, 04E
5,761,215 ER LR

THiz represanis fral lrx pald undir sactien & of pegme Tan Ordmaoee, 2001 ]'llﬂ, D01 Lk on
divrilanids veprasanting By iy e ol raluiremants af IFRIC 21185 37

MINIMUM TaX DIFFERENTIAL

Wirrirmi i Saw cllffareniial

2015
Rupess

28,010,047

224
Rugaes

This (aprisaiis petion of 0iRimum tEg pakd Wden secion 113 ol income Tax Orinalice. 2001 (ITO,

0001 raprasatiling @y i berms ol reguesmeniz of IFRIC2T S 347

TAXKATION
Ireeme s

- eUrrEnt year
= pritic Yosr

Diefarred fox

Motz

FliFiy Uz
Rirpeos RutgeEs
04,150,033 35468407
94,150,938 3 ADE A7)
(3%, 760.283) TEE Qs BEE
5,350, 65 204, 474 25
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235

ap.2

41

411

41.2

s
Refationship between fax exponse and Rupees
accounting profit:

Prafft-batore final tax and minimiim @x gifsmsnial

Tax caloylated &t the rate of 29% (2024 . 20%) 0,405,074
Tiw effetd of
- super lax @ & {2024) B%) 11.412,541
- dlffarenes i lan mle of dividand {T91,892)
-changes In tax ratg and other adjustments {8,401,234)
-Final tex enisd 28 ey {5,741, 215)
- priar yeEar Indome B reversal | ahangs) -
- Differdsnee rilatad permanunt nadnissibll expenzes (2,492.628)

snizd
Rupeis

205&3'353 & EG6 343

67470338

34,558 554
(1913083
(3,142 9211
68, 7VB 812
10 540 B33
(36,818,345

Average 1Ry exponse sharged o profit or Inss

54,380,645 H0d AT4,208

Reconniliation of ourrent fax chalge champdd 25 peb ke laws Tor tha Yaar witl il gy

racugrized I the sfstement of profil or lozs 2 as follows

2005
Rupsess
Cuerant = fabllily lor Ins yearss per applieabls 15) B 98,151,207
Portion of current t3x lsbilly 85 per lax |aws,
reprasanting income ax Under |AS 12 {54,380,645)
Portioi ol current tax liablity a5 per i laws, representing
Ty I lerivis o reguingmants of IFRIC 29018837 [43,761,182)

20Z4
Eu'pnﬂs

207817 148

(204,474 228)

(3. 182.921)

202N

EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

Basic ani dilvted samings per share are same begsose the Group has nob issued any
coavertible bonos. comvpribie preferooce shares. options, warraniz or smploynn sham opbone,

Ihus, smmings per share of \he Goup are as lollows

Basic Earnings per share 2046

Fromn or e yesr sfEr @

Rupees 110,141,551

2z

25,039,194

141,800,000

o1&

Weighled svemage number of ordinary stares Number 141,800,000
Eamngs par share Rupeas: 0.78
Diluted Earnings per share:

Tnere is no dilltive eflect on lhe tasic earnings per share as the: Group does nol heve any

wonvertibbe instuments in sse a5 at 30 June 2024 and 30 June 2025

Annual Repart 2025
imahianpatkagesconpk
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CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Bogrd's poliny i to mantesn an eflicent capilal base so 85 to mantain investor, creditor
and markel conlidence and 1o sustaln the fulure development of its business. The Board of
Directors manilors the relum on capiial emplovad which Ihe Boup defings as opetsling
Ieerme civided by |otal capital employed.

The Group's objectives when managing capial ane

(1Y lo safeguard the entily's abilty to conlinge &8 @ going copcern, So that || can continue
to provids relurrs for shardholdere snd benalits lor other skaheboldars and

(i)t provids an adequate retur o sharehoiders

The Group manages the capital structure in the context of econamic conditions and the risk
tharaclerstics ol the underylig assets. |n arder lo maintain o adusl the capilal slnietue
the Group may, for exsmple. adust he amaunt of dividends paid lo sharsholders, ssus new
shares, arfRnge new lines of credil ar sl asseis o reduce dabl

Maithar there wors any changes m the Grogp's approach o cagital management during e
year nor the Group issublest o exterrsally imposed capital mauirements:

Ths Group's stralegy IS Io snsum compliance with agieements execoted with finansial
Instititicms =0 that the total debt to squity ratio doss nob eXcesd the lender covanints.

The Troup monittrs cepital uslng & aearing ratie, wiidl| Is st debt divider by total capital
ginployed, Net tsbl s caloulaled a3 (otal lans snid borrowings, Tess cash end bank balanoes
and shofl term investments Total capital aniployed signifies equity as shown In statement of
financial posiion. The aal debd o squily ratio s &l raparling daté iz &5 follows

2025 2024
Mota Rupees Rupoes

Long larm financing 14 69,392,151 104 0B8:218
Leses lahi|bhes 20 46,478 478 40, 754, 635
Lang tErm musharka 31 2,704,130 4 ADB ARG
Shart terri bormawings 25 1,156,544,905 548958400
1,275.118,754 795,209,830
Add (| (Lass). .
Cash ano cash agulvalants 152 260,140,825 [B0.961.601)
et debit 1,535,260,579 B14.248 229
Tital eauity HETHE!TZE.EN §,782 835,985

Geanng ratic 1% o,
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL
GENERAL MEETING

Motica s hefeby ghen that the 22 Annual General Mesling ("AGM”) of Roshan Packages
Limited (the “Company”) will be held on Teesday. Dclobes 28 2025 ot 10:304M al Shalimar
Hall, Falettis Holwl Lahore and vis video ik feciily 1o ransoct the follewng business

Ordinary Business:

. Torecane consider and adopt the Charmsan's Review Report, Reparls of Directors and
Attitors tosthar willt Audited Annusl Separale and Consoliduled Financial Stalements of
the Campary for the year endad 30 Jure 2025,

Thie Financial Suatements of the Company o the inancial yedr endad Juive 30, 2025 have
bean made availabie on the Company's official webaie | 2. www roshanpackages.com.pk
and can be scoessed of downloaded via The Web-Link or OR code provided balow:

CWeb-Link
nitpedipsharpackages com plinvesioe-
miormation’

2, Ta re-appaiml. Company's auditors and to By (Reir remunisration. The members e nmam
ricified fhat the Board and the Audit Committes haye resommended the re-appointment of
KPME Tasser Hadl & Co, Charisred Accountants as sudiiors of the Company

Special Buslness:

3. To corslder, ralitly and approve ne ranssctions camed pul wilh related parlies duning
financial yesr ended 30 June, 2025 under the suthority of the spacial esolulion passed in the
arndal general mesling field on 28 Oulobar 2024 and 1o authonze ihe Chied Execltive o
-approve all tha transactions with the rolsted paries carried out or 1o be carmed ouf during the
financial year ending 30 Juns 2026 and il the next Anmial Gensral Mesting and If thought (it
i pazs, with or wilhiout madification. resalutions as Specinl Resolulions as proposad in the
Staternani ol Matedal Facis.

Anached o this Nolice oeing citulsled i the sharaholders 15 8 statement of malersal fecls
nlang with draft reseigtion proposed to be passed ss special resalution n reftion lo the
aforesaid specnl busnesses, as required under Sechion 134(3) of the Gompanies Act, 2017

BY O BOARD
Lahore ,:I g

Date: §* October. 2025 KH.ANS'I:I!HW&NI

Fyroam Sy 078
o CTEFTITSS TR P BTN T

Motos:
1 Book Closurs:

The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remisin closed from 21 Oclobar, 2005 lo 28
October, 2025 (hoth inchusive). Transkers received in ofder at the office of our Shara
Regsirar, GOC Snare istrir Sanvices Lomited, COC House 99-B block B SMUHS, Main
Shahrah-g-Fatsal, Kammehl by the dose ol busiveds &n 20" Ocinbar 2025 will be troaiod n liina
to aftend, speak and voie ol AGM

2 Polling on Special Business:

The memiers @re hereby notilled thet pursuant to Companies {Postal Ballot) Reguintions, 2018
ihe Reguhﬂmi‘]immmdmmuuhﬁummmﬁﬁ 2022 ssued by the
Secunties and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (“SECP'), SECP has directed all the lsted
companies o pravide (he nght 1o vola through electronic voling facility and vating by post 1o the
membats on 4l businesses classified a3 spetial businase

Apcordingly. membsers of Roshan Packages Limited (the *Campany”) will be allowad (6 exanciss
their nght fo vole thiough electronic voting faclity or voling oy post for the special besiness D is
fanhcoming Annual General Meating o be held an Tussdny, 28" Octaber 2025 al 10:30 a.m, In
accordance with the requinaments and subpect to e condilions cantamad in the aforesand
Regulalions

3  Procadure for E-voling:

Datals of e evoling Boildy will be shared threuah an eqmall with (hose membars of the
Campany who have their valid CNIC nimbers, call numials, and s-mall addresses svailable in
the register of mambers of the Company by the tloss of business of Oolaber 20, 2025,

fa) The web pddress, login detalls, will be communicaled {0 members vis emall, The
securily codes will be communicalad to members through SMS from web portal of CDC Share
Registrar Services Limited (Deing ha e-voling servies provide )

(k) ldantity of lne members iiending 1o cast voke hraugh e-Voling shall be authenicated
through alecironic signature or authentication foe login.

iz E-Voting lines will start from Oclober 24, 2025, 0900 am. ang shell close on Uctobar
27, 2025 at 500 pm. Mambers can cast ihair votas any ima during thit peroad  Once the vole
o & resolulion is cast by & Member, ha | she shall not be allowed o change it subsegurnlly

4 Procedure for valling through Postal Ballol:

The members shall ensure thal duly flled end sgned ballot peper, along with copy of
Compuieiized Nallonsl Idenlity Card (CNIC), should each the Chalmman of the meeling
through pest on the Company's registersd address 325 G, Jopar Town, Lahora, Pakdstan o
emall 8! colpomiaiipnshennac ngus cam ph by 27" October, 20025 during working hours. The
sgnature on the ballol paper shall malah the sgralore on CNIC

This: postal ballol papet & ako avallable for download from the wabsle of te Company al
www rashinpackeqes com pk or use the same &S5 altachad to this Nolice and publshed n
NEWE papers

Flegse nole that in case of any dispute in voting including the casting of mare than one vole,
the Chairman shall be the decxding authority.

An
TR

it 2001 dga
A1 T



5 Onling Participation In the Annual General Meeting.

#As par nsfructions of Secunlies and Exchange Commiston of Palistan, the Company has
arranged videos Ink faciity for oniing paricipation of members i the AGHM, The meesling can be
altendied Using sman phonesfiablelsicomputers To atlend the meeting trough Video link, the

members dre ranuestad (o fsgsier themsslves by providing the lolowling informetion slong with

valid cupy of CNIC | pessport cerified regy of board resclition/nowsr of stlomey in case o
corpornta eharsholiers with the: subjest *Registration for Roshsn Packages Limited AGM

through emall corporste@roshanpackages com ok on of befare 27 Oclober 2025,

Efs
LY T Aurmure = SAE
SRS 0} L IRG ESHTR] ;] ey

LT

The members who are registered afler the necessary verlfication shall be provided a video link
py tha Company on the same emal address thal thay small wilh (he Comparty with. The Login
Taciity will remain open fom stad of Pue mesting 1| s proceedings Sre concluted,

L A member entitied lo-attand and vole al this meeling may appoint any othar
membsr s histher prosy o atlend and vk mstead of imber & proy must be
8 member ol the Company. A progy 2o appointed shall heve such rights. e
respects attending, speaiting and voblng al the Meshing as are availabiz lo the
Matnbar, Tha proxy shill produce Reher anginsl Cormplitanzed Nabons) idantity
Card (CNIC) or passport (o prove his ideniity

i The ingfniment appointing a proxy and the potwer of attormey or other authorily
under which it is sighed or & notanal aitested copy of the power of alformey mus:
ba deposited af the Redistersd Offico of the Company &t least fory-eight (46)
hioure Belors the lime of tha mesting Forr of pmxy 0 English and Urdu
inngunges are attached fo the notice of meeating sent 19 the shargholders.

i Membars who heve deposited thedr shares into Contrsl Depostary Company o
Pahistan Limited (CDCT) will furtber have o Tollow the wnder mentioned
guideines as lau down by ihe Securiiies and Exchange Commission of Pakisian

A, For Attending tha Meseting

2 In case of Indvidusls, the acoout hokler andior sub-accourt holder and thaiy
regisiralion detnils are uploaded s per the CDC Regulations, shal suthenticate
hasitar (dentity as per above procedure

B In gage ol corporate anlity, the Board's resolutian/powes of allomay wilth specimen
sighatiirs af the nominge shall be as per above rocedure,
B. Far Appalnting Proxies
4. In cace of ndividusis, the sooount holder andlor sub-soccount holder and thoir

registration deteds are uploaded as per ihe COC Regulations, shall submit the proxy
T as. par shoves reguitemeants

=i,
00

b The proxy foim shall ba winessed by two persons, whose narios, addiesses and
GHIC numbsars shall t= mentioned on the fom

¢ Alested copes of the ONIC or the passpon of beneficial owners and the proky shall
be Turnistred with the proxy form.

d In case of comorate eniity, ine Boord's resolunion/power of STOmEy With specimen
sianature shall be fummishad akong with proxy famm to the Campany

B CHICABAN for E-Dividend Paymant. The provisions of Sechon 242 af the Companies

Act, 2007 require ine listed companies that any dwvidend payanle in cash shall only be
poid through eissionic mode dirgctly o the benk account of demgnsted by tha antiled
shareholders. Accordingly. the sharsholders holding physical shares. are requested o
provide Ihe Company's Share Ragstrar ol the address given hersin ahove, slecimnio
dividend mandate on E-Dwvidand Form avallishie on website of the Comparty, In e cass
of shares hsld In COC, he same (nfarmation shbuld be providad 1o the COS panicipanis
for updating and lorwarding 0 ne Company In cass of ponssubmission, al fulure
dividend paymenie may be wilhheld

Zakat Declarations. The members of e Company sre reguired o submil Dedlaration
far Zakot examplion 6 (enms of Zaket and Ushr Ordinance, 1580

. Cifzulations of Annual Reports through CO/OVDIUSE! Email. Purssant to the

Securites and Exchongs Commissian of Fakistan's nolificallon 5 R.0 47002016 dated
A1 May, 2016, the shareholders of the company in s annual geheral held on 22
November, 2017 had accorded ther consent for ransmisaion of annual reports including
gnnunl audied sccounts. notises of annual general meatings and ofher Information:
rantained therein of the Company Ihrough GO or BVD or USE instead of ransmitting the
sarme i hard coples. The sharshalders who wish bo receive bad copy of the afloresaid
doouments may s=nd o the Gompeny (e reguest fsm provided in fhe annual nepon
and nlso avaidable on the websie of the Company and the Company will supply had
copms of the aforesnid dotument 10 the shareholdiérs on demand, ree of cost, willin
oné wesk of such demand Thie sharpholdars whi infend 1o recenve the anhual repon
Imeluding the notice of mesting Ihrough a-mall are eguested to provide heir wittten
consant on the Standard Reguesi Form ovailatie on the Company's  websiie:
Wl hOSTU EH s S S0l Dl

Unclaimed Dividend and Bons Shares, Sharsholders, who by sny reasan, could not
ciaim thelr dividand or bonus shares or did not coliect thesr physical shares, if any, ane
advisad lo content cur Share Registiar Mis COC Shara Regishar Services Limited, COC
Housz D9-B block B SMCHE, Main Shabrah-o-Faicsl, Karachi. lo collsct/eriguine aboul
ther unclaimed dividend ar panding shares. If any

1t Replacement of Physical Shares Into Book Entry Form. As per Section 72 aof the

Compaiies Act, 2017, every susting company shnll replace s physical shares with
book-onfry form in @ manner 8s mey be specified and from the date notfied by the
Sepunitos and Exctiange Commission of Pakistan; winin 3 pehod not exceeding leur
yaars from ihe commencement of ihe Companies A, 2017 Le May 31, 2017 The
shsrehalder halding shares in physical form are requastad 6 plesse conver thell shares
Ir the book entry Torm. For (his purpose, tha sharehoiders may open COC sub-aceolnt
wiith of the brokets o myvestars acoount dirgctly with the CDC 1o place ther physical
sharas sorip=tass form. Thig will faclilale tsm o many wevs including ssfe custody
nnd sale of shares, anylime they wanl as the irding of physical shares s not panmitted

'ﬂhﬂlﬁlll‘lluul G\I-lﬂ HI-



Fr

as pel axisling Regulations of the Pakistan Stock Exchange limied. It also reduces e
ks and cosls associated with sionng share cedificatels] and raptacmg ost or sholen
caffificate(s) a5 well as fraudulent fransler of shares, Fov the procedune of conversion of
physical shares inlo bock-entry form, you may spproach:our Shere Regstrar at the
address givan herein above,

11. Placement of Financlal Statements on the website of the Company. The Company
has ploced a copy of ihe Annual Report which biter ala includes Molioe of AGM, Annual
Separate and Consalidated Fnancial Statemants for the year ended 30 June 2025 alang
with Auditcrs wnd Dirgclors Reports thereon and Chairmaen's Review on the websiie of
the Company: www.(oahsnpagkades com ok,

all Facts undsr 134(3) of Ca Ac 17,

Thiz stalement 2eis oyl the malenal facis periaining o the spacial busingss (o be fransacted in
1 Anmudl Genesal Mesting of tha Company 1o bebeld on 287 Oclober, 2026

Since the majorty of the direclors of the Company were Inlerested n the related party
transaclions cartied oul with Roshan Enlerprses and Roshan Sun Tao Paper Mills (P Limited
(whoily owned subsidiary) n the ordinary course of business at arm's longth Dasis, these
iransactions were executed during the financial year ended June 30, 2025 under the authorily of
Ihe Specisl Resolulion passed in the anniual general meating held on 28 Qclober, 2024, Al
relatad party fransactions were presenied belore the Board of Direclors for ther review and
eongidaration as recommandad by the Board Acdit Committee on guanerly basis pursuant (o
Glause 15 of the Listed Companles (Cods of Corpurate Governance) Regulations. 2013
Accordingly, these transactions ars being placed before the members of the Company for IFea
approval pursuant 1o the aforesaid special resolubion

The fallowing resclution s proposed lo be pessed as Special Resolution with or withoul any
modification:

“Resolved that the follkwing trenssctions camed oul m he ordinary oourss of business at
arm's longth basis with Roshan Soun Tao Paper Mills (Pvt) Limited during the financial year
ended June 30, 2025 be and are heraby ratified, approved and conlimesd

Mztee of Diescloy W mleres] in CorrguEETy

SADOAT ALMZ :
110

WHALID FLIAZ GURESHI

CUATIN ALAT

Rrsnua ooy LIPS
L CLFTNT S DTS

Tramsaction detall of Roshan Sun Tao Paper Mills (Pvl) Limited (Wholly Ownad

Subsidlary):
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Mr. Khalid Eijez, Mt Quadim Ajjaz, Mr. Tayyab Apaz, Mr. Sandal Ajez, M. Zaki Ajjaz, ihe
Ciirectots of the Company, are interesied in Iransactions with Reghan Sun Tas Papaer Mills (P
Limited as they are Direclors in the elsted party. The sharsholding of these Dirgotors in the

::mpm'rr and extart of inleesis n Roshan Sun Tao Paper Mills (Pvl) Limited s delmled
prenaiter
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e ROSHANN

The Company shel confinue 1o carry oul ransechans with fhe reinted paries 0 fis ordinary
course of business al arm’s lergth basls during the year andirg June 30, 2028 and 1l he date
ol next annual general mesting. As madtionsd hersinabove. (he majorty of the Direclors are
inlerested in these fanesactions, therefore, these transaations with related portles hove o be Roshan Packages Limited
approved by iha shareholdars. Ragistered Office. 325 Gill Johar Town, Lahore
Phone 042-35200735-38, Website: www roshanpeciages. com pk

Thie sharehokiers may authetizae the Chisl Exsoulive 1o approve tansactions with Roshan Sun
Tao Paper Mils (Pvt) Limited during the firancial year ending Juni 30, 2026 and il the dote of
nex! annual genaral meeling. However, these fransaclions shall be placed belore the
shareholders in the nest AGM for thair epprovaliratification

The following resolufion is proposed o be passed gs Special Resolution with or without

mndificahon;
‘Resolved thal Roshan Packages Limied be and & heeby authorlzed o cary oul
trainsactions wilh Rostian Sun Tao Paper Mils (Pv) Limited, related parmies as and when Duly liled-in ballot paper shall be s20l la the Chaimman ol his designated emall dddress L&
required dunng the year ending 30 June. 2006 and il ihe date of next annual generm| m&mummm_m_pk

mizating withoul any limtation on amounts of transaction and fha Chisl Exscitiva of the

Campany be and is hereby authodzed to undenake the fransactions to be conducted with

the Relsled Parlies snd take all necessary sleps and |o sigh/oxscute any purchass FrifndClS #uposard Honmiter

orderdocument on behalt of the Company s moy be required and 1o euthorize any othar

officer of the Comparnty 1o do 50 In arder to implament this resolution Marriet o1f sbustaiicides fuind ahamiehise

B sgrbered Addvras
Resolved lurther thal Ihese transadiions shall be placed before the shaeholders in the - -
m:' mnmlm' mu mt wmﬁ:ﬂjﬂn}mnmm' BT O Anepes Pl sl fodin e
. EMIC sl jEngy 0t ntiaching)

Tha namos of intoresiod directiors and  Ihedr recpective iMerasie have bedan  diRciossd e T e e e
heralnum meprmsarttatve of Uodly porpohefi . corpdambon srd Padai el

Iwe hereby exercise my/our vole 0 respect of the fallowing resoiulions Inrough postal ballot by
conviying myiout assant of dissant 1o the lallewing resdlution by phacing tick [v) miark in tha
Aapproprints box e,

Mo of Oriflisay LW clirginrd by Bhe

Rt rwpes fnd @il It!ﬁt:::ll:']iw TESGLANR

s :l_ltﬂll_ﬂ':i'l'}

[ i sl r l;‘._".:ﬂl-.- i Wiz ] iin

(TRl e o il B o T T

=1 |

Signature of the Shareholder(s)
Placa:

Date:
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NOTES/PROCEDURE FOR SUBMISSION OF BALLOT PAPER

1. Duly flled and sianed ongmal postal ballot shoulkd be sen 1o the cheaman, at 325 Gill Johar
Town, Lahore of a scanned copy of the orginal postal balot o be emalled at
oMo ntaERrosnnERckEnsy Com ok

2. Copy of CNICPassport (in case of foreignes) should be enclosed wilh Ihe postal balicd fim.

3, Posial Balo! forms should reach chairnan of the meeling on of belore Oclabar 27, 2025

vating

4. Signature on Posisl Ballol should maich the signatue on CNICPsssport (in case of
forangner)
rejacied

6 In case of neweseniatve of body comorate and corporalion, Postal Badiol musl be
accompanied with copy of CNIC of authorzed person, mlong with a duly altesied copy of
Board Resoluton, Power of Allomey, or Autherzation Letier in accordance with Seclion(s)
138 or 133 of the Compeniss Acl, 2017 85 epplicable. untess thess have oFpady been
submilted iong with Proxy Form. In case of foregn body comporate Sic. all documents mis
be attested from the Pakstan Embassy having [unsdabon over [he member,

7. Balid paper has sk boen placed on the website: of the Company
W roshanpackagss com pk Members may downioad Mo bakol papar form e wobsio or
use orignalipholocopy pubiished In newspapers

R Wl Repoe | 1030
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FORM OF PROXY

1 of belnga membearol Roshan Packages Limited, heraby appoint
ol {or Fillrg him of ) a8 my proxy in sbeence o attend and vite
for me and on my behall at the Annual Genesal Meatmg of the company to be held on the day of | _-and at any
adjoummant thanaol

Az Witnessed my hand this _ day ol
i Sradby e sun
CNLC SRR
Addraze
PR
2. Name -n:mm
Ll of R &

CNILC
Addrazs

Mornbar Signanre
Note:

1. Amember entitled to attend and vote at a Genatal Meeting |s entitled to appoint a proxy.

2. The instrument appainting & Proxy togethar with the Powar of Attomay, If any, under which it is slgned or a
notarially certified copy thereof, should be deposiled al the Share Registrar Office of the Company,
CDC Share Registerar Services Limited CDC House, 99-8. Block B, 5.M.C H.5. Main Shahra-e-Falsal,
Karachi — 74400 not less than 48 hours before the Hime of holding the Mesting.

3. CDC account holders will turther have to follow the under mentioned guidelines as laid down in circular# 1
dated January 26, 2000 of the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan lor appointing Proxies:

) Incase of indiwiduals, the accoun! holder or sub-accaunt holder whose securities and their registralion details
are uploaded as per the Regulations; shall submit the proxy form as per the above requirement,

i) The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be
meantionad on the form.

lily Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furmnished wilh the
proxy form.
) The proxy shall produce his ariginal CNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting.

vl Incase of a corporate antity, the Board of Directars’ resolution/Powar of attorney with specimen signatures of
the proxy holder shall be submitied (unless it has been provided earlier)alongwilh proxy form to the Company.
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ROSHAN PACKAGES LIMITED
FORM FOR VIDEO CONFERENCE FACILITY

ul pn g, 2y Al oyl -l
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R R SO e 7 PRG35 e e S it e e Nl A5 a1

In this regard, please fill the following farm and submit to registered address of the Company OT days before
holding of the Annual General Mesting.

Annual Ganeral Meating along with complete information necessary to enable them lo access the facility.

If the Company receives consent from members holding in aggregate 10% or more shareholding residing ata S S TR s Pt SV 10l FEGr A RS e il paits s
geographical location, to participate in the meeting through video conference at least 07 days prior to date of

meeting, the Company will arange video conference facility in the city subject to availability of such facility in that

city.

The Company will intimate members regarding venue of video conference faciiity 5 days before the date of the

Annual General Meeting along with complete information necessary lo enable them to access the facility,

The Company Secretary/Share Registrar,

-JI_,-‘-'?.:P:"JLUJE:L#:!!
e, , of , being the registered shareholder(s) of the [ v ADearsiis ()23 P A Y-
company under Folio No(s), / CDC Participant 1D No.___ and Sub Account No.___ CDC A S
Investor Agcount ID No,, and holderof _ Ordinary Shares, hereby request for video conference facllity _ be “IDLAR AN
at for the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on October 27, 2023 TR R S T - L L Pt UL FL L BT 292022033 o 2SOt 2 sl (B
st
Hhote: o ‘Member's Signa;ure LYy br
hote: G DI SR 0 F WS EE =B ey 003
This Standard Request Form may be sent al aither of the following addresses of the Company Secretary or
Independent Share Ragistrar of the Company: N
W
Head of Share Registrar el BTSN
CDC Share Regsitrar Services Limited SR AR (IR L .gﬂudsﬁ
CDC House, 99-B. Block B, SM.CH.S. T4400 i;ﬂ,-‘f.g.ﬁ:-,;i
Main Shahta-e-Faisal, Karachl - 74400
sEE

Company Secretary
325 Gl MA Johar Tawn Lahore

atligilen i ALazs
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CONSENT FORM FOR ELECTRONIC
TRANSMISSION OF ANNUAL REPORT
AND NOTICE OF AGM

Pursuant to the allowance granted through SRO 787(1)/2014 of September 8, 2014 by the Securities Exchange
Commission of Pakistan, the Company can circulate it's balance sheet and profit and loss accounts, auditors
report and Director's repart shareholders, Those shareholders who wish (o receive the Company's Annual Report
via emall are reguested to provide a complete consent form lo the Company's Share Registrar, Roshan Packages
Limited.

CONSENT FORM FOR ELECTRONIC TRANSMISSION OF ANNUAL REPORT AND NOTICE OF AGM

Dear Sirs,

l/we, being the shareholder(s) of Rashan Packages Limited. (“Company”), do hereby consent and authorize the Compary
for elsctronic transmission of the Audited Annual Financial Statemenis of the Company along with Notice of Annual
General Meeting via the Email provided herein below and further undertake to promplly notily the Company of any
change in my Email address.

| understand that the transmission-of Annual Audited Financial Btatements of the Company along with Motice of Annusal
General Mesating via the Emall shall meet the requiramenis as mentioned undar the provisions of Companies Agl, 2017,

1.  Name of Shareholder(s):

Falhars /Husband Name;
CNIC:
NTHN:
Participant |0 / Folio No:
E-mall address:
Talephona:

N

Mailing address:

Date:

Signature:
{In =328 of comoTate sharmhalders
e ainhanzed signataty muat sign)
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Key features:

G3 Licensed Entities Verification

en Scam meter®

eq Jamapunji games”®

B Taxcredit calculator®

& Company Verification

[l Insurance & Investment Checklist
»? FAQs Answered

Jains PUng & a0 ivesio
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Be aware, Be alert,

Be safe

Learn about investing at
www.jamapunji.pk

4 Stock trading simulator
(based on live feed from KSE)

@ Knowledge center
Risk profiler*
i Financial calculator

§s Subscription to Alerts (event
notifications, corporate and
regulatory actions)

B Jamapunii application for
maobile device

] Online Quizzes
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Jamapunjl.pk @jamapunji_pk
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